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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for May
in session. The time is 9:04. Good morning, Members.

6 th

is now

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Members that are here this
morning. We do have Member Carroll, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran. Good morning. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And our Chairman, Chairman Mateo. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excused at this time is Members Hokama and Victorino. From the
Administration, we do have Adrianne Heely, she's the First Deputy Corporation--not "First", but
Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MS. HEELY: Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I almost give you a raise, man.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
MS. HEELY: . . . (laughter). . . Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz.
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MR. BAZ: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Aloha.
And supporting the Committee is Scott Kaneshina,
Michele Yoshimura, as well as Camille Sakamoto. Members, we do have...I want to thank you,
Members, for staying up late last night. And I want to thank staff for updating the information
that we're going to be discussing this morning. I understand that they worked well beyond
midnight. So, we...I really appreciate their support.
ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. 11-80, 11-100, and 11-101)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have some people signed up for public testimony this
morning. For those of you that are providing public testimony, if you come up to the lectern,
provide your name, organization that you represent. Chair is going to allow you three minutes to
provide your public testimony and the Chair will also allow you one minute to conclude. But
before we take in public testimony, if every one of us can put our cell phones to the silent mode
or turn it off. Thank you. And once you're done with your testimony, if you could stay for a few
seconds, the Members may have questions for you. So, the first person signed up for public
testimony this morning is Rhonda Glass.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. GLASS: . . . Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and all the Council Members, and everyone else
that's here this morning. Thank you for giving me the opportunity to come and testify today.
My name is Rhonda Glass, and for the record, I am a Civil Service employee. I currently take
home substantially less money each month than I did when I started this job three years ago.
And because of the recent union contract negotiations, I stand to take an even bigger hit over the
next couple of years. I'm here today, though, to represent myself. My husband is a small
business owner here on Maui, and he doesn't get paid vacations or sick leave and he certainly
doesn't get paid holidays. He doesn't have any help paying for his health insurance, but he does
pay a lot more taxes than the average worker does. And that doesn't include all of the imbedded
taxes that we pay, you know, for everything that we purchase or the vehicle fees, registrations,
those types of things, and then we also have State and Federal governments that also want their
fair share of our hard-earned dollars. I've been following the budget proceedings pretty closely,
and I've listened to opinions regarding the proposed property tax increases as well as
testimonies, you know, from other private citizens here. And with all due respect, I find it kind
of offensive the people that think that we residential homeowners should somehow be paying
even more. I feel like we're paying our fair share already. I'm not certain if the proposal has
already gone through to cut the homeowners exemption from 300,000 to 200,000, but in light of
that fact I wonder why there's also the proposal to increase the amount per thousand dollars in
valuation that we also pay. ...(clears throat)... Excuse me. It seems to me that that kind of
punishes us for wanting to be homeowners. And, you know, we worked hard. We planned. We
saved, and we didn't ask for any assistance to get our home. Chairman Pontanilla, I've read your
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proposed budget and I applaud you. I sincerely applaud you for the $77 million that you cut
from the Mayor's proposal. I thank you for that. I still see, though, in looking through that, that
there seems to be some problems with some of the disbursements. And that's why I'm standing
here. I'm not here to ask you for money. Okay? I'm asking you, if at all possible, to cut even
more.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. GLASS: We take pride in being compassionate. We take pride in wanting to take care of our
neighbors, you know, and but it seems that there's quite a bit of redundancy in some of those
areas and maybe even an outright waste. There are a number of items, too, that many of us feel
that could be privatized which would actually create business opportunities and jobs as well as
create revenue instead of being a drain on revenue. ...(clears throat)... Excuse me. I believe
that taxation, any government needs to have money to function so some taxation is necessary. I
believe that its government's responsibility to efficiently use those revenues to provide for the
essential needs of the entire community. And I encourage you all as you're in these final hours;
you've really had a long hard haul. I've seen it and I applaud you for that as well. But as you
get into this final decision-making process, I would ask you, if you will -MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MS. GLASS: --to ask yourself a couple of questions. Does the expenditure benefit the entire
community and are there particular expenditures that could be funded in other ways without tax
dollars? So thank you for your time and have a good day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? I just had one comment,
Ms. Glass, in regards to the homeowner exemption, the reduction of $100,000. It's not in this
budget.
MS. GLASS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, just to let you know. And thank you for providing your testimony to us
this morning. It's been a hard, arduous process. Thank you.
MS. GLASS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is. . .Adrienne Laurion. . .followed by Rosaline Frye.
MS. LAURION: Good morning. And I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to testify in front of you
again. My name is Adrienne Laurion. I'm the Regional Director for Special Olympics. I have
worked for them for 15 years. And I want to thank you for the past 20 years, the County of Maui
has been very gracious in funding our program. I'm here to plea again that we get our County
grant funded. We have in the past received $35,000 to help our program. We are one of the very
few organizations that does not request for our whole program to be funded but just a small
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portion so that we can stay above water and we can provide to the children and adults with
disabilities the opportunities to play sports. Special Olympics, Maui County, has over
200 athletes that participate with developmental disabilities. We are currently training and
competing in nine different sports. I appreciate all the Council Members from my last testimony
that did have some questions and that did reach out to look into our funding. And I would like to
say that some of the things that I would like to say is that my door is always open. I would love
to meet with any of you. I am here for phone calls and for any type of questions. I would like to
address one of the questions that did come up, which was that we were not meeting some of the
reporting requirements. That is the first that I have ever heard of that. I would like to say and
state that I was personally told from them that a survey was conducted and that the money was
distributed for those programs that were deemed essential--Fire, Police, boys and girls youth
clubs, food pantries--that a sports organization was seen as non-essential. We were told our
program was non-essential. I did not go back and tell that to our families, our athletes, and our
coaches, because I was quite embarrassed by the wording of that. What I did tell 'em is that it's
tough economic times and that we'll try out best to do whatever we can to seek funding and
support from organizations and grants. I would be happy to meet with any of you. In fact, I'd
like to invite you to come to any of our events and competitions that we put on for our athletes.
You will see that our athletes light up when they are doing a sport and having that opportunity,
and they light up even more when they know that they have an audience. We do not have a
whole lot of money in the bank. I would like to say that after 15 years, this year I was finally
offered the opportunity to get health insurance, but when I found out that it would cost our
program an additional $6,000, I respectfully declined. I'm very careful and frugal with how our
money is spent. I believe that everything that we have should be going towards our athletes and
providing for them. If you want to meet with any of our staff, I am it. I'm the only one. I
appreciate your time and I am open for questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for
being here.
MS. LAURION: Okay. Thank you. I appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Rosaline Frye.
MS. FRYE: . . . Aloha kakahiaka. My name is Rosaline Frye. I live in Kahului and I use the paratransit
to go to doctors and different places that I need to go, and without that service I wouldn't be here
this morning. There's an issue with the paratransit--it's either Roberts or MEO. And on my
personal note, I don't like MEO because of the discrimination that happened to me one day. We
was living at Harbor Lights and I needed transportation service, so I ordered the bus two days in
advance. The bus didn't come to pick me up the day that I wanted to go to the doctors. Then
when we called them after waiting for an hour and a half, they turned around and asked how
heavy I was. To me, that's the discrimination part, especially when they turn around and say the
lift cannot lift, only can lift a certain amount of pounds such as 300 pounds. And with my chair
and myself it was just a little more than 300 pounds. But to tell a person they cannot ride the bus
system to go to a doctor's appointment, that was devastating. I prefer Roberts because they don't
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discriminate and when I couldn't get MEO to pick me up, I told my husband, you know what,
let's just catch the regular bus, which Roberts was driving. So, we got, we got to the public
transit, and they don't discriminate a person for riding their services and they're very friendly.
So, if you take Roberts away, I won't catch the bus I'll just continue going with Roberts's public
transit. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Next testifier is Sonya, Sonya Phillips. . .followed by Wendy Cameron.
MS. PHILLIPS: . . . Aloha mai kakou. I am Sonya Phillips and I'm representing Special Olympics,
Maui. What I'm here for...I thank you for being given this opportunity. And I very well may be
the reason that we were deemed as being non-conforming because I am the one who does the
quarterly reports. And so, when Adrienne told me that the reason that we did not get our last
request for a grant, it was because we were considered non-essential, of course, I was floored and
disappointed but that's the way it goes sometimes, you know. But then recently I found out that
the reason for us not getting it was because it was non-conformity in the reporting which falls on
me because I do the reporting. That was the very first time that I had ever heard that we were
non-conforming. And, and so, I thought back and I thought well why would we be? I have
always conformed, always been on time, and always conformed. The format had been changed
and, and so there were several times that I had gone in and talked to the worker who, who took
care of our, our, our grant and asked is this how I do it, is this how I do it? It was very confusing.
I think not only for myself but also for that worker who took care of the grant. And so, there
were times when it was...I, I would send it in and it would still be incorrect, but that wasn't it
because I always put it in on time. It always went in on time. The last report, unfortunately,
what happened was I was...I went to the, I went to the mainland and my computer died. So
instead of, instead of taking...I normally had a PC but I bought an Apple . . . (laughter).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
MS. PHILLIPS: . . . and then what I did was that I tried to transfer my forms over from my PC to my
Apple, and I lost. . .I lost it. So, I saw that I was getting close to the deadline for the last report,
and I called and I asked for extension and was told to talk to Lori of the, of the Grants Division,
and she graciously extended an extension for me and I met that deadline. And then as it would
happen, when I sent the report to Adrienne, she has a PC, so when it printed out, it printed out
kapakahi . . .(laughter). . . and so it wasn't, so when I came back. . .then I printed out another
report and handed it in. So, is that non-conforming? I don't think so. I was given permission
and I met. . .the requirement. So anyhow, I, I ask for your consideration to. . .to grant Special
Olympics a grant. These athletes...you know, this is an organization. Of course, everybody
thinks their organization is deserving, but I think there has been a misunderstanding, and we
were never given the chance on the last grant, which, on which we were denied because we were
not given the real reason, we were never given the chance to defend ourselves or give an
explanation. So this is the explanation. I am the source of frustration. And thank you for your
attention. Thank you so much. Any questions?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you for coming. And thank you for Adrienne for
coming, too. At any time, I mean this is the first time you were...asked for an extension for a
report?
MS. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you get that in writing from anybody?
MS. PHILLIPS: Yes. I actually, you know, which is...um...I actually got...I have to look on my...I, I
think I just deleted it. It was actually. . .an email from Lori saying yes, you have an extension.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, there's -MS. PHILLIPS: And she gave me a date.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. PHILLIPS: So, I, I met the date. In fact, I think I met before the date.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that was the only time that you had ever asked for an extension in
a number of years?
MS. PHILLIPS: That was the first, the only...the first and the only time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And nobody ever came to you and said, you know, you're, you're not
in conformance?
MS. PHILLIPS: Never. Yeah, this is a surprise to me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you very
much.
MS. PHILLIPS: All right. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wendy Cameron. . .followed by Don Cameron.
MS. CAMERON: Good morning, everyone. My name is Wendy Cameron. I live in Paia and I'm
speaking as a private citizen on behalf of Hospice Maui. And I had the opportunity to find out
really what they're all about, because my mom was diagnosed with a terminal illness, and she
decided that she wanted to stay home or, or come to my house to spend the rest of her days and,
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and to have Hospice care during that time. And so, it was...as a result of that experience that I
came to speak about their request for money for their 12-bed facility. It's, it's something that
we're all going to have to deal with. If we don't wake up dead one day or fall over dead, we're
going to have to deal with it, and it's a time in life where it's something that you can't do by
yourself. You need help and Hospice was there to make a difficult time a little easier and
certainly more comfortable for my mother. And it was, it was a great blessing to have her home,
and I, I just hope that you can find a way to, to make this possible for all the citizens of our
community because our options are very limited here. We can go to Hale Makua, the 5 th floor of
Maui Memorial, or Kula Hospital. But staying home, having that opportunity to be in a
comfortable setting where you're familiar, to be able to look at the picture books one last time, it
was wonderful. And I hope that there's some way you can find to make this happen. I thank you
for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MS. CAMERON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Don Cameron. . .followed by Reverend Andrew Valentine, Jr.
MR. CAMERON: Good morning. I'm Don Cameron. And I'm Wendy's brother. And I'm speaking on
behalf of Hospice and their care facility for people who can't be accommodated in their house,
where they get a free notice of checkout. This would be the best money you could spend for our
people in the community to have this facility available. Hospice is a five-star organization. I
can't say enough about how they work, what they do. It was like the best experience I had with
my mom, and this was from August through November of last year. And this is something that
the community really...as a community we should try to support this because we all have to do
this journey. And it's real simple but I sure ask for your kokua on this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Cameron, for being here
and. . .condolences on the loss of your mom. I know it's tough. My mother passed away at Kula
Hospital and I wish she could have passed away with the help of Hospice but it just didn't work
that way for us. But, you know, they're asking for a different kind of a facility here than what
you were able to provide in your family. Your mother was lucky enough that she had you and
your family to help her and she had a place to stay. But what they're talking about is an
in-patient facility where people who don't have that opportunity would be able to go. How do
you see that being important?
MR. CAMERON: It's, it's very important because if their house can't accommodate the person, this
facility would do it. It would accommodate the families of being there with the person. It, it is a
total necessary thing.

-8-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, some people might not have the facility or the ability to handle a
person that is terminal in their home, even though they might want to. But having Hospice
facility would enable them to be there with the person?
MR. CAMERON: Oh, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you feel that would be much better than being in a...just a regular
nursing facility?
MR. CAMERON: Oh, your, your options are limited--is Kula Hospital,
Hale Maim. I mean--

5 th

floor at Maui Memorial, or

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What do you feel is the essence of what is different in being in a hospital
setting and being in a Hospice setting?
MR. CAMERON: . . . It's, it's being in your own surroundings or environment that you're used to or
this care facility would facilitate that for the family and, and the people. It's just a, a thing of
adding dignity on your way out. And they, they totally care for the whole...I've never seen
something work so well as Hospice. I am a total supporter of them. They, they are good people
doing good things.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it sounds like the total focus of the staff is, then, on the dying person
rather than in a regular hospital where people are doing many things.
MR. CAMERON: Yeah. You can attend to your, your loved one, you know, family member.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you can come and go whenever you want and...
MR. CAMERON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for sharing.
MR. CAMERON: Thank you, Mrs. Baisa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you very
much. Reverend Andrew Valentine, Jr., followed by Debbie Cabebe.
MR. VALENTINE: Good morning. I promise I don't have an office down here somewhere
. . .(laughter). . .

COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. VALENTINE: I'm here so much. You know, it's kind of fortuitous about, that I'm here today
`cause I've heard some things that I've often wanted to hear. And I'm here, of course, about
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paratransit. I chagrin at the thought that it's okay to trim back a paratransit budget. When I
consider the fact that last year or this year you had to put money back in to Transportation to
compensate for a shortfall that paratransit needs increased. Special Olympics, those kids,
although--I call 'em kids 'cause I'm in my '60s now, everybody is a kid . . . (laughter). . . to me,
just about. Those kids, you know, enjoy having a crowd. A lot of persons with disabilities want
to go to those events, but if they don't have transportation they can't go. It's okay, then, to, to
compete in front of your peers, but when you've got neighbors and family and other family
members, the people that aren't there just because it's you, as an athlete, it's like wow, you
know, I'm in the Forum playing against the Lakers or something like that. What I'm saying is
that by not cutting any paratransit monies, you become more metropolitan. You know, the big
cities on the mainland, paratransit means that a person can maintain their dignity and quality of
life and go when they want to go whenever they need. Whether it's a short-term disability
because of end of life issues or temporary disabilities or long term, I can...you call up, schedule
a vehicle, and I can go to the County Council, I can go to the theatre, I can go to church, I can go
visit my friends at the hospital, wherever. But when you take the money and say, well, we got to
cut money, let's just take money over here because they didn't use that much last year. Disabled
population is one of the fastest growing entities in our population Illness, accidents, aging of
life--there's no way you can stop any of that. And there's going to be a need. So it's either
make sure monies are there now for the planning and development of a better, more
comprehensive paratransit system, or come back later and pay more money to try to make up the
shortfall. I don't think you want to waste your money like that. It's better to leave it there and
let Transportation do the long range planning and develop a better plan so that everybody is
served rather than have to come back and make up later on. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair And thank you, Reverend, for being here. You
probably need a desk downstairs or upstairs.
MR. VALENTINE: ... (Laughter)... Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wherever we can find an accessible spot.
MR. VALENTINE: Well, Mateo has got an extra desk in his office . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: . . . In a year and a half.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He says in a year and a half, it will be vacant.
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MR. VALENTINE: Okay, yeah . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What I wanted to ask you about was, you know, I've heard several
testifiers this morning allude to reducing the money for paratransit. I'm confused because up to
now in our actions on the budget, we really have not talked about reducing the money for
paratransit, and I'm wondering where that's coming from. There was a deletion of a million
dollars in Federal money, but that Federal money is expected to come and the Chair has also
reassured us that if it does not come, that this Council is open to a budget amendment. But we're
not talking about cutting the funding for paratransit, so-MR. VALENTINE: That's what came to us. That's the reason . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I figured that there was some misinformation out there. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again, Reverend.
MR. VALENTINE: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Debbie Cabebe.
MR. VALENTINE: Put more money there, guys.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Andrew.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Debbie Cabebe, followed by Jacob Verkerke.
NOTE: Pause.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MS. CABEBE: . . . Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. I'm Debbie Cabebe.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Morning.
MS. CABEBE: I am the Programs Officer for MEO. I wanted to start off by thanking you for all the
time and effort that you put into this process. And I realize a lot of this has, comes with
personal...at a personal expense, so I appreciate that. I came here this morning to respond to a
testimony that was presented yesterday with regard to MEO requiring a two-week reservation
placement for transportation services, and I think there was a misunderstanding. The only
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transportation service that requires a two-week in advance reservation would be excursions that
are coordinated through the senior clubs or Kaunoa Senior Services. So everything else is in line
with the current ADA Paratrans guidelines. I had more things that I wanted to say, but I think I
really need to address the elephant in the room. Based on Mrs....or Ms. Fays [sic] testimony this
morning, this is the first that I've heard of MEO being accused of discriminating against
somebody based on their size. Up until January of this year, I was the Human Resources Officer
for the company for the, for 10 years. And all of those kinds of complaints would come through
my office. So, I would love to speak with her and get more information and definitely conduct
an investigation because traditionally that's not our style. We're known for advocating for
persons with disabilities, that's what we do. So if that happened to her, I'm very, very sorry and
definitely am going to be looking into that. And I'd love to speak with you later. You know, I
guess the other elephant I want to address or gorilla or whatever you want to call it is, you know,
there was a contract put out a while ago for paratrans services in Maui County. MEO was
awarded the contract. Roberts of Hawaii challenged the County on the process, and that contract
was then cancelled, and it's supposedly going to be reissued, and we're planning on bidding on
it. But, you know, Roberts can bring in people and MEO can bring in people, and we can waste
a lot of your time because everybody is going to say one is better than other. And I think what it
boils down to is we have a long history of very good customer service. We have a long history
of an excellent safety record that is, is really something that we're very proud of. And more
importantly we do provide service at a very affordable cost to the County. Last year we returned
almost $300,000 of unspent funds in our paratrans--not "paratrans", excuse me, our specialized
transportation contract. However, we did fulfill all of our contractual agreements -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. CABEBE: --during that contract period. So, I just wanted to thank you for letting me share this
information. I would like to speak with the testifier. And if you have any questions I'm open.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. Ms. Cabebe, thank you very
much. Your, your, your comments really hit the nail on the head. And I really appreciating as
an individual that sits here and listened to hours of testimony about, you know, the accolades for
MEO, the accolades for Roberts. I mean, you know, I think what you just said is so important,
because the issue is not MEO and the issue is not Roberts. The issue is how do we take care of
and provide the need to the people who need them. And I think that maybe this is a beginning of
both MEO and Roberts--sit down, talk about the problems, adjust it, get over it, and let's provide
the service to the people who need it. And, and I don't want to hear any more accolades or about
the problems. What I want to hear is the service is being provided. And, you know, you have
the history, so nobody's got to tell you of the issues. And thank you for what you just said.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. CABEBE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. I couldn't agree with you more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you, Debbie.
MS. CABEBE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jacob Verkerke, followed by Rita Barreras.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members of the Committee. I'm here to
provide some information, some answers to--question was asked by Member White the last time
I was here. Before I provide the answer, I want to give you a little bit of a context. It's no news
to you, of course, that the budget that we're debating this year is for the fourth year of the
economic impact on our operations. It started in Fiscal Year 2009 when things went south with
the economy and we were restricted by 15 percent on our expenditures in the budget that was
approved. And years after, that has continued with budget reductions. So, in the upcoming
fourth year of that cycle--and fourth year is significant because that's the lower end of our
replacement cycle on PCs. We are faced with a situation, and I'm getting to the answer to
Mr. White's question, where out of an inventory of 1,200 PCs, we checked our records, we have
464 PCs that will be six years or older at the start of the new fiscal year. So, that delay in
maintenance that I've talked about is reaching proportions now that are going to be very difficult
to manage if we don't have an opportunity to start making some inroads. So in response to your
question, we have 464, more than almost 40 percent of our inventory is reaching an age of six
years. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Verkerke at this time? Seeing none, thank
you very much.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Last testifier this morning is Rita Barreras. If anyone else would like to
provide public testimony, please sign up with the Secretary in the lobby. Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. I just want to take this time to thank you for the partnership that we've had with the
County of Maui over the years. This...began back, as I mentioned in previous testimonies, back
in 2003, when actually the County of Maui gave us an initial planning grant to support the
Robert Wood Johnson grant that, you know, we've received to put together a strategic plan for
long-term care. And so, I just want to share that we really want to see Maui County remain as a
partner with the coalition. We think that you have been a significant partner to support our
progress, and we'd like to prepare a budget that we could share with the Members of the Council
between now and first reading in the hopes that perhaps we can continue to answer your
questions. Our quest right now is to diversify the funding. We're going after several grants.
Several are coming up even in July. And to have the County of Maui as a partner with us so that
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we can help leverage those dollars, we believe would be, will be significant to us. But it also
gives us an opportunity to talk about maybe what is a reasonable partnership level with the
County of Maui. Because we do want to bring in, you know, other private financing, really to
help support the coalition. We're in the midst of writing those grants now. It's very important to
have that support. The other thing I wanted to just share with you in addition to our, our great
thanks...we know you've had a difficult time. This is a very difficult year, past two years really,
but if you would just give consideration to our request and we would be willing to offer a budget
for you to review. The other thing I wanted to share with you is a handout I believe you
received. We received notice that Governor Neil Abercrombie is hosting a. . .on May 10 th from
10:00 to 11:30 a.m., a presentation by himself, the new Department of Human Services Director,
and the MedQuest Division Director on plan changes to the Medicaid programs. This is going to
be important for our community to stay on top of. We plan to attend because we don't know
what the implications are for County government and non-profits, but we know that they're
sizeable cuts that they're talking about. So with that, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, Ms. Barreras was the last person to sign up for public testimony. Is
there anyone out in the audience that would like to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing
none, Members, without any objections, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Members, what's being passed out for, for our discussion this morning is
the areas that we need to review. And Chair, once you get it, will call a 10-minute, 8-minute
recess so that you can review what we need, we still need to discuss. And I think the biggest
item would be the revenues.
. . . Okay? At this time, the Chair will recess this meeting to 9...we'll reconvene at 9:50.
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

9:43 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:56 a.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee is now reconvened. The
Director of Public Works, Mr. David Goode, is here. Thank you for being here, Mr. Goode.
EXHIBIT "1"
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
NOTE: Temporary loss of audio due to mechanical difficulties.

MR. GOODE: ...engineering positions and used a Structural Engineer II, which under the Civil Service
rules is equivalent of like a Civil Engineer V. Don't ask me why a II is a V, but it is. An
Architect W and a Construction Inspector who would work within that section. Their super...or
excuse me their clerical support would be from existing clerical staff. We would ask that the
positions be permanent rather than LTA. We are concerned that recruiting for LTA might be
very difficult, and we're unclear as to whether we'd really be able to fill them as LTAs. As far
as equipment goes, we're looking for...um...vehicles so they can get to the job sites, AutoCAD
type support. And that concludes our revised budget. So I'd say it's approximately 40 percent
reduction in the request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . Members, any questions for Mr. Goode at this time? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Goode, I heard you mention now
recruiting for these particular positions, especially if they're LTA's, would be fairly difficult.
MR. GOODE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But as you've heard the discussion, we felt that if results were
brought in and you'd make both the County and the Council happy, we'd be happy to make these
fulltime positions. Okay. That's the premise behind 'em. It's not because we don't think...no,
it's because we're not sure if it's going to work or not.
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay? And, and none of us know for sure. But once we hire
someone and they become Civil Service, now we have very little alternatives. We can move 'em
around but they have to stay, and that's something we have found time in and time
out--especially the last four years I've been on this Council, positions that started as a certain or
as a grant or, or other thing, other starting points and became Civil Service. And now if we lose
that grant or we lose that funding or we lose whatever or downturn in the economy like now,
we're obligated to keep them. And I'm not, have no problem with keeping people, please don't
get me wrong.
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We want to see, number one, if this would really work--and that's
the real reason. But number two, give the Mayor his chance to show us the Attrition Program
and see if that works also. So that's why pairing down to three as LTAs was my idea of keeping
what you want, so give you a good base to work with and tell 'em, hey, guys, your future
depends on results. And I mean if that's pressure, then fine, but that's the world of business.
Right? You've sometimes bring people in for specialty and say, hey, if it doesn't happen, you're
not here anymore. And so that's what the whole thought process behind this was, instead of
saying no all the way around. But if you're saying it's going to be very difficult, then that
becomes difficult in my mind, you know. I want to support it, but I want to see results. It's kind
of like, really I'm giving it to you, but I want to see results, and if I don't then I won't be able to
give it to you any further and that's what I'm trying to say. So, you really believe if you offered
this to someone that they wouldn't take it just because it was an LTA?
MR. GOODE: I think our pool will be smaller and I'm not sure how big the existing pool is going to be.
I know it won't be bigger, bigger pool.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: It will definitely be smaller, and so that's, that's the risk. And I, I understand where
you're coming from, and I think the, that sentiment is probably shared by the majority of the
Members. And I wish I could offer 'em a contract that says if you perform you'll get it, because
I have no guarantee to come back here next year or two years from now and actually get 'em
permanent, right.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
MR. GOODE: So. . .I think conversely and I, I may have to defer to...to my help here on the left
. . .(laughter). . . you folks could cut the positions if they weren't permanent and they're not
performing, or we could propose to cut 'em.
. . . And I guess my fmal thought would be if we go with the LTA, I might be back here in six
months saying here's the results, nobody showed up, could we try permanent? So, you know,
I'm willing to be flexible, but I think just for record I wanted to put that out there. You know
after discussing with my staff and talking with Personnel. . .there is concern about, well, you
know who's going to, who's going to sign up. But the economy is down. There's, you know,
there's a chance we'll get some folks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I was going to say there are a number of people out there
that are not working and haven't worked for quite a while, who have been cut even in the private
sector that are looking for opportunities. And I think if the opportunity was presented in, in a
proper way, I believe they would jump at that opportunity. But, you know, only time will
answer those questions, yeah.
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MR. GOODE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Goode. Thank you, Chair.
MR. GOODE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Goode, fast question...um...those positions will they have
enough work to do. . .to justify the three positions?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, I think the answer is yes, and of course it does depend on what's the final
version of this, of this budget. But I was looking through the existing request for FY '12, and of
course there's one project in FY '11 they can certainly assist on, which is the Wailuku parking
garage. But in FY '12 some of the...proposals that we looked at, of course the police station,
which has been discussed extensively here. We can assist the Police Department on the radio
replacement because they have to do a lot of construction and reconstruction of existing sites.
But we wouldn't be involved with specifications on, on the radios, et cetera because that's
definitely the expertise of the Police Department. We have Countywide police improvements,
fire, and facility building improvements. They're all specific line items. We have the repair of
our Wailuku baseyard garage; we have the old Wailuku post office here next door, which in my
mind is a real hornet's nest. We have a lot of work over there.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: At least it's right across the street, so easy to get to. The Lanai fire station extension was
a proposal and the Lahaina fire extension, fire station extension. So those are just the proposals
that are in this year's budget, I'm sure some of which will pass, and maybe not all of 'em, but
that's quite a bit of work, I think, for this crew of three who I, you know, again, even if, if we do
get 'em, it'll probably be, you know, late this year 'cause I can't recruit till July 2 nd , et cetera, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, some, one of the project has been removed. You know,
yesterday we had the Police Department here and they hired a guy for $1 3 million to do, you
know, what you guys want to do. So . . .
. . . how you going complement the police station . . .(laughter). . . in regards to their new
building that's going to be constructed? See, one of the issues we may have is that if you're
going to do it, you know, how do we get rid of that contract?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I may have gone over this before but I'll be happy to do it again.
The...that particular contract, I haven't, we haven't reviewed. My understanding is that, I mean
for, for that price tag, there's probably going to be multiple individuals on that project
simultaneously fulltime. We have, we have three, three positions...one and one's an inspector.
So that inspector can only basically be...if that inspector is fulltime at a job all day long, that's
one job. So I think there's, I think I've stated before, I think there's opportunities within that
contract that it could be pared down. Again, I'd have to review it. . .where we could, you know,
substitute some of the expertise. But I don't think eliminating it is a possibility with these three
positions. And finally, it's a question of timing. I'm not sure exact timing of that particular
project, but if I only get people onboard here by the end of the year and we've got other work
and they may have already started work, then maybe there's a timing mismatch.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
. . . You have some-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. He mentioned a. . .a report that he handed to you or something
like that. Are we going to get a copy of that or did we get a copy?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Report of...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: His revised proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: His revised proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I never get that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We never got it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, we never got that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We don't have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know verbally he had indicated that the three positions that-MR. GOODE: . . .(inaudible). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --he wanted.
MR. BAZ: . . . Uh, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: Would you like that transmitted officially to the Committee?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Yeah. Okay. And the positions, again, can it be fulfilled through the
Attrition Program. . .have the Mayor attempt to do it?
MR. GOODE: . . . Well, these, these positions are General Fund positions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So if the attrition is within the entire General Fund, it's again a question of timing. And
I can't, I can't speak to the exact timing of the...how the Attrition is going Countywide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Hopefully by then, you know, we would know towards the end of the
year or probably before that. If you do have existing vacancies, if those can be redescribed? The
intent is not to add more manpower to this County.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Go ahead.
MR. GOODE: I'm sorry if I missed a question . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Our intent is not to add more bodies to this County, but through the
Attrition Program as, as people retire or, or just leave the County for some reason, then utilize
some of those vacancies to fulfill your requirements. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And as I indicated yesterday, if the will of the body is to not put in
the EP count--additional for these three bodies or five or however the determination is--it may be
possible that the attrition policy, the implementation would allow for us to...simply transfer the
positions over to this. However, the funding doesn't go with those positions, and Mr. Goode
maybe can describe if this program has the capacity to absorb the funding for that position or not.
But I'm pretty sure it doesn't.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And again the Chair had indicated that, you know, we could do a
budget amendment if we need to. . .to fund those positions. Okay? Any more questions for the
Department? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, thank you. Mr. Goode, when, when we were
originally talking about the need for a creation of a group like this that would review to help
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expedite the permitting processes for CIP projects for the County, at the time, I understood it to
be all of the County's CIP projects. Throughout this process, we've learned that this group is
exclusive, because it's limited to only certain projects because certain departments now have a
need to establish their own CIP groups to evaluate, monitor, and help move forward their
projects. So are we not adding additional layers instead of meeting the original goal and intent
of the creation of a body to help expedite the processes for the County?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Mateo, I think maybe there's some miscommunication on the, on the original intent.
The original intent really was to move the project management that's being done within the
Police Department or the Fire Department or Housing and Human Concerns. . .where, where,
you know those, their expertise or the expertise in the Police Department is policing. It's just
like asking one of our project managers to go do policing. They might do a good job. It might
be a right fit, but chances are, you know, it's not something they're an expert in. So, it was
really to take those projects which, you know, generally occur every year and, and move them to
a group that would have expertise in project management. If they're expediting, it's that, they're
expediting that project and they're managing that project to keep it on time and on budget. So,
they wouldn't be working on water projects or sewer projects or solid waste projects or even our
existing engineering road projects. But taking those other ones that are kind of, like I've
mentioned before the Police, Fire, Housing. . .Civil Defense even, you know, all types of projects
and have, and just manage those specific ones on behalf of those departments. So, if we
did...work with the Police Department, I think Captain Hudson was down here yesterday and
more than likely he'd be, he'd be the key contact. You know, we'd work for them. So, I mean
that, that's...I think that's, that's, that was the original intent. So if there's a miscommunication
there, I apologize, but. . .that's, that's where we're still headed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. But in, but in that same...but in, you know, referencing the
Police Department, their, their project itself comes with, you know, a manager, because they
spent $1.3 million to hire an individual to route their project through. So, the big projects comes
with a project manager. So all I'm seeing at this point is additional layers of bureaucracy and
additional EPs for the County to absorb.
MR. GOODE: Well, if I could add, add a little bit to that? What you're seeing on the police, on that
police station in particular is construction management. To get to construction, they had to work
with the architects and the engineers for, I think, a few years. That's the out-front process that's
probably the most critical because that's where the decisions are made based on costs,
constructability, timing, you know, the actual... what's going on in each room that meets their
needs. And that's all been done by the Police Department. ... (inaudible) ... So, the construction
manager is just okay, now we break ground or about ready to break ground and you take it from
here. There's all this advance work, and. . .and that's really sometimes the most important part.
I always like to say the easiest things of doing projects is to build it. But to design it and permit
it and get it through the various processes is, is very difficult.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But that's all-MR. GOODE: I don't know what the...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That's all included in the Department's hire of this manager. He sat
there and that's, he's taking the whole project right through construction. So...
MR. GOODE: But he didn't take it up to construction, 'cause this project has been alive for a number of
years is my understanding. They just got hired. . .I think. So, all that work in advance is what, is
what we're focused on, plus where we can do the construction management, we'll do it. But it's
the advance work that, that keeps projects on time and on budget -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
MR. GOODE: --as much as can.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Goode. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MR. GOODE: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Director Goode. So, previously
to these positions, who took care of those responsibilities? I mean we have existing fire and
police facilities and what have you. So were there, was there a separate entity? There's
obviously been people providing that responsibility already. So these are -MR. GOODE: Right. Now the...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --addition, addition to.
MR. GOODE: Right. And so generally what the other departments were doing was taking a, you know,
relatively experienced individual within the Police or Fire Department and taking them off fire
and police responsibilities and giving them these construction projects. And so, that actually
meant they were behind in some of those areas of their primary duties.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But these expansion positions are for anything vertical, is that what
you're saying? I mean it will be our, our public safety facilities, but also other. . .Civil Defense,
you name it.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, it will be 95 percent vertical type work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . Okay.
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. . . All right. Thank you.
MR. GOODE: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to this area? Seeing
none. . .the Chair's recommendation is to utilize through the Attrition Program to fulfill the
requirements of three personnel to the Department of Public Works and to budget that three
position on a year-to-year for the next three years. I need a motion to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? One-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can I get. . .and these are LTAs?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's going to be year-to-year.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just yearly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In other words, for the next three years, you know, we'll look at the positions
to see how it's working, we'll give it time to work, and after the third year, if it, if it does work
for the County of Maui then...we'll...entertain to have these positions as civil servants. I have a
motion by Member Victorino. Do I have a second before I call on more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Second by Mr. Carroll. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Just for clarification. If...I understand his
challenges in recruiting. . .and we've--you know, being new to this, I'm, we've heard about
return rights, but my question to Mr. Goode is if one of his engineers that has the qualifications
to do one of these jobs moves into this new position and it is then later cut, do they have return
rights to go back to their former position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe a question for Corporation Counsel. I have no problems with that.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And my, my assumption is that they would follow a RIF procedure and
they would be able to bump, but I just want to be sure that, you know, that, that we're not
creating a real challenge for recruitment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Corporation Counsel?
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MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Mr. Chair. And good morning, Council Members. I know whenever there's a
request for personnel actions the Department has to work with DPS. And so I'm not sure if these
respective positions would be covered by Collective Bargaining Agreement that would have
specific sections relating to return rights or .. .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, whether, I guess the question is -MS. HEELY: . . . or reductions in the force.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --it's not necessarily stated as "return rights", but my understanding
would be that it would, it could be considered a reduction in force which would give them the
opportunity to bump. But I don't know if they can bump back into their previous position or just
another opening, and I think that may make a difference in the, you know, the ease with which
we can recruit -MS. HEELY: It's my understanding this would-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --from within the Department.
MS. HEELY: --this would not be an appointed position.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . . Right. So just-MS. HEELY: And if the Administration were to transfer the position into a permanent position, they
would have to come before this body to get approval. . .for the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I, yes, I can, I can see the, the challenges with recruitment if, if
it's truly a temporary situation from which they have no...nowhere to go if, if we eliminate the
position.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. From my understanding, you know, if, if a position is not funded,
there is a reduction in force within the County, the. . .the Administration, the Mayor has the
ability to, to abolish positions based on, you know, that. And it would create, depending on the
Collective Bargaining Agreement, the possibility of...what's called "bumping rights", which
would be basically them to move into other positions based on certain criteria. So, if the Council
seem...you know, deems this group to not be successful, to not be effective and then removes the
funding for that, that's one likely scenario that would happen to these positions.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, but the question is whether they would be able to go back to their
previous position or a similar position or whether they would have to look at whatever openings
are there. Do they, do they bump people in, in existing positions or do they have to look for
openings?
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, only people, persons appointed to positions by the Mayor--and
there's a specific group of people that are appointed in those positions--have what's called
"return rights" to the...whatever position that they left or a similar position. And so, they...I
don't...from my understanding, no, they won't necessarily have that position, oh, unless for
some reason the Department was able to leave that position vacant, but I don't think that's the
ability of the Department either.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Chair, I, I support your. . .your direction. I'm just concerned that
if we are. . .if we're. . .making them temporary--which I, in theory, support. My challenge is
that we're probably going to have to bring people in from the outside to fill these positions, and
in that case there's going to be a. . .a real long learning curve, I would guess. I'd like your, your
thoughts on that, Mr. Goode.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: . . . You know in thinking about this, assuming we get some folks from the outside and I
don't think internally there's any Structural Engineers II or Architect IVs. We do have
Construction Inspectors who may want to come over.
. . . Uh. . .I, I could see, you know, convening this group and being very clear that this is a
performance-based deal. . .and it's also subject to, you know, the whims of the Council. And it
may not be this Council. It could be next one, right. So. . .I'm certainly willing to give it a go.
If for whatever reason we don't get. . .names, I'll be back. ... (laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fair enough.
MR. GOODE: Fair enough?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: With that, Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I'm, I'm comfortable.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fair enough.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. And the other thing too, Mr. White. . .even though we're
going to go year-by-year for three years, the possibility is always there that some vacancies may
happen-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --within the Department that they may consider of, you know, moving
positions. So-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I'm a little...concerned. You're saying that we aren't going
to do expansion positions. He's going to try and do it through the attrition process.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So then I think the point about making it LTA or whatever is, is moot
`cause they can just take...redescribe a position that becomes vacant and we have no say in that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we will put in year by...for the next three years that these positions will
be funded, and if the program works then we'll consider making those positions civil servants.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That's where I'm a little confused. We're going to fund them
but it's not an expansion position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. It's going to go through the Attrition Program, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. If somebody leaves a position...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. It may be, it may be an expansion to this Department, but what the
Chair is saying is that I don't want to see the employee count grow for this County. In other
words, we'll be utilizing attrition -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, you're taking it from another department possibly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --positions...yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Gotcha. All right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the numbers will still be constant.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. I fully understand our goal, which is not to
increase the payroll. And I reluctantly will agree to, you know, what we're going to do, but I do
want to support the idea of it being difficult to find people on one-year stretches. You know I
ran a grant funded program and we would come up with a great program and a great job
opportunity and when you put it out there people would apply, but when they found out that the
funding was for one year and, you know, in a grant funded non-profit you cannot promise people
Civil Service. What you can promise them is what you got so there's only a year. Many times
they would choose not to come because they could not live their lives wondering what would
happen to them at the end of, of the year. And it did limit our ability to get the best and the
brightest, and so that's the only caution that I have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you. And based on the economy today, I'm sure
we're going to have some applicants.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I hope so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah . . . (laughter). . . I hope so, too. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As long as we're discussing this, are we going to discuss the equipment
at a separate time or you want to do it all in one package?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We have a motion on the floor to go with the Chairman's recommendation on
this. So, if there is no more discussion, the Chair is going to call for the question. All in favor of
the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Seeing none, we have eight "ayes"; one "excused",
Member Hokama. Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . So, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Why don't we take care the equipment right now?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I was going ask, yeah.
NOTE: Pause.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay. Page 4 of 9.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . Just so the Chair is aware there's one on 7 of 9 as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. 4 of 9, Mr. Goode...MIS is looking at adding to the Department
computers for the expansion positions in Public Works. Also, an annual AutoCAD subscription
for, for your expansion, and then an Adobe Arobat [sic] Professional Writer for the positions.
Can you explain?
MR. GOODE: . . . Well, if I have to explain MIS's proposal-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um, just-MR. GOODE: I think for sure we need...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --within your Department you're going to be utilizing this equipment, right?
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MR. GOODE: Yeah. And I think our original proposal I had enough for five people. So now we need
enough for three. I got to have computers. It's not going to work without it. And the AutoCAD
subscription, we need two of; and two of the Acrobat Writer Professional Writer, two of those.
So dollar-wise in our request, we have a total of 12,000 for AutoCAD and a total 1,000 for
Adobe Acrobat.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: And then the computers would be three computers. And maybe Mr. Baz could help tell
me what the numbers are for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, Members, for the first one, Mr. Goode said he doesn't need the
computers for expansion positions. Do I have consensus to remove that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He needs that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, he does need the...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, he does need the computer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The first one?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, but you need only how many? All three?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, we need three-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three.
MR. BAZ: --of the computer systems, and I think the budget was for five at 15,000. So, three-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
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MR. BAZ: --would be $9,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, we'll make the adjustments for all three pieces, well, two pieces of
equipment 9,000...15,000 to 9,000 on the first one; 18,000 to 12,000 on the second one, and then
the, the last one is 1,000. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER

: Okay . . .(inaudible). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is everybody in all, in agreement?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(inaudible). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. And then, Mr. Couch, page what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Back on Page 7 of 9. . .right below the positions, it says delete all
equipment for expansion positions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Goode . . . (laughter). . . can you explain what is...we just approved some
equipment for, computer equipment for the expansion positions. Over here, you have 70--oh, we
already took care that, right, the other day?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They were going to remove all of the expansion position equipment.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. BAZ: . . . Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. The only other expansion equipment for these positions was a vehicle so they
can go out to job sites and do inspections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and that's the reason why we took it out?
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MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, like we've said many times to many departments--until we
get the inventory, these are not specialized vehicles. And I'm going to bet you a nickel on a
quarter that you're going to find extra vehicles--four wheel as well as a four door sedan--that will
be available. We found one for MIS. I know we can find. Before I will agree to any more
vehicles, I want that vehicle inventory and I want the necessary c a ges to be made because
during the campaign that was one of the big issues. I have not forgotten that. Okay? So,
Mr. Goode, although I want you to have the vehicles, I think is point in time, by the time you
get these people in--will probably be what July, August, September maybe, right?
MR. GOODE: Or later.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And Mr. Baz will have the inventory pretty much finished by
then, and then we can start looking where we can move vehicles, where they're not necessarily
needed, where there's an overstock, whatever, and we can move. If not, i o , you can always
back come as a budget amendment. Okay? We have no problem with that. I mean the Chair has
said that many times. But. . .I, I'm very reluctant to give any new vehicles, especially until we
get that vehicle inventory. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, thank you-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: --and we understand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Staff, any more for Public Works?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, that's it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, are we saying "no" to the expansion vehicles?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah-CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't know if we had consensus or not, I was the only one
speaking . . .(laughter). . . sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, but we already...we all agreed-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --upon that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me. There's CIP for Public Works as well, I think there was some discussions about
sidewalks . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay-MR. BAZ: . . . from last night as others.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --thank you.
. . . CIP. CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eight of nine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page 8.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 8?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. Makawao-Pukalani, Old Haleakala Highway
Sidewalk Study.
. . . The request is for $100,000 to do the study. This. . .is that. . .sufficient? I shouldn't say
"sufficient"—
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --otherwise, I'd give you 25,000 . . . (laughter).. .
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, I, I couldn't make it all the way to watch the proceedings last night
. . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So, if, if I could to ask Ms. Baisa, who I believe put this in--it appears this is for, just for
the Old Haleakala Highway from King Kekaulike down towards the Superette or, or farther?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair?
MR. GOODE: Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If I can answer?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Goode, you know, we had asked for two. We wanted to do the one
by Haleakala Waldorf as well as this one, but, you know, we have so many needs and so we
decided that it would be best to take care of the one that is obviously so pressing and there's so
much community discussion. It's been discussed everywhere and the...the principal at
Kekaulike is involved. We've had discussions with Mr. Yamashita who says we need to get this
study done and then maybe they could help us with some support with the building. And so, we
asked if we could have at least $100,000 to do that study. And it would be from King Kekaulike
High School on the Old Haleakala Road side, down to the intersection by Pukalani Superette,
which is that cross with Makawao Avenue.
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh. Okay. Um. . .yeah, this funding would be adequate to get the work started.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the next one down, for Kihei sidewalk? And, Mr. Couch, if
you can explain the location?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Goode, that would be from...on South Kihei Road,
mauka side, from Kamaole III Park where the sidewalk ends, all the way to Kilohana. I would
appreciate the study on it. I'm anticipating that there's--right where the sidewalk ends right now,
for about 30 feet--there's a big chunk of blue rock that may make it cost-prohibitive to go past
that point. But from then on it is pretty flat-MR. GOODE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and straightforward.
MR. GOODE: Okay. I'm familiar with the area--of course, where we just put the crosswalk.
Um. . .this is, again, enough funds to initiate that work. And, and I'd also like to add that. . .I,
I'm anticipating more than a study. I mean, it would require an Environmental Assessment and
design. So, that would tee it up for construction for, for the next year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. And then. . .next one down, Highway found...Highway Fund
Countywide. Member White had included in there some monies for Baldwin Avenue safety
improvements for the installation of guardrails and -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Guardrails and a flashing speed indicator-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and the flashing light, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --to slow traffic down by a school that's troubled by the speeding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I think the number was like $10,000. I don't know if that's-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, it was-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --sufficient to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It was 20,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, 20?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, that he had given us.
MR. GOODE: Okay. So that would be a proviso within the existing Countywide safety improvements?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MR. GOODE: Okay. Yeah, that's-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --we, we can handle that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um. . .the Bikeway Fund, we already took care that. Do we have...right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, well, we don't have that proviso...is that proviso put in or left out?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, what we did last night was we took the Bikeway Fund -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and then we separated it into two different community plan area. One for
Paia-Haiku, and then the other one Kihei-Makena Community Plan so that they reside in the
area-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do we need consensus-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in the area.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --on that or are we good with that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to ask consensus on the Haleakala Highway, Kamaole Park to
Kilohana, the Baldwin Avenue, the bike improvements for Paia-Haiku Community Plan area,
and then the bike improvements for Kihei-Makena Community Plan area, and the, the deletion of
the $300,000 that is identified in the Bikeway Fund for Countywide. Do I have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. GOODE: . . . Mr. Chair, can I ask for some clarification-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. GOODE: --on the Bikeway...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. GOODE: .. . portion? So. . .the submittal, the original submittal had Countywide Bikeway
Improvements, $300,000. And it appears that there's consensus to have 150,000 within the
Paia-Haiku Community Plan area, 150,000 within Kihei-Makena?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. GOODE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I just want to make sure that Mr. Goode. . .on the Paia-Haiku
one. . .that Mr. Goode is. . .aware that that's going to be for the Northshore Greenway, the
continuation of that, that bike path, that's what that is set for.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's correct. I think we discussed that when I first presented the budget and the
intent there was to do that last piece of the Northshore Greenway -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, we don't need to put a proviso in there?
MR. GOODE: --the design and EA money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We don't need to put a proviso in there for you then, you're going to
do that? You're not going to-MR. GOODE: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --sneak it somewhere else? . . . (laughter).. .
MR. GOODE: ... (Laughter)...
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh, he-MR. GOODE: Trust me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: He would have all kind complaints.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You have a bunch of people watching you. You know that don't you?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to maybe add assurance to the, to the Members'
concerns. Over the weekend, Staff will clarify the language, you know, this was kind of like a
shorthand just for your review today so we could get consensus on it. But next week when we
actually have the official document, it will have the, the language in there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
MR. GOODE: And, Mr. Chair, if I could -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. GOODE: --finish up on Kihei portion? Again, when I presented the budget a few weeks ago, on
the Kihei-Makena side, we have, we have an existing need to utilize the funds for an existing
project for this 150,000. If, if we can eliminate that, I would still use it within the district to help
look at the next phase of that bikeway, if that's acceptable.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is this...do I need to talk to Director Goode under road
improvements for Other? The bus stops and shelters, is that under his purview to discuss?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You don't care of bus stop and shelters, yeah? . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's-MR. GOODE: Well, this is a good question 'cause this might be for the new three positions.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not Transportation-MR. GOODE: I haven't talked to Ms. Johnson yet -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I have no idea.
MR. GOODE: --about who's doing what, but ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Probably Transportation-MR. GOODE: . . . they can get their -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because they did the last one.
MR. GOODE: --they can get their teeth wet with a little project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, we . . .
MR. GOODE: . . . (laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . put it under General Fund, Countywide, road improvements,
under Other. I guess that's-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: At the top of the page.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Mister-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, no, I see that, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, so that's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But who's responsible for the bus stops and shelters?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last ones that were approved was from Transportation Department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So maybe Transportation . . .(laughter). . . Department would be the ones to
talk to, and they probably pass it on to you. But . . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . I don't know . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, a good question would be-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to ask who's doing the existing bus stops right now. Is that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: It, it's-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Public Works?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --already...no, it's Transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, . . .(inaudible). . . yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So any more for Mr. Goode?
. . . Thank you, Dave.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
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MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you to the Committee. We're going to do our absolute
best on those positions. Thanks. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: Just to clarify the question regarding if it's. . .it's really up to the body, the Charter doesn't
preclude Public Works from doing bus stops and, and it doesn't specifically state the Department
of Transportation has to do bus stops so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. But I, I think that's you folks, yeah?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And just . . .(laughter). . . to clarify, you know, I don't know what direction
you guys going take--if it's Public Works or Transportation, because Transportation did the last
bunch of bus stop construction.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. We'll, we'll discuss that at the Administration level.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry. Mr. Goode does have an additional item, if you don't mind him discussing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I do.
MR. BAZ: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. GOODE: Do you mind?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I do mind (laughter). . . but what you got?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. I apologize for the last-minute
nature of this request, and if you'd like I could certainly come back later. . .but there isn't much
later to be had, as I understand it. Currently, in our CIP proposal, we have. . .a large project on
Kaupakalua Road for resurfacing. We identified another project for next year. . .in Lono Avenue
Improvements. And what's transpired over the last, actually, couple weeks, and I was just
informed yesterday by our Engineering Division is that the. . .well, a few things have happened.
One is we met with the State DOT along with the other County directors the other day, and the
State is really pushing for projects that can get moved up to move them up. And in this case, the
Lono Avenue Improvements, we were able to encumber with design monies at the end of last
fiscal year, and that project has actually been going really, really well in design. On the other
hand, Kaupakalua Road, which we've also got initiated with design, has hit some snags in that
the road--as not uncommon Upcountry--is meandering into adjacent properties. And so what
that means is we've got a lot more design work on the Kaupakalua Road project, including
possible land acquisition issues that we hadn't originally anticipated.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Chair?

MR. GOODE: And what the Division is request, and I'm supporting and hopefully you folks can
support, too, is to essentially swap those two projects--one from FY '12 to FY '13, one from '13
to '12. And the dollar amounts are very close. They're both Federal projects, so we have the
80/20 match. And. . .given the fact that the State is really pushing for ready-to-go projects, we
have a great opportunity to move Lono up, continue to work on Kaupakalua Road but tee it up
for next year. So, I've provided some draft numbers here to the budget. . .my budget chief-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: And we can go over those with you, but in a nutshell that's the opportunity that's in front
of us and now is the time to change it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Kahului will accept that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa-COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(laughter). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you heard what Mr. Goode had said-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to swap the dollars?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have no objection.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that's not her area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Kaupakalua Road, they having some problems in regards to-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, that's in my area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that's Mr. White's area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No. I, I just want to-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That, that's why I'm, I'm leaving it up to White
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's why she ... (Inaudible)... . . .(laughter). .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You heard Mr. Goode in regards to...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I think Mr. Goode's explanation -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Was good enough.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --makes sense and we should proceed with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We've got more work to do -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --on Kaupakalua. I have no problem with that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I agree.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you . . .(laughter). . . So--
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Staff-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --got that? Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everybody agree, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll do the change.
MR. GOODE: And so, Mr. Chair, I gave the numbers to Mr. Baz and he can share them with Staff. It's
very close to a swap, you know, couple hundred thousand dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Okay, Members-MR. GOODE: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Chair...that's all for Mr. Goode, right? That's all you have? Okay. The
Chair is going to call for a midmorning break. We'll take ten minutes. We'll reconvene at
10:50. And I understand that some Members have some appointments at 11:30 or need to leave
at 11:30. So, at this time, you know, you were handed out with the Capital Improvement
Projects Implementation Report for the second quarter as of December 31, 2010. The one that
the Chair had been requested, requesting from the Water Department. So, Members, if you can
review this, take a look at what's available. . .and the projects that are. . .on this list and, and the
progress that they made. So, we'll be in recess until...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Before you recess, can you, can you give us a projection of your
expectation for today?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . To complete the whole thing--revenues, operations, CIPs,
and, and hopefully we can come to an agreement by the end of the ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . by the end of the day, which is midnight.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, you're not expecting any long breaks or anything? We're
just going to go right through it, yes, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the only breaks that we take from now--hopefully, the Departments are all
ready to go--would be the lunch recess . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . the morning recess, and then the afternoon recess.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Let's just keep it short.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then we'll take a dinner recess-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --along with that. Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You've talked about an afternoon recess. Are you planning a dinner
break? And if you are-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, I just said that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --do you know when?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
- 43 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Any idea when?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Probably 5:30, 6 o'clock. I don't know what...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 5:30 would be wonderful.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. 5:30.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just so we can plan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a reminder the office, our office is buying lunch today here in the
back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So this meeting is in recess until 10:50. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

10:47 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:59 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members. . .you know, I was expecting a more updated report from the Water
Department, but. . .you know, this is the, the second quarter report as of December 31 st, 2010.
And if you note, you know, when you look at the balance side and, and. . .and the amended
lapse, there's quite a bit of money. And when you look at the remarks, you know, that's the
most glaring part--you know, if they started, not started. So. . .but before we go into the Water
Department, I'd just like to have Mr. Hokama share some information in regards to what's
happening at the Legislature at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. And I thank, you and Chairman Mateo, for allowing
me to go and get a sense of what has transpired. The good news is the Legislature has adjourned
sine die-COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(laughter). . .
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that's the good news . . .(laughter). . . However, Chairman, you know,
what I wish to share with you and the Members of this Committee that might be helpful is. . .still
yet the outstanding concerns with the Legislature adjourning yesterday on time. One, of course,
is the, still concern, well, it's a big concern, overriding concern, and that is why they are looking
at a potential summer session to, to possibly deal with their, their major concern, which it should
also be ours, is. . .more than likely the forecast from the Council of Revenues of reduced
revenues. 'Cause even with the so-called upbeat indicators, it's not translating into tax revenues
for, for the State and possibly for this County. So that's one of the major concerns--a lowering
of projected revenues. Also, talking to the business sector and our State leaders, another
concern, which basically, you know, the difficulty is how to mitigate something that occurs in
spurts and out of nowhere is also the cost of fuel. Besides the County, the State is also a great
user of fossil fuel. And the State is concerned also of certain key components or departments of
the State potentially. . .because of the spike in fuel costs will jeopardize also their potential
operations as well as some of their CIP. And one of the areas that I know is being reviewed now,
whereby they're even looking at changing consultants because of the cost factors and concerns of
funding, is the major renovation at Honolulu International Airport. And I don't know how, if
anything, it may ripple to Kahului Airport. But there are major concerns of funding and of those
improvements, which, you know, for me I feel is a benefit for this County. So, those are some of
the things that I think we should at least bear in mind as we make our decisions. 'Cause for me,
Chairman, now more than ever I am going to be more conservative 'cause I cannot take a chance
of these revenues that, that now is more questionable if it will be realized than not. So, I share
this with the, you and Members, to help us make what I would hope would be better informed
decisions, and to keep in mind. . .that, you know, this potential summer session, if it does occur,
may impact us greatly and make us have to consider possible revisions with our
Fiscal Year '12 Budget, also, to our departments. So, I would say save the cash and don't over
borrow, Chairman. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Yeah, I just was going make this comment that
while you were away we added 17,000 . . .(laughter). . . $17 million into debt. So, Members,
just a caution on, you know, going forward. And I thank you very much for the insights that,
what's happening at the State Legislature.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Chairman, it is one of the few times, I tell you, you could almost
literally cut the tension at the Capital.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That intense?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It well. . .got pretty tense . . . (laughter). . . Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see.
NOTE: Silence.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Okay, let's...on Page 3, we'll start from Page 3, Operating Budget.
. . . The Chair had indicated that the deletion of the Environmental Health Specialist V in his
proposal, and I still have some issues with . . .(laughter). . . Mr. Couch and Ms. Cochran in
regards to that one particular area. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I believe we . . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . we voted on it yesterday and it didn't pass.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We voted.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the Chair is looking for a reconsideration to delete the Environmental
Health Specialist V.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Move to delete.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Mateo. Members,
any more discussion?
. . . If not, all in favor of the motion to delete Environmental Health Specialist V say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Mr. Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, excuse me, delete it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Huh? . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Delete it, okay, that's an "aye". Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion is carried. Six "ayes"; three "noes": Member Couch,
Member Cochran, and Ms. Baisa. Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Carroll, Mateo, Victorino,
and White.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay. On the next page, Page 4, Department of Housing and Human
Concerns. We'll take the transfer to Emergency Fund later on. Department of Housing and
Human Concerns, Coalition for Drug Free Lanai. Mr. Hokama, I know you indicated. . .that you
wanted to do an amendment over here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Chairman, with respect to the Committee, and I
appreciate Mr. Couch's support to keep this alive till I was able to return. You know, after...it's
not that I don't want more money for our community and more money for our organizations, our,
you know, that do a good job, Chairman. But I think for, for me, you know, considering the
overall big financial picture of this County, I am. . .going to not request for additional funding.
And I'll. . .and again this is the minimum that they, they need and I'm thankful that the
Committee is supportive of the minimum consideration, and. . .we'll do our best, Chairman, that
hopefully next year things will improve whereby I will come forward with a...maybe another
type of request. But I, I thank the Committee for allowing me this opportunity. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Substance Abuse Program. . .provided that $100,000 shall be for
Maui Economic Opportunity B.E.S.T. Program. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As I explained yesterday, I was asking for
another 20,000 there, and then changing that 100,000 for B.E.S.T. to be 120,000. And you had
said you would consider that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's come back to that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know. . .I know we, you want to come back to that, but I
think now is the time to really discuss this matter. I do agree. . .with your proposal to make sure
100,000 goes to B.E.S.T. Program. I have no problem with that. I've had many calls, like some
of us, about the other programs and they're worried that they get cut in funding. And every one
of the programs in there are good, legitimate programs. You know it's really hard because we sit
here every year trying to decide which is better, which is worse.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But in the totality, everything works well. I would like to propose
we keep the 100,000, not add 20 at this time. And like Mr. Hokama has mentioned, hey, these
times are not looking good, so I know we're not going to be finding additional monies. So, I'd
prefer leaving the way you had proposed, Mr. Chair, and I would like to. . .take this as a vote.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Uh. . .the Chair will accept. . .a motion to ...
. . . move forward the Chair's proposal, as well as the Mayor's proposal, as proposed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member White. Any discussion?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I will be supporting this motion reluctantly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: My concern is not about the $20,000, but my concern is about the
impact on the other programs in this pot because they're all good programs, all doing good work,
and, you know, this is such a huge, huge issue in our community This substance abuse situation
is what is leading to a lot of the other problems that we have. And so, I am worried that, you
know, to do this might affect some other program, but if it's the best we can do, then I also feel
that B.E.S.T. is really important. Because if we can continue this program until such time as
things are more stable, Public Safety has a new director, and hopefully with the State getting into
a little better position I have, I know that she has a soft spot for reintegration programs, unlike
the, her predecessor. And so, we may see more sympathy and more support coming from Public
Safety for reentry. So, this money would allow B.E.S.T. to stay alive and take care of our folks,
maybe, until such time as we can get more support from the State. It is really important that we
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rehabilitate these people, otherwise we have nothing but problems surrounding their families,
their maintenance, crime, drugs. And we don't need this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You had asked that we try to find money and, and come up with some
things. I want to direct your attention to Page 2 of 9. . .where it says added, add development of
R-1 water $2 million. Ms. Cochran was kind of enough to let us know that. . .that got cut down
to $1.2 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, there's 800,000 right there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know, I understand, Mr. Couch. But we still need to deal with the Water
Department-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and the millions of dollars that they, they are requesting. So, at this time, the
Chair is going to call for the question. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let the record show eight "ayes"; one "no", Mr. Couch. Motion
carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Maui Aloha Aina, Office of the Mayor. The Chair had proposed
that. . .along with the Mayor, that the grant be $10,000. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, real quick, you skipped a couple. . .that weren't grayed out,
but they were there, that we don't have any actions on. There's Hospice Maui and the Special
Olympics.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm just taking care all this gray areas.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just the gray? Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, for Maui Aloha Aina, the Chair is recommending what is being
proposed by the Mayor and this Chair of an appropriation of $10,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Mateo, second by Member Hokama. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, again that's the one that several of us had thought that
adding back the $1,200. . .was important, but in light of . .Mr. Victorino's comments and
Ms. Baisa's comments. . .all I would say is if we can get some of the economic development
money that we're putting in there to go for this, I would appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino, followed-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would hope that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would hope that some of the Special Events fund or the
Agricultural Event funds could be assisting this program. It is a very good program. I've been a
part of it. But in light, and I'm saying this to one so I can't change my mind with the other, you
know, we are in austere times. And, and I've talked to Mr. Mina and he's supposed to have
gotten a complete breakdown of expenses and all that, and I guess we haven't received it as of
this time...not...that I have, you know, so have we received anything, Corp. Counsel. . .or Staff?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. KANESHINA: . . . Excuse me, Mr. Victorino, can you clarify your request for Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, my request is a breakdown of expenses, expenditures, and
income from Maui Aloha Aina, did we get anything from them?
MR. KANESHINA: I can, I can check but it doesn't, it doesn't appear that we did.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: I'm looking over at the, the Budget, Budget Office and they're, they're indicating
that they didn't receive anything.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I requested that from Mr. Mina. So. . .in light of all of that,
I will, I will reluctantly support this at this point, Mr. Chair, and so that we can move on. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. And I, too, realize that this is a very
important effort that's going on in the area of looking at new and different ways of farming and
sustainability and all of that. The only reason that I could support this is because we don't have
the money, first of all. This is really tough here. We're, we're really dealing with, you know,
life and deaths . . . (laughter). . . and really important needs. Not that this isn't really important,
but I think it has the potential, because of what it is and how it's reaching out, to raise a lot of
money. You know, when, when we were told that they had like 450 people at a conference and
we knew that the conference fees were in the area of maybe $180 a person or whatever, there is
money and they should be able to pay their expenses and realize that $12,000 without any
problem over a course of five events. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, I'll be supporting your recommendation for the $10,000.
Maui Aloha Aina does have, as it was indicated the other day, five different events that they also
charge fees for. So I'm kind of, I feel good that the reduction, the 12,000 could be recouped,
perhaps, through their ability to generate through their, their fees for services or their fees for
participation in the various five events that they run. So thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. I just have a clarification. It's been the Administration, you know,
the, the County's policy not to provide duplicative funding from different sources for the same
project. And it sounded like Council members were suggesting that this, this same project go to
other funding sources. So, I just wanted to clarify--is that the intent-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. BAZ: --of the Council?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that again?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, sorry, Mr. Chair. It's been historically frowned upon for agencies to apply for
multiple pots of money for the same projects. And from what I heard from the Council
members, I just wanted to clarify that that's...'cause they had mentioned that they could also
apply for other. . .event, special events kind of funding from OED for this. And I just wanted to
clarify that. . .is that the intent of the Council?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: For this Chair, I really discourage that. Yeah, we do have other grants that we
provide from different, well, different pots in this County. So that's something that we need to
address to ensure that, you know, there's no multi-funding from the various departments for a
particular non-profit.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Correct, Mr. Chair. And I know the, the County has been working on that for a
number of years and it's something that we're pretty good about not duplicating the, the funding
sources for a specific project. And I just wanted to confirm that that was-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --the continuation of what would...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Okay? Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For your Committee's, you know, the Staff researched it
and we looked and, and in reviewing the testimony we received this morning prior to 9:00 a.m.
or actually around 9:00 a.m., we did receive something from Mr. Mina. So. . .with, under your
guidance, can we perhaps. . .withdraw the motion and, and revisit this if, if you want this handed
out to Committee for consideration?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. I just going to go with the motion at this time.
MR. KANESHINA: Okay. But we did receive something from Mr. Mina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. As I mentioned yesterday, I think it's important for
the ag community work together. And without proviso'ing [sic] the money in the Farm Bureau, I
think I would like to. . .as ag chair, work with the Farm Bureau to see what events they may be
able to assist with and, and assist that way.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Okay, Members, all in favor of the motion, please
say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Head count . . .(laughter). . . Roll call. Mr. Mateo?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The motion is carried. Seven "ayes"; two "noes", Member Couch and
Member Cochran.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmembers Cochran and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lanai Economic Development and Cultural Programs. Uh . . .
. . . Before we go into that, let's go down to 11-11, MauiFEST.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair's recommendation is to add $20,000 for the MauiFEST. . .but after last
night's discussion and. . .two nights ago Mr. Hokama had indicated that he wants Lanai's portion
to go to Lanai through Lanai Economic Development Cultural Programs. So, the Chair's
recommendation is to...for the MauiFEST indicate...for MauiFEST for Molokai and Hana, that
each community receive $7,000. So, the Chair's proposal at this time is for $14,000 for
MauiFEST and the $6,000 for Lanai be moved to the Maui, uh, Lanai Economic Development
and Cultural Program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support that, but wouldn't it be better if we put 14,000 here
and then put the 6,000 where it, where it really belongs in Lanai?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Yeah, that's where I'm doing right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so that's your motion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So, we're going to take actually...we'll take Lanai Economic
Development...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But he still got 20 here. So, you gonna correct it? That's what
I'm...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Yeah, we're going to correct the 14-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I, I... so moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Second. Thank you. And the motion is to...for MauiFEST, the
Chair's recommendation is $14,000, provided that Molokai and Hana get each 7,000; and the
16,000...$6,000 be moved to Lanai Economic Development and Cultural Programs, so that
number increase to $41,000. Any discussion? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh. . .while in principle I support this, I'm just curious how this differs
from some of the other things, other things that we're saying we're not going to put in anymore
because times are tight. So, I just am trying to figure...justify in my head if we don't put in for
the other two, then why should we put in for this one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This is the Chair's recommendation. This is the Chair's proposal, and
the other two wasn't recognized in the beginning. Okay? Any more discussion? All in favor of
the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Seeing none, motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see.
... We get some funny kind over here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Special Events Program and Sports Events Program, the Chair's
recommendation is $85,000. But, Members, if you take a look at . . .
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: We, oh, we added a line.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm trying to find that line.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Bottom.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, down-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's down at the bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the bottom of the page.
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(inaudible). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Where it says "MW" . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MW? Grants and Disbursement-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for Economic Development. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: MW again, yeah? Oh, that guy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, it's supposed to be "JP".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's supposed to be No. 8, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair's rec . . .
. . . Chair's recommendation for that Grant and Disbursement for Economic Development is
$200,000.
. . . And for the Sports Events Program and, as well as the Special Events Program, those
programs will be deleted. . .moving the funding from that particular program to Grants and
Disbursement for Economic Development, $200,000. Staff, you got any questions?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I was just going to clarify...you know, I'm just going to
backup what you just said. We are, yeah, correct, it is Special Events Program and Special
Events Program as proposed by the Mayor, we're going to delete those two and consolidate it
into this Grants and Disbursements for Economic Development, and add an additional, it
appears, 115,000 to the total of 200,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any, any...the Chair is looking for a motion to do that.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member White, second by Member Couch. Any more discussion?
All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Seeing none, motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is this not where we're, I can proviso that Maui Nui Canoe Race?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, you can. Uh. . .when we come back again -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We'll come back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --add the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Okay, we go to Grant to Maui Visitors Bureau for visitors industry. The
Chair had proposed $150,000 to this area. . .to increase the funding for Maui Visitors
Bureau. . .from the Mayor's proposed budget, and the Chair's recommendation at that time was
$3.5 million. But, Members, we took a vote, we removed the 150, so the Chair is open to any
recommendation. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I move to...motion to go with the Chair's
recommendation with $150,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. It's been moved by Member Carroll, second by
Member Victorino. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I, I certainly support that change. And I, I don't know whether
we want to...well, I guess we, we'll just vote on this, but I, I support the two provisos as well.
This allows the current level of funding for Lanai and Molokai, which is at 150,000 to increase
by 100,000 for each island. And I support that, along with the Chair's recommendation of
$150,000 add.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion, Members? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So does that mean we are amending that to include the proviso?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let the record show motion is carried. Eight "ayes"; one "no",
Member Cochran.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Cochran.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . We'll come back to Environmental Protection. Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Victorino, you still want to...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair's recommendation is to put in one...the Chair and Mayor's
recommendation is to fund this Environmental Protection Program by $1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . No, I don't think we have to revisit this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair is looking for a motion to accept that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by, by Member Couch, second by. . .Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any discussion? All in favor, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, that was me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(inaudible). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thought you wanted to add more.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Department of Parks and Recreation. . .Page 6 of 9.
. . . The Chair's recommendation is the same as the Mayor's recommendation.
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. . . There was a proviso added. . .to increase South Maui Parks by $23,000 for this one particular
area.
. . . And then we already took care the $40,000 that was requested by the personnel at the
Lahaina Gymnasium for the Maui Invitational Tournament.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait, let me confer with Staff, fast one. Uh. . .the numbers.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The, the Chair's proposal was to increase by $40,000 for
West Maui Parks. I believe it was Member Couch that also in addition to that--and correct me if
I'm wrong--it was to add an additional $23,000 to that and...insert a proviso that it's for South
Maui Parks miscellaneous repairs and expenses.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, Mr. Couch, I think the reason why for the add was that there are a
group of volunteers that do work at that location and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --based on the comments of Pat Matsui when he was here, the Deputy
indicated that it was hard-pressed for them to provide the equipment and materials to support the
South Maui Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That is correct. It's to mainly assist with getting more bang for our
buck because those guys are doing a heck of a good job.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more discussion on this? So, the Chair is looking for a
motion to approve.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Couch, second by Member Victorino. All in favor of the
motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department of Transportation. The Chair's recommendation, along with
the Mayor's recommendation...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Could I just get a clarification? Did, did we have...did that pass?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The parks?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nine, zero. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Motion carried. Nine, zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Public Transit Program, Highway Fund. The Chair's recommendation
and the Mayor's recommendation is $6,977,500. I need a motion to approve.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Couch. Discussion?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, we talked yesterday about a proviso that we would ask for
an independent objective assessment of the mass transit program at this point, to look and see if
we can identify any possible cost savings so that possibly we could extend service to areas where
we can identify, you know, really poorly or, you know, unused routes and maybe we transfer
them to someplace else. And the idea of having an independent body do this would be that then
it wouldn't be, you know, perceived to be political or any kind of negativity but an assessment.
And it really is time because the program has come of age, but I don't know that we have that
wording.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa, we're going to have Staff. . .look into providing some money
within the Department, our Department, Council Services. . .to do an audit on the Transportation
Department, everything.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think that will help. . .not only us but the Department in moving forward on
the different programs that they have.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine. I just want to make sure that it's strictly not just a financial audit
`cause it really, I'm not alleging or concerned about, you know, financial improprieties, but I
would like to take a look at the reports and see because we all know that there are
under...underutilized runs. And yet other communities that would like to have service have been
told that there's no money to take care of it. So, if we can find that money, it won't cost us any
more money to add the service.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I call Member Cochran, I'll call on staff.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just for reference, you're correct, the Office of Council
Services is where the audit and audit-related monies are budgeted for. But be advised there are
two current items in the Budget and Finance Committee relating to the matters of
audit--performance audit of Department of Planning as well as a performance audit relating to
the Department of Water. So, we have two items . . .(laughter). . . relating to audit currently.
This would be a third. So, you might want to take that into consideration. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, everybody wants to say something-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, my God.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everybody. Ms. Cochran, first.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank, thank you, Chair. Hot topic. You know I did speak to
Director Winer in regards to this, and she is very open--but, of course, the, the budgetary, the
monetary portion, if it can come from Council Services, and now I just heard the, you know, the,
the...could be difficulty there. But an entire operate, you know, operational. . .the vendor
operations, better guidelines for RFPs, grant monitoring, and so on, and so forth. So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mister. . .who else?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch? Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I just heard Mr. Kaneshina talk about a Planning audit. Didn't we just
have one done just very recently? I mean, I saw the results of it, well, five, five...five years ago,
yeah. So are we doing another one? It's kind of expensive.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, it's up to this body if, well, the Chair would recommend doing one. We
have a new Director-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --who may have a new direction--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and the audit would help the Director move, to move the Transportation
Department in a direction that I think all of us wants.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . Okay . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I believe you have under umbrella items. . .under, for
performance audits, I think that's something maybe Ms. Baisa would embrace more, which is
more than a financial audit.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But I had submitted early in the session. . .for the Committee to consider
doing performance audit of Water and Public Works. I am very open, if we feel that
Transportation is a higher priority at this time, I'm more than happy to support that.
. . . And I would say, Chairman, I think the Council should every year-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --randomly do a performance audit on every department. Randomly so that
no one department can prepare in advance of us doing our, our requirements on the finance side,
our fiduciary accountability. So, I think it's a good idea, especially of the concerns that have
been brought up with the potential of impacting our ability to receive the Federal 5311 monies.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So makes sense to me, Chairman, if that's something, and it can also be a
tool to assist the Department-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, definitely.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in making improvements.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's not to be viewed-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I totally agree.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --as a punitive thing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's to be viewed as a tool to improve County services at the best cost
possible. And I think that's what we're all looking for, Chairman. And I thank you for this
opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And I can, and that's what I was going to
suggest, a performance audit. So thank you, Mr. Hokama, for that suggestion. And, and I think
a performance audit would really bring to light routes that are underutilized and where we could
make changes without expending any more money. So with that in mind, I would be happy to
support that, and hopefully we can put...find enough money, money to do the performance audit
for all three.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And somehow--`cause all three departments are crucial right now-Water, Transportation, and as well as Public Works. They're very crucial. So, I don't think one
is more important than the other when you look at the whole scheme of things and what we
expend on those departments. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member White? Oh, Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Chairman, thank you. And, and I really support the idea of an
audit of this Department. The audit, the audit, you know, has got to be inclusive not only of the
Department alone, but of its vendor operations as well. I think just this morning, you know when
we had, when we had MEO up here with the Director and the reference of pilikia between our
vendors, I think an audit will definitely help us to be able to alleviate some of the pressures that's
being built up throughout the last couple of months. And as Mr. Hokama indicated, there is
nothing negative about an audit. It really helps us to, to strengthen the Department in the areas
that they do need help in. So, I would be very receptive with the audit being done on, on the
totality of Department up and the vendors that's involved with it as well. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I'll instruct Staff to do that request of the audit. Okay, any
more discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Seeing none, motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Chair is going to stop right here-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank god.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and then when we come back, we'll start with the Department of Water
Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: huh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The. . .meeting is now in recess, and we'll reconvene at 1:30. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

11:40 a.m.

RECONVENE:

1:41 p.m.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee shall return to order.
. . . Members, Chairman Pontanilla will be coming forth shortly, but he asked us to continue the
work of the Committee regarding the Fiscal Year 2012 consideration.
. . . So for this portion, you know until Chairman Pontanilla returns, why don't we focus on Page
9 of 9, Members. This is under the Department of Water Supply, State Revolving Loan Fund
under the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula District. We have two things to consider. . .before the
Committee. One is the Piiholo Water Treatment Plant Improvements, Members; and the second
is the Waikamoi Flume Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Ms. Baisa, you have anything that you would like to give comment on,
on...well, why don't we start with the Piiholo Water component, first?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Chair, we've had a whole lot of discussion with this--both among
ourselves and with Director Taylor. And I think we have, you know, kind of beat it up. We all, I
think, I think there's a feeling we would like to fund this. . .but our concern is for the amount of
debt that we're looking at, and. . .that's one consideration. The other is that we do not wish to be
the stumbling block when Mr. Taylor, or if he, Mr. Taylor finds that he's ready to go. . .that he
doesn't have the funding handy to go.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause you know this is the number one priority for not only the
Upcountry District but for every district because water is where it's at.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we'd like to give Mr. Taylor every opportunity to be a rousing
success. And I, for one, am really reluctant to have to explain to the people Upcountry that we
took the water, the money out and then he had the opportunity and we missed it. So we're really
torn up over this one and we needed or wanted all nine of us to participate in the decision. And
that was not the case, so that's why it's still here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Baisa, for your comments. Before I call on other Members,
I'm going to go to the. . .two Member, the Members that had asked to have additional discussion.
So the next Member is Member Victorino. Any comments at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. And Ms. Baisa will well remember and
Upcountry people will well remember that the last two years I've been looking to get funding for
the Waikamoi Flumes through-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --State Revolving Funds and through our Federal-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we're on the Piiholo-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Water Treatment-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On Piiholo? Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. I thought was the Waikamoi.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we'll hit that next, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Piiholo, I have no problem. Thank you, Chair. I sorry,
sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. So, I'll ask the other Members to, if they have comments to
share.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Fine. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Actually, I was one of the ones that was requesting
comments on this one as well. Can we...yeah, I know we got this report -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --the CIP report and I have some questions on that. Is it possible to ask
Mr. Taylor about that or do you want to just go on? The only reason is, is, is I, too, don't want to
delay this any further. And we heard Mr. Taylor say that if we did this it might delay it several
months or put us in jeopardy at the end of the, the project and possibly getting fines from the
EPA. So, I would prefer to keep this in. But if we can take money out of here. . .and, you know,
without really knowing if this project is, is really going or whatever, I can't really tell if we have
enough money in here. 'Cause I'd certainly rather take it out of here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and for the Members, the other Members' information, I
believe Mr. Couch is referring to the CIP report from Department of Water Supply, Members-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that you have just received today from the Committee Staff. So, I'll take
your request after I allow the other Members to share whatever comments at this point in time.
Ms. Cochran, any comments at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I guess again, you know, if monies can be found, I'd like to see
the project happen.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any comments at this time on this Piiholo
consideration?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just that I would be very cautious at this point in time. It has been
said and we all seem to agree that we need to be very conscious of money spent now that might,
might be really in dire need of even later on this year. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, no, I'm ready to support the Chairman's
recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. This is a project that was obviously approved last
year, and, and it's a requirement that the, that the Department do this project. So, I'd, I'd like to
see it move forward. I'll go with the Chair's recommendation if it, you know, I would, I'd like
to see it stay in the budget so it can move as easily as possible. But I believe Mr. Pontanilla's
thought was to have them come back to us. But I...whether it's in the budget or not, I think this
entire body is supportive of this project and we need to do it. So, I'll, I'll go along with whatever
the recommendation is because I, I know that this is something that's got to get done and, and
will get done. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. The Chair is willing to...with no objections from the
Members of the Committee, to request Mr. Taylor to come forward, 'cause I would say it's an
interesting first page of report since they show no encumbrances on a lot of projects that's...has
a lot of money being appropriated on--in the millions. So, will...Mr. Taylor, thank you for
joining the Committee this afternoon. Mr. Couch, would you care to present your question -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --or comment to the Director?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Taylor, we, we have this report; unfortunately, it's only through
the second quarter of FY, which is the end of last year. And as, as Vice-Chair Hokama says, it's
very interesting and it appears that you got a lot of money. And, and I know appearances can be
. . . (laughter). . . deceiving. So, can you give me a. . .a heads up as to how much of this is...is
really available to us?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director, if you know we, you have some comment, please?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Obviously, there is quite a bit of money. The question is
when will we encumber it.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: And I think as all the Members know, the CIP fiscal year is 18 months versus
12 months for the operational fund fiscal year. So, how we look at CIP funding is. . .when are
we likely to encumber and when is...looking at the overlap of the fiscal years, how are we
balancing having funds for our projects to keep them moving forward. Some of the projects,
obviously, have difficulties beyond our control--such as permitting that, that are subjective
permits that we don't have a lot of control over. So you will often see, I think with all the, the
major CIP departments. . .the same project in different fiscal years--it's in a fiscal year, you run
into permitting problems or something, land acquisition problems beyond your control, so you
put it in the following year's budget and again there's overlap. We try to get them out as early as
possible, but I think for, for, when there is difficult permitting and difficult land use. . .land
acquisition issues, it's very often that you don't encumber all of the money and you have to
reappropriate a future year. So, without going through every single project--and, frankly, I don't
know the details on every single one of these project, and Mr. Chang's not available today--I
think in general that's why you see so much money, because these are headed towards
encumbrance, you know, at a, at a later point of time during the CIP fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. For instance, let me...I don't know if you have the report in
front of you, but on Page 1 there's $5.5 million, funds to lapse.
. . . Is that mean we have available $5.5 million or?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Mr. Director. . .Mr. Couch is referring to Kamole Waste Treatment
Plant, the high lift. This is from the State Revolving Fund for $5.5 million. And our notes to the
Committee is "funds to lapse".
. . . You know, if you have some comment, we would appreciate that, Mr. Director?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. TAYLOR: . . . I...okay, well. . .I know the construction...I know we, I know we signed a
construction contract. Exactly what funding it's using and, and what exactly this means, I am
honestly just not sure. But we, we have encumbered a construction contract and that project is
ongoing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Mr. Vice-Chair, I want this Piiholo thing to go on as quickly as
possible. I guess my charge to Mr. Taylor or question to him is, are there some funds in here that
you can use to start the project, and then when you come to us we can put the funds back to
wherever you took 'em from, or can we play with the money that way? 'Cause I. . .if, if we
choose to follow the Chair's recommendations--which I, I'm not inclined to do at this
moment. . .but it looks like it may happen--then you're, you're going to have to come back to us
for $5 million. But if you have enough money to start the project and it's going to delay
you...what'd you say, three or four months, possibly, and put us into fine time? You know we
could be getting--74-
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --fined at the end. In order to start that project, can you use some of
these other funds that have lapsed...that, that, that have gone away or, or haven't, the projects
have died? I don't know. I don't know how the, the funding of that works. But I'd like to see
you be able to continue on even if we kick, kick this out.
MR. TAYLOR: From a...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director, any comments?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. From a practical standpoint the answer is no. That's,
that's a...all or nothing project. It's not something that's done in little phases. It's in design
right now. We are working on the, basically the, I think I explained the other night the.. .
the. . .pilot testing of deciding which technology works; then we'll write the specs and, and plans
and put it out to bid. It's not large enough to do in phases. It will be a, a single contract or two
contract purchase all at once. So, we either have enough money or we don't. As far as using
other money, I. . .I guess I'm not exactly sure, maybe I need some clarification. Because we're
an Enterprise Fund, anything that isn't spent from the Department of Water Supply FY '10 or FY
'11, that goes back into our Fund for reappropriation by the Council to us anyway. So from one
sense, all of the Department of Water Supply money. . .if it isn't spent, we come back to this
Council and, and we ask to have it appropriate...appropriated again to our projects anyway. So
from that sense, that's always what we do. In fact, that's what we're doing now--if we don't
spend it and it's cash, we'll, we'll put it in as, as, you know, lapsed and carryover and-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Right.
MR. TAYLOR: --and add it to the budget next year anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: So from that sense, you're never doubly appropriating anything. Either we spend it or
we don't, and we reappropriate it. So it's really the same dollar that's just being reappropriated.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But some of the stuff that you don't spend, you can't put towards this,
in other words?
MR. TAYLOR: We would still have to come back to Council-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. TAYLOR: --unless there was some category that was, you know, Countywide water anything,
which there isn't any category like that, you know, that could be spent on anything. But there is
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no category. . .that we could really use--CIP that the Council designated for something and just
use it at our discretion for something else. So, either way we would have to come back to this
body and have it, and have the budget amended so that we're allowed to use it for this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: There's really no way to do that without coming back to this body.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One other thing is you had mentioned that if you put it out to bid,
it. . .and then you'd have to wait for us to fund it, and that's what might cause a delay. And we
subsequently found you can put stuff out to bid and. . .even if you don't have the funding, get
your bid, get our funding, and think that might, it might all gel at the same time and you won't be
delayed. Is that a possibility?
MR. TAYLOR: Of course. And, and the other night I think that's what I was, I was trying to...we were
all here pretty late, we were pretty tired. . .me, too. What I was trying to explain is that from the
timing on this project I was already looking towards the possibility of putting it in the
FY '13 Budget, which would follow the scenario you just laid out. We'd go out to bid next
March or say before we even had the money, open bids in July and use FY '13 CIP money to do
that. If that was our timeline anyway, you know, because it took that long to do the design,
technically, we wouldn't be losing any time. The question is there is one particular technology
that may work that isn't going to take a very long time to design 'cause it's sort of an
off-the-shelf type of, type of technology. If that happens, the design could be much, much faster.
We could get it out to bid maybe even by the end of this year and. . .in that case we would need
FY '12 money to encumber early next calendar year. So it's that scenario that would lose us,
you know, perhaps six months. If that technology works, we would still just have to wait till,
you know, till next summer to, to encumber a contract. So, I'm just simply pointing out that
there is a possibility we might be ready to go to construction much earlier than next summer.
But if it's not in the FY '12 Budget, then there's no way we'll be able to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . You know it's, it's, your, your Chair's understanding and it has. . .I, you
know, I have seen it done. . .whereby what, what Mr. Taylor mentioned is pretty correct. We
have allowed departments to go out for Request for Proposals--and, of course, it's part of the, the
preparation of notice and what the people will be applying for or putting proposals for, usually
have notations that it either, it's dependent upon funding and that it cannot, you know, your
awarding of contract and everything else will not happen until funding is available for the
project. So, technically, you know, Mr. Taylor can go out and if he gets a great price, he can
come back to us because it will part of the RFP proposal. The, the, the execution or notice to
proceed on the contract cannot be done till the funding is done. He can come back to us and say
I have a price. This is the price for the job and I need an appropriation to give notice to proceed.
But they can do all the preliminaries in advance of the request for funding. That has been done
before. And I've seen it done. Whether I agreed with it or not it, it has been done. And I think
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Corp. Counsel will be able to verify that we have done proposals with that type of caveats in the
proposal so it's upfront to all the applicants that it cannot go forward till funding is sufficient.
Would, is that correct, Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: Yes, Mr. Chair. And the Committee did discuss that last night, and we did confirm with
Purchasing that that has happened in the past.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you so much. So, again, Members, I'm just letting you know
that there's more ways to skin the cat than the traditional way. And so, you know, I, you know, I
sense the priority of this project, and yet I still want to honor the Chairman's position at this
time. But since he's back, I'm going to take a short recess so that Mr. Pontanilla can resume the
chair and we can brief him on where we are with the status. So, please stay in the Chambers.
Recess subject to the call of the Chair. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

1:56 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:58 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, I understand we are at the Piiholo Water Treatment Plant
Improvements-Organic Carbon Reduction. Members, any discussion? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. It's sometimes better to be on the floor so I can ask
my-ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --my, my . . . (laughter). . . my things than, than conduct the meeting.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But, Mr. Taylor, you know, what I would like to ask is, you know, I know
like, you know, this was requested before. . .part, you know, monies for this, this projects. And
for various reasons, you know, situations occurred where we could have gone forward as best,
much as we had wanted to. But . . . (sigh). . . again, yeah, with this being requested and in my
review of what was presented to the Committee under rates and fees. . .I'm wondering why there,
there's not adjustments 'cause I'm sure you're going to come to us for, for a payment or fee, fee
program adjustment to take care of this additional debt. So, how much impact or why isn't there
some kind of adjustment in this proposal on the assumption that some of this debt might be
approved and that would be how we would pay for it or you just rather defer? 'Cause I'd rather
deal with the smaller increases than larger in...you know, increases at one time. So you, can you
give us some comment about. . .the approach to paying for this projects?
MR. TAYLOR: Sure, or course.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: I think for all of the debt for Capital projects, and especially for SRF projects, it's
important to note that we don't start paying debt service till some later time. In this case, and
this isn't just for Department of Water Supply, it's probably for most of the infrastructure
departments--if we float bonds and then use that to encumber construction projects and start
spending money towards the end of the fiscal year, even though we use the bond money to
encumber the contract we haven't started paying debt service on that this fiscal year. It will be
next fiscal year that we start paying the debt service on that bond. And for SRF, I believe, I
believe that the, the...it's been a while since I worked with one myself, but I believe that the
payment doesn't start until a year after the project is completed. So, you're talking about a
FY '14. . .rate adjustment to account for this debt service. So, we could, I mean from a County
policy standpoint, we could just start raising rates every time we, every time we float bonds. We
could raise rates and just start storing that money, knowing that it's coming. But we'd store that
money for at least a year until we need that money to start paying off debt service. So, I think it
has to do with the, the cash flow of, of bond and SRF financing--which is why that isn't
calculated in this budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and that's why I appreciate you being, being telling us how you see it
because we're the guys that going to have to figure out and come up with the final debt service
and debt payment schedule after, you know, consulting with you and the Department. But my
thing is we know we going have to pay for this. So, if let's say, we're going to have raise
10 percent of the, the fees, I would rather start this year and go in simple, in simple adjustments,
do 5, maybe 2 percent increases a year for 5 years instead of starting 2 years later and then
having to tell the people, oh, you know what, we're going to hit you for 6 percent this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then we're going come back for the 4 in the second year because we
got to make up this whole debt service. And then who knows what may happen? You may
come and say you not going believe it, guys, this reservoir just collapsed, I need 50 million, we
got to redo a 10...100 million gallon reservoir or something that we had no idea of but it
occurred.
. . . I, I hate to take chances on a perfect scenario 'cause you know it's my experience it will
never happen. So, I would rather calculate in advance because even if we're holding it for one
year we're going to be gaining hopefully some interest off it, short term interest, which hopefully
will help also reduce the overall principle when, once we get down to our debt schedule. That's
my approach. Okay? And I hope you can appreciate my, my way of how to pay the bills while I
still understand your, your approach to operationally getting it phased in on how you see it. But
for me as the guy that got to pay the bill, I'm not as comfortable doing it your, your way,
Mr. Taylor. So, I just wanted to, you know, have this discussion about how we're going to take
care this $15 million pay back once we, if we move it forward.
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MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chairman, may I-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. TAYLOR: --may I make comment? Member Hokama, I completely agree with you. We do not
have different ways of looking at it. I agree 100 percent. If, if I back off to, to my last job as
Wastewater Chief, if you remember some of the stuff, some of the exhibits we showed you--the
20-year plan with CIP projects and 20-year rate schedules to support that, that went along with
another, another thing I think we showed you in some PowerPoints showing the debt service that
we were, we were getting rid of versus what we'd come on to. And we modeled all that to say
what are the rate increases to support the long-term project. So, as Wastewater Chief, a year ago,
I was very comfortable coming and saying here's how this project will affect rates three, and
four, and five years from now. Part of me, when I took this job, because that stuff didn't exist,
wanted to just come in this year and say well, we just won't ask for any CIP because I, I can't
tell you that story for the next five years. But I don't think just putting everything to a stop
because we don't have all the information is very wise. So, we are currently working on an
identical methodology and long-term rate modeling program that we developed back in
Wastewater. It's following exactly the same templates. I believe that next year in budget, I will
be able to answer that question with some, with some, some graphics that show you how fast
we're getting rid of debt, how quickly we'd have to take on debt, how that's going to affect rates,
and give you a little longer term picture about how CIP this year will affect rates three, and four,
and five years from now. I do not have it this year. Even the model we used for rates can't even
do that. We have to, we have to have a new model built for us. So, there is just no way we could
have that information this year. And again, I debated just not asking for any CIP until we could
have this 'cause I'm so uncomfortable with it, but the fact is the projects are all necessary
regardless of what the debt service is going to be in three years on it. We know we're going to
have to do them anyway so there's no reason not moving forward just because we're not sure
whether it's going to equate to a 3 percent rate increase or a 4 percent rate increase. That doesn't
seem like a valid reason to put the, the...everyone's public health and, and, and water availability
in jeopardy. So, from a quick number, what we can realize is that for, say, every $10 million we
borrow, it costs about 900,000 a year for 20 years to pay that off. Our revenue is about
50 million a year. So with just one quick number that I keep in my head is for every $10 million
we borrow, that's about a 2 percent rate increase to handle that debt service. I mean that's, that's
a rough number right there. And so, because we're taking on debt faster than we're retiring it,
we realize that a decade ago CIP was maybe half of what it is now, so you realize that that debts
coming off. So, you figure that, you know, increased CIP is going to add 2 or 3 percent a year to
rate increases, you know, plus electricity another few percent. And so, I think we're talking
about mid- to high-single-digit rate increases over the next decade or so to handle this larger CIP
expenditure plus increased replacement and, you know, increased operational costs. And I think
just, you know, you can kind of ballpark those numbers in your head. It's not going to be a
20 percent rate increase. It's not going to be 2 percent rate increase. We're going to probably be
in that 5 to 8 percent a year to balance it out. And I think just, you know, dry erase board kind of
numbers are going to lead to, to somewhere in that neighborhood.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: And I have enough experience back with the Wastewater numbers that I feel
comfortable that the numbers are of the same magnitude. And I'm sure that's how they're going
to crunch out. But that's sort of my guesstimate based on experience. And, and I'd be very
surprised if I'm not in the ballpark. So I, maybe that explains what to expect next year and the
year after from how we're going to present things and what kind of numbers to expect in the next
couple years.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: Again, just sort of guesstimates, but I -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. No.
MR. TAYLOR: --I have pretty good confidence in those.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I think you're in the general ballpark, plus or minus so many, you know,
points on, on the percent, Mr. Taylor. I was looking at 8 to 10 myself. But, you know, 5 to 8, I
mean we're, we're close, we're close with estimate.
MR. TAYLOR: Again, mid- to high-single digits. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, but and again . . .(sigh). . . you know, we're going to have to
come up with a plan working with you to present to...the ratepayers . . . (laughter). . . And the
way we work our system, okay, but we're also looking at increased debt from sewer. So the way
we do billing, right, people, you gonna get the water bill and the sewer bill one time, and they're
going to see whack, whack on two, the two components of their bill. And let me tell you, just on
the sewer side, I get it back home on Lanai . . . (laughter). . . all the time . . . (laughter). . . Okay?
So, now I'm sure we're going to hear...and, and that's why I ask you these hard questions and I
appreciate your candidness because we're talking big money. It's going to definitely show up
and they're going to pay, everybody is going to feel it in the, in the billings eventually. But I
think we need to be upfront and start talking about it sooner than later, because later is when we
already implementing the increases. I think we need to help educate and prepare that this is what
you helping to pay for and we're going to adjust your bills, and this is the improvement you can
expect, and this is what you get back from the County's investment. But, you know, until we ask
this questions, we haven't really talked about this type of 5, between 5 and 10 percent increases a
year. A year.
MR. TAYLOR: And for the last four months, your speech there sounded exactly like the speech I give
every other week to my staff about the importance of all these special projects that, that I've
assigned them--to start quantifying these things we have to do. They completely understand how
the, how that Wastewater budget presentation was put together. And they all understand how we
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have to do the same thing. That's something over the last five years, as Wastewater Chief I took
on the road to, you know, every Kiwanis and Rotary, and all these different, Chamber of
Commerce, and explained to people how we figured this out, why rates are going up. I think in
general, though no one wants to pay them, I think there is this general transparency that nobody
thinks it's, it's voodoo. I mean, everybody understands how...what we're doing, what they're
getting out of it, how much it's going to cost, and how we calculated it. Again, we are just going
to bring those same methods of communication here to Water. All these things are being worked
on. I hope that next year in budget we have a presentation that looks a lot like the Wastewater
financial outlook budget--that is longer term, shows debt that's retiring, debt that's being taken
on, rate, rate improve...or rate increases and how those are linked I think what the public really
needs to know--and I think this is a good...forum for that--is we all have to be clear that CIP
borrowed money this year is going to increase rates and fees in a couple years. And the rate and
fee increases this year are because of debt service and CIP -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Of previous years.
MR. TAYLOR: --that we took on a couple of years ago. Essentially, you know, the decisions of rates
and fees this year for water and sewer were decided two years ago when that CIP was approved.
And there's really nothing you can do about it now. You can really only affect rates two years
from now. And I think we all have to understand that the decision-making versus the impact is
two to three years out of phase. And that's just how the financing and those, and those. . .for
those large infrastructure projects pans out. There, there's no other way to look at it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Taylor, I appreciate your candidness. I mean, you know, nobody likes
to hear rate increases, but I think we need to be upfront that this is coming and we need to
prepare our community to be ready for make those adjustments in even their own whole,
household budgets because they're . . . (laughter). . . going to get the bill from the County if they
using water service and sewer service from us-MR. TAYLOR: And-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know.
MR. TAYLOR: And if I may? Over the last couple of weeks, I've been at a couple different meetings
with my colleagues at the other counties, and they are all sending the same message--Kauai, Big
Island, City and County of Honolulu. . .water and sewer, everybody is in the same boat. I mean,
all this infrastructure was built at the same time. It's all failing at the same time. It's in the
news, you know, once a week. Everybody is faced with either raise rates or catastrophic failure
in the point, in the not real distant future. We're not alone. It's not different here than it is in
Atlanta or Denver, or anywhere else, or even the other counties. This is the same discussion
happening in 5,000 other city council chambers across the country and the news is exactly the
same in exactly everyone, and it's a 5 to 10 percent rate increase over the next 10 or 20 years,
you know, annual rate increases. That's what it's going to take. If you were the City Council of
Atlanta, Georgia it would be the same numbers and you're going to be having the same
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discussion. This is a national issue. Everyone was paid for at the same time. We're all having
to replace it at the same time. This is nothing unique that you folks are facing, and everybody in
the country is in exactly the same position.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Director. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One of the areas that I, you know, I, I know whenever we do
major capital improvements projects, somebody has to pay. And like Mr. Taylor had said, you
know, we don't see it two, three years down the road. But one of the other concern that I have is
that since we got to pay that obligation and we're looking at valuation of real property--and we
just confirmed that. . .with the Real Property Tax Division that the valuation is continuing to fall.
So, now, who, you know, we're going to have to tax our people again. And, you know, we're
raising rates today. Can you imagine two, three years from now? I'm not going to here but, you
know, some of you will be here to face that problem. So what do we do? What do we do? And
then the other thing for Mr. Taylor, you know, here we are, you know, we're requesting through
the State Revolving Fund, and one of the questions that I had is, have is that since all of the
counties throughout the State of Hawaii is, you know, fighting for the same dollars, if we don't
get our share, what is the backup plan?
MR. TAYLOR: . . . Backup plan? . . .(laughter). . . No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bond?
MR. TAYLOR: . . . (laughter). . . Um...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: A bond request?
MR. TAYLOR: Absolutely. I think that we...for, for the projects that have to happen, our number one
choice is SRF loan money 'cause it's a little bit cheaper. So. . .but remember, we still have to
pay debt service on them. It's not a grant. It's just a little cheaper. . .loan. So, our backup plan
is to come to the Council for a budget amendment to change SRF funding to GO Bond funding if
we lose it. And obviously that is going to--you know, real quick--for every $10 million, you
know, you're looking at...if it's a 1 percent change in interest rate, you know, you're looking at a
rate increase of, of less than a 1 percent to make up that difference, probably. So, essentially
we'd come back and say look, we can't borrow money at 4 percent, you know, we need GO
Bond money at 41/2 percent or whatever it is. And, you know, two years later, instead of rates
going up 6 percent, they're going to have to go up, you know, 6.3 percent or something. So, I
mean that is the backup plan. We know we're going to borrow money to do this. We're going to
try to borrow it at the lowest interest rate possible, and the backup plan is to borrow it at a little
higher interest rate. And the backup backup-plan is that, you know, if we really need to separate
ourselves from the GO Bond limits, the Department, the County and the Council may want to
look at going to Revenue Bonds for the Department of Water Supply which are a higher interest
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rate. We would have to raise rates so that our, our ratio of, of cash to debt is a little higher. But
we could pull ourselves out of the, the sort of competition for County GO Bonds and move to a
Revenue Bond structure. You know, that is, that is really the backup backup backup-plan
because, obviously, the interest rates are going to be higher. So, I think in general we're still
focused on. . .borrowed money to do large infrastructure projects that have a long-term value at
the lowest interest rate possible--which is (a) SRF Loans, (b) GO Bonds, and (c) if we have to,
you know, possibly have to move Revenue Bonds. So, I, I think the next 15, 20 years, I mean
that is future. And the question is, you know, how, how, how can we best manage that. . .that,
that effort.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Taylor. And, you know, Members, yesterday we came to...an
agreement that we're going to, you know, fund the police station, which is another $17 million.
So, you know, take everything into perspective, you know, 5 here, 10 there, we got 17. So, right
now, the authorization for the Bond is 38 million. With the 17, we're just about there. So, those
are the things that I, you know, I hope that you guys consider, yeah. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. I'm sure everyone understands this
is a very important issue for me; however, I am very much aware of what Mr. Taylor is talking
about, about, you know, the rate increases that are necessary for us to do what we need to do.
But, you know, I talk to people about this constantly. If I don't want to talk to them, they want
to talk to me because . . . (laughter). . . you know, everywhere you go they want to know what's,
what are we going to do about the water problem. And they also, right now, are very much
aware of the discussions that are going on here. And I've had many e-mails with people with a
lot of concerns about how can you even consider not funding Mr. Taylor's request, because, you
know, we've promised the timing is now, he's ready to go, how can you guys do this? And so, I
also have heard something else that I've never heard before, which I think is very interesting.
People feel, a lot of the people I've talked to--and I know generally nobody wants rates increases
and nobody wants taxes--if people are assured that by raising these rates they will see the
improvement, they can live with it. I think their frustration is that there continue to be increases
but no results. So, we're at that pivotal moment--do we take the chance, produce some results,
and people will say, okay, my money was well spent; or do we not take the chance, not do it, and
then nobody believes us anymore? So, you know, Mr. Taylor, a lot of this rides on if we raise
this money, can we produce the project and get the results.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Member Baisa. And, and. . .I'm having flashbacks back to my
confirmation hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. TAYLOR: Um .. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we remember, too.
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MR. TAYLOR: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. TAYLOR: You know I think you're asking a couple different questions, and I, I...it's important to
untwine them. If the Council can...if the Council continues its current philosophy of growth
pays for growth, we'll call it that. . .then the debt service on the bond for new sources wouldn't
be paid for by rate increases. It would be paid for by increased meter fees, which is something,
you know, we haven't even talked about. So, I think what a lot of people do not understand, I
think most people don't understand is that their rates have been going up because the cost of
operations have been going up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: We don't raise people's rates. . .to get other people online
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, no.
MR. TAYLOR: We don't, Wastewater doesn't, Maui Electric doesn't. Right, those are hookup fees or
meter fees.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: So what we're talking about is, is kind of two different things. Rates are going up
because operational costs are going up. What we're talking about is taking on more debt that
we're going to have to get by, get back from increased meter fees-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: --or water source development fees. And this is going to go into, into your committee
as you guys go through the Maui Island Plan--I'm just going to make this last tie-in 'cause -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: --I think this conversation. . .we have to remember this over the next year. . .the Maui
Island Plan takes the approach that there will be impact fees paying for things. Well, impact fees
depend on the County fronting the infrastructure and collecting it later. So, if the County, if the
County is at the point where we can't afford to front more infrastructure--right, we just don't
have the debt, the bond capacity to do that--then that's going to have to be discussed in the Maui
Island Plan context of, well, can we really people that we're going to be fronting infrastructure
and having them pay impact fees? 'Cause if we can't do the debt, if we can't float the bonds,
well, who's going to front this infrastructure? So, I think this discussion is so important. I'm so
glad we're, I'm so honored to be part of it. I'm so glad we're having it because basically
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everyone's ideas are based on floating a lot of money and getting it later. But if we can't float
it. . .well, then it doesn't even matter how we're going to get it later. So, I think what we're also
leaving out, again, is these meter fees--which we're going to have to go up a lot. And the
director of Kauai Water Supply has told me, I mean, his numbers come out to $22,000 for a
5/8-inch meter. We're charging 6 right now, $6,000. You know, so I imagine that Kauai is
going to be about the same cost as us. So, he's saying that that's their real cost of developing
new source, that their real meter fees are going to be 6,000 or $22,000 a meter. I don't know if
the, the Council's going to approve that, but again that's what it might take to pay off this debt
service. So that's really what you tell your constituents--it's not their rates that are going up,
that has nothing to do with it, it's how much our meter fee is going to up to support this. I think
that's really what the issue is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for that clarification. I think it's really important because I
think that is a broad misunderstanding that, you know, increased rates, well, we should have
what we need, we should have these results. And it's, obviously, a separate matter that's going
to require more than increases in rates, but also increases in fees and whatever you pay. So, it's
good to have this discussion. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Fast question. Who pays for the water meter
fees? New construction?
MR. TAYLOR: Everyone either upsizing a meter or getting a new meter pays those water source
development fees. And those are what go into, what we've been referring to here as, the
restricted funds, meaning we can't use that to buy vehicles, we don't use it for salary or
operation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The comeback question to that is that knowing that construction
is at a standstill almost, how do we know that . . . (laughter). . . you know, it's going to start
coming up again two, three years from now? And are we stuck with that investment up to that
particular period?
MR. TAYLOR: During my confirmation hearing, I brought up the Kihei Wastewater System impact
fees. The County fronted the money for the, the Wastewater, the Kihei Wastewater Treatment
Plant to be upgraded and said, well, we'll use impact fees to pay off the Debt Service.
Construction did not happen as fast as everyone thought and sewer rates had to go up to pay that
Debt Service--essentially, you know, paying for things that weren't being used. Now, eventually
people will come in, we'll collect some of that, we'll collect that money back, but it's the
County's risk. I mean, this is something so important for infrastructure funding. If we float
bonds and build it--saying if we build it, you know, they will come. . .and they don't, you have to
raise rates of existing folks to pay that Debt Service. Somebody has to pay it. So, it is a risk if
the County is going to say we're going to float bonds for the future--you know, that's a risk that
everyone shares. Whether that's good or bad is up to you folks. But, yeah, if construction
doesn't happen and we develop all this source. . .and that's something I've talked about for the
Upcountry meter list. If, for example, we, we develop expensive sources and tell people look,
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it's not $6,000 a meter it's much, much more and they can't pay that, well, then we've got a well
that's not functioning, that we have to raise rates to pay the Debt Service on. So that's one of the
reasons we're doing our extensive internal study of how much this is going to cost, et cetera. But
these are real issues about, you know, who's going to pay this off, and if they can't. . .the existing
ratepayers are going to have to, you know, foot the bill for that, that, that equipment that isn't
really necessary.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I hope those guys, those people Upcountry, you know, that's
waiting on the water meter list, you know, is, you know, looking at our proceedings here because
we have over 1,200 on the waiting list. Can you imagine by the time we get through with this,
you know. . .the cost just to install that water meter for each individual. . .they may change their
mind.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know. Members, any more questions? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair, you said something about that...our bond limit
is 30...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right now authorized is, authorized is 38 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thirty-eight million? That's on bond. Is this, this is coming out
of. ..uh...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: SRF loan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: SRF loan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So are they two different things?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two different things.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Okay. So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: The talk is that if we don't get the SRF loan and we say we're going to do this
project-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then we have to...okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, if that's the case then don't we...doesn't he have to come back to
us anyway?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. I, I still...I'm with Ms. Baisa that, that we really...this is
something that, that we all, where a lot of us campaigned on and a lot of us said, you know, if we
do this you're going to have to, you know, pony up. And this is one of the ones that, that...this
and the next one are going to be, we need to get this done. I think I'm going to stand with
Ms. Baisa on that one. You know, I hate opposing you, Chair . . . (laughter). . . it's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, no. You know, we all got to remember that somebody got to pay for
this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I understand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, if people would understand that if we do it then. . .people just got
to be ready.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'm a little confused 'cause it sounds like some of us
think that this is going to take care of the Upcountry water source. This is not an increase in
source.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: This is simply-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --you know, taking care of purification. So. . .I totally support this
project. Personally, whether it's in this year's budget or not is not going to make a difference to
Mr. Taylor, because he's...my understanding the other night was he said if it's not in the budget,
the timeframe within which he needs to go out to bid, he can come to the Council for, for
funding. And I think everybody in this, on this body is, well, ready and willing to support this
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item. This is a required project. We can't get away from it anyway. So, I think we need to get
on to some other items, and, you know, I'm, I'm totally in support of the project but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the, the only reason I mentioned those water meter lists, because of the
comment that the Director had said that. . .the water, water meter fees will increase to pay for
part of this infrastructure.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. TAYLOR: . . . I apologize, Mr. Chair, I guess I got confused talking about this versus
. . .(laughter). . . the other one. This project, if we're talking about Piiholo, then the Debt
Service on this would be paid for by your, your monthly water bill; not by water meter fees,
`cause it's not source.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Like, like you mentioned. So, I apologize for that, for that
miscommunication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members . . .(laughter). . . any more questions for the Director?
. . .(laughter). . . Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, just a quick comment. And, you know, I think Mr. White summarized
it quite well--now. . .it's our, you know, we're going to have to do it eventually anyway so--but I
just, you know, want, want the whole general community to understand. You know we, we get
. . . (sigh). . . policy from community plan areas, and we, we...most of us are very well aware of
the Upcountry community plan and their policy with water. And yet, through this project
proposal, all the users is going to pay for the improvement. . .although the Upcountry thing is we
not, we don't want to share our water.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hmmm.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, just remember the whole group, though, is paying, going to help pay for
this.
COUNCILMEMBER

: That is true.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And so-COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(inaudible). . .
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --those are the kind of policy things I think eventually we're going to have
deal with, because I don't want other districts say, well, if one district can say this for this source,
then my district going to say no to cash to move out of my district then. Or one other district
going say, fine then, I don't want any commercial or, or civic business to be outside of my
district. You know, I'm not into that kind of approach to, to County spending. I think if we help
one district, we help the whole County. . .because we're all connected. I just look at us as one
big community made up of unique regions and unique smaller communities, but we're just one
big community So, I can support this. But I want them to just be clear that the whole user base
is going to help improve the whole system-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and it's not just about one district only. By helping Upcountry, I think I'm
helping Lanai eventually also because eventually some other type of resource may be able to
help me and I would like to hope that Upcountry people would support us on Lanai, too. So, if
people can understand some of our philosophies here--that this is about all of us trying to solve a
problem, even if it's basically an Upcountry issue at this point in time, I think by helping
Upcountry we all help ourselves, Chairman. So, I thank you for allowing me to share some
thoughts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Question for Corporation Counsel in regards to the budget
ordinance. If we agree to this ...
. . . authorizing the Mayor of Maui County to enter into an intergovernmental agreement, you
know, when we pass the budget, when you look at the document, the document had, you know,
stated that. . .request for loan, the County of Maui, pursuant to Chapter 3.40E, Hawaii Revised
Statutes, has submitted an application for a loan from the Drinking Water Treatment Revolving
Loan Fund. So, will this automatically authorize the Department to go pursue that?
MS. HEELY: . . . Yes. Under the Code, unless authorized by ordinance, the Mayor shall not enter into
any intergovernmental agreement. . .which places a financial obligation upon the County or
department. And typically in the past, we've, in the budget...bills for these ordinance, it...we
have not included the, the agreement. But that part of the Code also states that the Mayor,
within, upon entering into that agreement, has to submit a copy of that agreement to the Council
within a few days or so. But the bill for ordinance is just requesting the Council's authorization
for the Mayor to enter into that intergovernmental agreement for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, then...this statement in here need, needs to be in here?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. HEELY: . . . The, the agreement does not need to be in there, but the bill for an ordinance
authorizing the Mayor to enter into the agreement needs to be in there.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to this
matter? I know it was hotly . . . (laughter). . . debated
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, you know, we all looking at cost right now and the debt we incurring for
the County. We all got to understand that if we move forward on this project, that fees need to
be raised. . .also if it, if it don't go through the SRF loan process then, you know . . . (laughter).. .
the ratepayer is going to have--not "the ratepayers", but the real property tax, it comes under the
General Fund and everybody pays. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I just wanted to ask if you would be open. . .and it's something
we don't normally do--the State, the State Legislature does it as a way to keep projects alive.
But if the key is, again SRF, which is the preferred method the Department has requested. . .and
we know we going, it's going to have to come back to us anyway, leaving it in but changing the
dollar amount of the appropriation so that it's, it's still in the budget document. But I know the
State usually puts $1-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --to keep it alive. Just to keep the project alive, knowing that it's going to
have to come back to get the approval for the full funding. So, is that something we, we can
consider as an option to keep it alive so that when he comes back for the SRF approval. . .then
we're going to have to do the budget amendment anyway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's something I can consider.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, so, if he needs something to show that is the Council still, it's still in the
budget. . .but we not sure how we going pay for it, but we committed to it. . .you know if, if
that's something that's an option, then I would say. . .maybe the Committee should consider it.
And if it's not a viable option, then we can just discard it. But I just thought I would offer that as
another approach since we're looking at how we going calculate all our eventual Debt Service.
`Cause we're going to have to calculate this 5 million which may not happen, but it's going to
adjust all the cash flow and the debt service sheet that's going to be prepared for this upcoming
approval of increased debt. Yeah, and one last thing, Chair. While I agree with you that General
Obligation money--normally we're looking at 38, 40 million--I hope that that doesn't mean we
don't have a ceiling for other types of borrowing either. Because it's still debt. It still comes on
Debt Service. So, even if General Obligation for us is generally 38, I wouldn't say that we
would, should look at SRF as no ceiling. I would say we should keep borrowing under
75 million total this year.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And we've added provisos in, in the bond request
that, you know, we'll authorize up to a certain point, anything above that or. . .and we'll, we had
whole projects in abeyance, that they come back to the Council for approval--similar to what
we're going to do with the Kihei fire [sic] station. . .that they come in for a budget amendment to
borrow money through General Obligation Bonds. Corporation Counsel, what Mr. Hokama had
suggested, is that something that we can consider?
MS. HEELY: . . . Yes, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Interesting proposal by Member Hokama. Is that just to, is
it your understanding that's just to show that we are committed to having this project done -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --just come to us when it's ready to be funded?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. When they receive...that they know that they're going to get the SRF
loan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then I, I guess the question to Mr. Taylor would be is that something
that you could...when, if we did something like that, would that show you that we had the
commitment and we're ready to go, just when you, when you have the price tag come to us?
MR. TAYLOR: Uh. . .you don't have to show me that you have the commitment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. TAYLOR: I mean, I, I don't. . .you don't answer to me, clearly. We're continuing to work on this
project regardless of what action you take. We are moving towards blueprint production, you
know, and we are moving toward specification production, and we are moving towards bidding.
And we are going to keep moving on that regardless of what action the Council takes. At some
point, if there is not money to support that project, we will come back here--either to change it
from $1 to $5 million or to have it added in. So, we're still going to have to come back here. . .if
the money is not at the requested level for FY '12. And, and it's not going to change anything
we do between now and then. So I think it's really up to you folks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then, Mr. Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --my thing is, again, is why, why make him come back? Let's just put
it in. We know we're going to do it. Everybody agrees with the project. I'm just a little
-91-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

confused as to--and I understand it's going to be debt, whether it's debt this month or two
months from now or four months from now. . .it's still going to be debt. So, why waste all of
our...and it's not "wasting our time". . .I, that's a different word, but why use a lot of our time at
a different meeting to go through the whole thing again, and then two Council readings? That's,
that's why I say I, I would like to do it right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and this Chair is open to budget amendments, as the
Director had said. It's not something that we going get, you know, bogged down with. We, we
know how important the project is. And we also got to be mindful that, you know, we, we
looking after the community here. We want to provide them with safe drinking water, but we
also need to be cognizant of the, the cost for that. And, and, you know, by putting a dollar
number, you know, the Department can always come back for that budget amendment.
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, may I ask for comments from the Budget Director on
Member Hokama's proposal?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. BAZ: . . . Mr. Chair? Thank you. The-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: --proposal to put an item within the budget at whatever dollar amount, if it's not adequate to,
excuse me, and a companion authorization to enter intergovernmental agreement, if it's
not...sufficient to cover the cost of a project, whether it's something that we planned to be
5 million and it ends up to be 6 million or whether it's something that we need to set a dollar
value of a dollar and it ends up to be 5 million is, is the same process. We would be requesting a
budget amendment to modify that dollar amount.
. . . That was a long explanation, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a long explanation. Doesn't really answer the question. Is that $1 a
good idea or not? . . . (laughter). . . Bottom line . . .(laughter). . .
MR. BAZ: Urn...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. BAZ: . . . It ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You sound like-MR. BAZ: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you running for office, Sandy.
MR. BAZ: I guess the . . .(laughter). . .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Get to the bottom line.
MR. BAZ: No . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. BAZ: The, the answer is it, it doesn't. . .really matter. It's a little bit less paperwork for my office
if the item is already there and all we're doing is modifying the dollar amount. But it's still the
same number of paper, pages that we're going to be submitting back and forth.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion on this?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: We go beat the horse for the last time.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we going beat the horse on the next, too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wake 'em up. Wake 'em up.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Lazarus.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Mr. White said just bring the gun out and shoot it
(laughter).. .
. . .(inaudible)
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ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No. Chair, Chairman, the discussion has been really good because a
lot of the information and the new, the new possibilities of taking a look at financing is
interesting for, for us as the, the body that will make the, the final decision. You know, referring
back to Mr. White's comments, you know, this is a project that's got to be done. Period. It's got
to be done. So, eventually we're going to get to it. I think what worries me more at this point is
the handout that the Chairman provided each one of us. This is the Water Department's listings
of projects that are yet to be completed. We're talking, what, millions and millions and millions
of dollars. . .in suspense, virtually, waiting to be done. So, you know, Mr. Taylor. . .you know, I
really appreciate your aggressiveness. You know, and I'm, I'm hoping the Department can
actually take a look at these things. And the same aggressiveness you have brought forward in
addressing Piiholo's need must be done to complete these projects. Because the cost factors
involved here continue to escalate. 'Cause we've got projects here from 1999. You know, and
it's not your fault because you're, you're the new kid on the block, yeah. But nonetheless, this
belongs to the Department you chose to lead. So, you know, my request really is--take a look at
these things and let's get these things done. So, you know, completing these things allows me
greater confidence in getting this project moving. So, you know, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: Only, I would only say that the more you beat a dead horse, the flatter it gets so-ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I told you you was slick from the beginning (inaudible).. .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Yeah, and, and some of the projects, you know, going through this thing,
you know, I think I saw some like "cancel, will not be done:. And again, Mr. Mateo is right--you
know, some of these projects are so old that...and costing, you know, we set aside millions and
millions of dollars and we don't do anything. And maybe, you know, part of the long discussion
in regards to this one particular item, the ...
... how we view the Department, you know, if we feel comfortable in the Department. So, I
think there's a perception--well, for me, you know, how the Department can operate efficiently
with this kind stuff happening. So, you know, we pumping millions of dollars and, and we don't
see any things being completed, not completed on time. Of course, people get upset and you
hear the complaints. Well, hopefully, you know . . .(laughter). . . if we approve this project
that. . .well, this is, you know, he's faced with EPA requirement. He's going to have to get it
done. But in the meantime, you know, he has a lot of things to look at in regards to...I don't
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know maybe some of this funding is not required anymore. So that's a task for Mr. Taylor to, to
do, yeah, once we completed with him. Scott. . .that area that you. . .requested to read off
and. . .possibly a question to Corporation Counsel?
MR. KANESHINA: And again, I'm citing the bill for an ordinance authorizing the Mayor of the
County of Maui to enter into, into an intergovernmental agreement for a loan from the Drinking
Water Treatment Revolving Fund Loan for the Piiholo Treatment Plant Improvements. Section
1, it states: the County of Maui, pursuant to Chapter 3.40E, Hawaii Revised Statutes, has
submitted an application for a loan from the Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund to
the Director of the Department of Health, State of Hawaii, to finance the construction of the
Piiholo Water Treatment Plant Improvements-Organic Carbon Reduction, Makawao-PukalaniKula Community Plan area, Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Ordinance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the, the part that we asked Corporation Counsel, you know,
the area "has submitted".
NOTE: Silence.

MS. HEELY: . . . Chair? Yes, that would be the application for it once they approve it, then that would
be the intergovernmental agreement that would need to be drafted, that the Mayor would have to
submit to Council within seven days.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, it still come back to us?
MS. HEELY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Okay, Members, can I entertain a motion? Right here, the Chair
had indicated deleting the $5 million and, in regards to the Piiholo Treatment Plant
Improvements-Organic Carbon Reduction. And after hearing all of the discussion this afternoon,
you know, I like the idea about putting a number in there to keep this project going, and when
the State, when the. . .Administration submit a State Revolving Fund Loan, that an amendment
be made on the dollar amount so that the project can move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Hokama. Any
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --what is the, what is the-- 95 -
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry, what is the dollar amount you want to put in there?
One dollar?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One dollar.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One dollar. Okay. I just want to make sure that that's what you
were saying.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, the motion is to delete the 5,000 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --5 million-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --from FY 2011 and change the 5 million State Revolving to $1. Is that
right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One dollar. Yeah, and then when they're ready to do the State Revolving
Fund Loan, they come in for a budget amendment for the full cost of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I don't think it's going to save anything. It's going to waste
more paper.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Although it "waste more paper", you know, for me I got to be reassured.
Okay? It's not our money that we "playing" with. Member Baisa, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I'm ready to vote.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Fine. Thank you. All in favor of the motion, please say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
-96-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing there's...roll call. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The motion carries. Seven "ayes"; two "noes", Member Couch and
Member Baisa.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
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EXC.: None.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. The next project . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . is the Waikamoi Flume Improvements . . . (laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I give two dollars for this one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay? The Chair's recommendation at this time is-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --zero. But I think Mr. Victorino. . .had a number that he wanted to propose.
The number was like 2.5 million. But before . . . (laughter). . . we go into that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I'd like to call on Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And, and the Director is here today. And,
Mr. Director, I know you've been working on this plan and you gave me some preliminary
numbers back a few months ago, which kind of threw me for a loop because we were looking at
one number and then you gave me an extremely different number. After doing more research,
what are the numbers that you are truly looking at? And I understand you can't give me exact,
but more realistic.
MR. TAYLOR: . . . I, now, I have a third number . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(inaudible). . .

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: Um, I, you know as I mentioned, I think as we mentioned to this Committee and, and I
know I mentioned to you in our, in our talks, this project is in such a preliminary stage that we
are guesstimating with very, very, very rough numbers. And I think, as I've explained to this
Council before, there's nothing similar to this that's ever been done.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: It's this wooden trestle out into the, into the, into the rainforest. There's, there's no,
there's no published national costs about how much this kind of thing costs per mile I mean
there's, there's. . .maybe no one's even going to bid on it at all. I mean, maybe just no one's
interested. It is just something so unique that. . .putting dollars to it is incredibly difficult and
the, the, the, the margin of error is larger than the number itself. I mean, to put it that way.
So. . .you know, we're seeing numbers 3, 5, $10 million. It really depends on the final details
and, and how hungry somebody is for, for what is a very unique project. So. . .10 million is the
number we've submitted to Department of Health to cover, you know, just so they. . .so when
they're kind of laying out, earmarking funds about what, who might want what, that we have
enough covered. But, you know, we've heard from somebody else that, you know, maybe
they're thinking 5 million. But I don't feel comfortable at all. . .publicly promising some sort of
number because I mean we just have no idea.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Mr. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you, Mr. Director, 'cause I just want the public to
understand that right now we are kind of a ways off of doing this in the first place. . .if you're, if
I'm correct, Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: . . . I think it's very unlikely it will go out to bid. And it could possibly go out to bid
this calendar year, but I think that it's very, very likely we're going to go out to bid next calendar
year-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: --in calendar year 2012. And so, it's 50-50 it goes out in the first, we'll be ready to go
out in the first half of the year of 2012. So, again whether it should be in FY '12 or FY '13, I'd
say 50-50 we're ready in that first six months of FY '12, and 50-50, you know, we're not going
to be ready till FY '13. I, I. . .you know, I just do not know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's why, Mr. Chair, as I discussed with you, I was looking
to, instead of zero to give Mr. Taylor some flexibility--and maybe we can use Mr. Hokama's $1
again. I was looking at 3 million to put in there-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two. Two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, two. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, $2 . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Because it's twice as important.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Too. . .too many, too many conversations around here, my ear no
can handle.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry. But anyhow, so then Mr. Taylor had some starting
point, I have talked to Senator Kidani, and they are and the staff. . .in the budgetary
considerations are looking at 2013. . .putting money for us in that area and earmarking it for that
particular--and am I correct that's what Senator Kidani has agreed to do? Now, obviously,
sometimes things change, but.
MR. TAYLOR: I, I'm not sure about what. . .about what assurances we have about, about any sort of
State or Federal money at this time. I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: I don't know that anything's been absolutely guaranteed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, nothing is guaranteed in life, but I had assurances that, that
2013 is where we really looking to get the money to do it. And hopefully your project will be
designed, ready to go, so that when we get some monies that we'll be able to push through. But
I'm willing to look at any other number, again, to keep this in...keep this alive. I think this is
very important. I've been, the last two and half years, and Chair Pontanilla also went up to D.C.
looking for money. And, you know, so we've kept this as a high priority. So, I'm not saying
take it out, but more importantly this is something that needs to be done almost as bad Piiholo
because this system brings in quite a number, could bring in a lot more water if we knew how
much leaks we had and how bad the system is. And I think you agree--the area has some major
deficiencies and unless we put a pipe in there, it's continue, it will continue to be the same thing.
Right, Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes. And, and both projects we've been talking about today--Piiholo and
Waikamoi--are both. . .probably the top priority projects. They are both being dictated by
regulatory compliance issues that put us in jeopardy of fines and/or taking our water allocation
away, et cetera, et cetera. These are probably the two top projects being worked on right now,
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from a CIP standpoint, because. . .it's not a choice that we do them. We, we have to do both
these projects.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Taylor. And thank you, Chair, for
allowing me this opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This, this, to me, is a really critical project
because of the added source that we'll get out of it. And I think as we look at various. . .options
for source, this is, this is a very good one for us--especially if the number comes in at
$21/2 million. You know, I know we can't get any. . .specific numbers as to how much it will add
to our, our average supply, but. . .I'm, I'm sure that you would do this tomorrow if you could,
but I, I understand that this is going to take some time to get going. So, Chair, I'm. . .I'm open to
your recommendation, because again this is one of those projects that I don't think anyone on
this Council would vote against.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So. . .I support it wholeheartedly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Any more? Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director. Director, can...I'm
looking at this May 24 th , 2010 Maui News article in regards to the...Commission staff. And you
touched upon that there could be some potential negative, you know, impacts if we don't move
forward with this. On the State level, I believe they said that they wanted this repair work done
within the three, next three years from this 2010 article. Does that still stand?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't remember the dates. That sounds about right. There, there's a letter in the, I
think where I read it is in the...it might have been in the minutes or something of the
Commission on Water Resource Management. They set a time period. We have to give certain
status updates, but I don't recall off the top of my head what the timing-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MS. TIPTON: --the date, milestones were.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . Within three years or by law, we, the Maui County, must reduce
our share of stream water use out of this. That was their statement.
MR. TAYLOR: That, that sounds familiar.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. It sounds pretty, you know, kind of we better do this
. . . (laughter). . . at this point.
MR. TAYLOR: Agreed. I mean, that's what I was saying. This is not a-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I just wanted to elaborate and express the importance at this
point. And I understand there is no real dollar figure here, but we got to do something and start
somewhere. Also, it states about putting a monitoring system on the flume. Have we done that?
MR. TAYLOR: You know, I don't know if we've done that or not. But that is not. . .that's not huge
dollars. I mean, you're talking about flow meter kind of thing. So that's something that...I don't
remember exactly whether they want it at many locations or just where the flume transitions to
the pipe at the end. But measuring flow isn't a very expensive proposition.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It stated it, the cost would have been half-a-million. But, so in
regards if we don't move forward in improving this flume, it was also stated by the...our Water
Supply Department at the time, back in 2010, that it would cost us 117 million over the next
25 years to drill wells, and 85 million just for pumping electric bills to equate to the amount of
water that we're getting. You know, what I mean, the. . .to offset if we're not getting access to
this flume anymore kind of thing. So that's a large figure right there, too. So, I think it's
something--if we're looking at 10 million right here...a lot less than that, the figures I just stated.
MR. TAYLOR: And thank you, Member Cochran, for your, for your support with this. I. . .we agree,
in the Department, with how important this is. And I think the numbers you read are also kind of
a little picture into the future about what the next bunch of water Upcountry is going to cost.
Because the numbers you were talking about--about how much it's cost to drill wells and pump
water from groundwater Upcountry to get another million or 2 million gallons, you just heard
Member Cochran talk about some estimates about how much the next bunch of water Upcountry
is going to cost. It, we're talking about, you know, kind of an engineering level of, of value that,
that maybe we've never seen here before in Maui County. Getting water up, more water
Upcountry is going to be incredibly expensive. So, maximizing what we have is, of course, a
number one priority -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Whoa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa.
MR. TAYLOR: And we also have save electricity, clearly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Maybe we better pay our bill.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
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MR. TAYLOR: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . . power.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is going to call a recess-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Whoa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --subject to the call of the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . . power problems . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

2:57 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:02 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're going to take a recess up to 3:30 so that we can have these lights
fixed. So, meeting is in recess till...go 15 minutes, 3:15. Yeah. . . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

3:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:17 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're gonna take a recess. . .up to 3:30-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --so that we can have these lights fixed. So meeting is in recess `til. . .go 15
minutes, 3:15.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 3:15.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah . . . (gavel).. .
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RECESS:

3:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:17 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're gonna take. . .a longer recess.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll reconvene at 3:45. Understand that power out, outage is caused. . .in
the electrical room of this building and it's gonna be awhile before we get the power back on. So
we'll reconvene at 3:30.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 3:45.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 3:45.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry, 3:45.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is in recess `til 3:45 . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:18 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:45 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, I got a report from downstairs. . .the Director for Council Services had
indicated that. . .to recess about 15 minutes. Although there's an outage, they don't think it's a
major outage, but I might be wrong. So the Chair is gonna recess this meeting again to
4 o'clock. So we'll reconvene at 4 o'clock . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:45 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:10 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session.
Members, we're gonna take another recess. . .to 4:30. So we'll reconvene at 4:30 in this
Chambers . . .(gavel). . .
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RECESS:

4:11 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session.
Members, the Chair has received an update from downstairs. We understand that the power to
the building may be restored at 6:15 or 6:30 tonight. So, I'd like to recess the meeting to
7 o'clock. If we don't get power back on at 7 o'clock, we will meet and reconvene the meeting
on the first floor. At that time, we will recess it, the meeting, to Monday at 8 a.m., if the power
has not been restored.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: First floor?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: First floor?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, if power is not restored.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. HEELY: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If the power is on, we will come back up here to reconvene and continue
tonight. At this time, we don't know if the elevators will be working. If it is, we will reconvene
in Chamber. If power is not restored, we will reconvene at the first floor and discuss a further
recess. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is in recess `til 7 o'clock . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

4:37 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:08 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, when we left off it was dark.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, where were we?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're still on the Waikamoi project.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Flume, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We just started.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair will entertain a motion. . .to delete the $10 million and insert a
nominal amount of $1.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any second? Second by Mr. Hokama. The motion is to delete
the $10 million, and Chair's proposal now is to add $1 that would keep the project going, and the
Department have the ability to come back to this Council to ask for a budget amendment to move
forward on this particular project. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I won't be supporting this because, first of all, we've been
doing this to a lot. Now we're going to have a lot of budget and a lot of staff doing budget work
and a lot things going through the mill over and over and over again. I'd like to at least one of
`em be approved now, that we're going to approve it in, in a few months anyway so, let's save
everybody the time and trouble and let's just do it now. That's...so I will be not supporting this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Call for the question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One...one, two, three, four, five, six...six "ayes", two "noes", one "excused".
The "noes" are Member Baisa, Member Couch; and Member. .. Chainnan Mateo is-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excused.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --"excused". Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Baisa and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Well, let's see.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . What else we got?
. . . Okay.
. . . Delete Environmental Health Specialist V, Page No. 3.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought we did that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, we did that? Oh, okay-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did that already.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pau.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We voted on that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (inaudible).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay. Let's see, Public Transit, we pau, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay, Department of Water Supply. Okay. Page 7.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you had his sheets?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You took his copy . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No wonder he having hard time, you bugga . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (laughter). . . Okay, Page 7 . . . (laughter).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 7, delete expansion position Civil Engineer VI in the Water
Department. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh. . .um. . .I don't think I have any -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --concern at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members. . .consensus on this?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The motion. . .Chair will entertain a motion to delete expansion
position Civil Engineer VI in the Department of Water Supply, and we'll give the Mayor the
opportunity to. . .implement his Attrition Program, and through the Attrition Program to provide
or temporarily assign that position to the Water Department to fulfill this Civil Engineer VI; or
the Department have the opportunity to take a look at their vacancy. . .list and. . .the possibility
of redescribing a position for this one area. And as far as the funding, Chair will consider a
budget amendment once the position is temporarily moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any second? Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Hokama.
Any more discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let the record show we have six "ayes"; two "noes", Member Baisa and
Member Couch; and one "excused", Chairman Mateo. Motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Member Baisa and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay. Grants for East Maui Watershed Protection. Mr. White?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As we discussed last night, I would like to
recommend the deletion of the Wailea Tanker Truck replacement on the basis that the only
problem with the, the vehicle is the driveway at the station. . .it doesn't provide the level of
clearance needed to . . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: ...to allow it to get in and out easily. And I'd like to move some of
those funds to the watershed projects or, or possibly to the Environmental Protection line in OED
to cover the, the loss of Federal funds for Miconia eradication in the amount of about $400,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
. . . And that was the only problem, yeah, they couldn't get it into the garage-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, it's, it's 6 years old and it's got 16,900 miles on it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Chair will entertain a motion to remove the . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where is it now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... the Wailea-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Fire Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You gotta go back Fire Department . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --500 GPM tanker. Is that the one?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And. . .first we'll remove that and then we'll redistribute the funds to
the various watershed or environmental protection that you want to entertain.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member White, second by Member Baisa. Any discussion?
Okay. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Eight "ayes"; one "excused", Member Mateo.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
NOTE: Pause.

MR. BAZ: . . . Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: Just a note. The East Maui Watershed Protection and all these watershed protection grants
are within the Department of Water Supply, and that's Special-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Special Funds.
MR. BAZ: --Fund, so . . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's right.
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MR. BAZ: --you wouldn't be able to add that money back into this . . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: . . . program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah, that's, that's true, what the Budget Director is
saying. May I advise possibly moving it to watershed-related protection in Office of Economic
Development?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: That would say General Fund to General Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I'm fine with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I was just going to say-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gotta . . .(inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --shift, you need to move General Funds to General Funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. So-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, may I -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --may I recommend that we. . .put 500,000 in Environmental Protection
and 200,000 into the Economic initiatives, Economic Development Initiatives line that we
created?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You want to make that into a motion?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, I'd like to make that motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. It's been moved that $500,000 goes to the Environmental Protection
area in OED.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And add $200,000 to the Economic initiatives.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Economic Development Initiatives, the new line.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Economic Development-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So that would increase that from 200 to 400,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right. Okay. Any more discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I, I will not support that type of motion, unless it's specifically
for, for the areas as we have discussed--the watershed protection programs, I will not support
this. I want to make sure it goes to the right place, to the right groups. Okay? So, I want it to be
stated that way . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Or maybe even have a proviso put in. But I think-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --there are line items in that area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. If Staff can pull out that and, and-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I believe there's. . .Chair, if we just move it from the. . .I think I would
go along with Mr. Victorino, the--you're talking about the, the five 100? So, basically we would
take the five watershed projects and-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, in other words you said, your quote was "to Environmental
Protection" that's the whole area. I want to see it go to the Watershed -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Watershed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Protection program, the 500,000 put in there.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I'm, I'm fine with that, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Um. . .Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: So, just for clarification. The remainder, that's to go to, Environmental Protection
is to be split evenly amongst the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I no want that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on. Let-MS. YOSHIMURA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Can...let me...can I just restate my motion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You got to withdraw it first.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. With, I'll withdraw my motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch, you withdraw your second?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think the Miconia problem is in the East Maui Watershed, so what I
would like to do is put 300,000 into the East Maui Watershed. . .well, actually this is getting
confusing because...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this, do you have a line in the proposal? I know I saw it
someplace.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page 15.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. It's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 15? Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 15, but doesn't have the breakdowns.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, it's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . . and 17.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the one that, Tri...Tri-Isle-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, this, it's line. . .Roman numeral V on portion 11-17,
Environmental Protection.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But it's the Watershed Protection where we have 500 now-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --and...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Watershed Protection.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's 19-11.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . You sure you're not on Page 20?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Page 15.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 15, right in the middle above the ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 15-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 300 enough.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He was talking about watershed protection.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then on ... (Inaudible) ... 50/50, 100, 100, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Split 'em up evenly, 75 each or whatever.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right above that break.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Right above MVB.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the wrong place, is what I'm saying.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . That's not the right place.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He was saying, he wants to put it-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, watershed protection isn't it?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --down here on Page 20.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no. No, no, no . . .(inaudible). . . book here. I'll look in
here, but wrong book I looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Never mind.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He wants Watershed Protection, which is on Page 20 of-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: OED.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: OED, yeah. Office of yeah--
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 19-11, Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but that's, that's restricted, that's enterprise-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Water Supply.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --money.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You no can put-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cannot put it there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . 19.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It cannot go to Water.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, it's not water.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Not water.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Has to . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, we're in, we're in OED.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER . . .(inaudible). . . OED . . . (inaudible). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me. Yeah, in Office of Economic Development, under Environmental. . .excuse me,
grants and disbursement for water and environmental resource protection and conservation-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --there is Item (v), Watershed Protection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, right-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that's the one.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. That's where I -MR. BAZ: That currently has $500,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that's where I'm at. Pardon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Got it?
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you break it down. . .what's shown on that one particular area?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The, the Office of Economic Development provided us
with a list of what their FY '11 breakout was for, for this, this particular environmental
protection. The areas were, you know, Banana Bunchy Top Virus, Coqui Frog Project-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No. . .excuse me, I think you're on Environmental Protection, we're on
watershed. . .protection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --(v), watershed protection.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My recollection was it was a split between five watersheds at $100,000
each.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I kind of remember that, too. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So...
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. KANESHINA: .. . Again, we were only provided the disbursement based on FY '11. So,
watershed protection was not a. . .I guess subgroup in FY '11. So, I don't have any details-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so you don't have a breakdown?
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MR. KANESHINA: No, I don't.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(sigh). . .
MR. BAZ: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, Chair, my recollection was the breakdown was. . .and
Mr. Victorino probably knows this better than any of us.
MR. KANESHINA: Perhaps the Budget Director can give us some guidance -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Mr. Baz?
MR. KANESHINA: --as far as what the current year allocation is.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. There is an item under the category grants and disbursement for
Water and Environmental Protection Conservation. There is...I guess the confusion is coming
from, there is one item called "Environmental Protection", which includes Miconia and some
other things. And then there is another Item (v), which is a separate item called "Watershed
Protection".
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct. That's-MR. BAZ: And-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the one that we're talking about.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the one he's talking about?
MR. BAZ: So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So, do you have the breakdown? My recollection-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --from ... (inaudible)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I could get the breakdown of that particular area?
MR. KANESHINA: We do not have a breakdown of that particular area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you don't?
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MR. KANESHINA: That's, Mr. Baz may be able to give us some details.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . . Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: If you give me, give me about five seconds here and I'll try to find it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
NOTE: Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As to my recollection, was East Maui, Haleakala, West Maui, Molokai, and
Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I remember that. That's what she said.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, five.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That was the five.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the five.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That was the best, I know towards East Maui and Haleakala, they had two
separate accounts-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --of $100,000 each-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --was my recollection.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. They're all at 100,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Uh, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, looking up, I did receive an email from the Office of Economic
Development with that breakdown, so that's why I'm looking through my emails right now. But
I'm, I'm .. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No more, I looking-MR. BAZ: --pretty sure that the, the Members are very correct in that it was the five watersheds and
they had a breakdown of about 100,000 a piece. They're, that's not something that is
specifically a proviso currently. If you would, and I'm not sure if you'd like to give the
discretion to the Department [sic] of Economic Development to continue that practice or if you
wanted to proviso it for a specific purpose.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I'd like to proviso it for a specific purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think I would like a proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Specific?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To each of the watershed?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. So, if I can. . .restate my motion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I move that the, of the $700,000 that we are, that we have received from
that. . .that the East Maui Watershed project be increased by 300,000 to 400,000; and all of the
other . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Watershed-- 121 -
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . . watershed projects be increased by 50,000. So that uses up 500,000
of the total. And then 200,000 would be transferred to the Economic Development Initiatives
line that was created today.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. It's been moved by Member White. . .and you heard his motion, and
seconded by Member Couch. Members, any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Eight "ayes"; one "excused", Member Mateo.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a point of clarification, please? And I apologize to my colleagues for
not being here earlier when, when you created this new line. Is it, you know, in the past we
created additional pots for entities to put in their proposals for, is this going to be so that--and
then one of the conditions in the past was that if you receiving County money from other pots,
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you cannot keep dipping into additional County pots. . .so that would make those monies
available to other entities that may want to provide a service or a program to the County. So, has
the Committee discussed that or we're going to be okay with an entity who is having, maybe,
money from community grant program line item can also ask for our money for this line? I'm
just asking so that I, I, you know, I can be aware and if...if I understand the environment right
then, you know, if something for Lanai makes sense, you know, I'm going to ask them to apply
for it. So, can you give me some. . .direction please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as the Watershed Protection area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, that Economic Development.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Economic Development area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. That initiative that Mr. White was talking about.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. If you do have an economic development project on, on that island,
yeah, you can request to Economic Development-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But if I'm receiving, already, money from other County sources, can I also
still continue to apply from this new pot of money? 'Cause in the past, we restricted entities
from continuing -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --to, you know, I mean if I had a line item. . .I was, in the past we said then
you cannot go community grant.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Or if you go Community Partnership Grant, you cannot ask for one line
item, specific line item.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, is there any restrictions on this...on this...this-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Correct me if I'm wrong regarding our discussion last night--if like, say
MEDB has a. . .a program that will increase, you know, visibility for Economic Development on
this island. . .that wasn't, you know, it just came, then the opportunity for that organization to
apply for a grant, or any other entity. . .that, you know, want to provide--and, and these programs
are programs that we don't know of yet. So, the ability to get funding from the County is, is
available.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So. . .well, short and sweet, Chair, you can apply for this money from this
new source funding or part of Economic Development Initiatives even if you already receiving
an Economic Development grant line item?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's all I wanted to know.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I'd just like to mention that...for Mr. Hokama, the, the Special
Events line and the Sports Events lines have been collapsed into this. And so, this is for sporting
events that will bring economic development, for other events that will do the same. So, I know
the, the sensitivities we've, we've heard many times over and I think you know, I think it's
important for us to spend some time with OED going over the rules. And, and what Mr. Baz and
Corp. Counsel were talking about last night, I think is a really great idea to...solidify those rules.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And. . .this morning, we talked about that future canoe, canoe race?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On the West side-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And that -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --part of this-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that could very well be -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --one of the first projects.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From this particular area here.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Because I think-CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's something that-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --everybody here supports that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --all of a sudden came up.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and, and, and I'm. . .talking to the Lanai Canoe Club members about
how they feel about this request, Chairman. So, thank you very much for the clarification, it's
appreciated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Okay. On the same Page 7,
County...Countywide Park Facilities, Chair recommended to reduce by 200,000 so the new
count, the new total is 400,000. The Chair is looking for a consensus on this.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Staff, that's all yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. KANESHINA: That appears, that appears to be it. Unless the Members have any, any other thing
on the sheet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Back on Page 5, the second one, did we ever vote on that, the. . .adding
25,000? I think you said come back to it 'cause that's what I have it as tagged.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Maui Economic Development Board.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I thought we had consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus, right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus on that.
- 125 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we're done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To increase the 25, you had told me to come back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I see. Okay. Um. . I see now. Okay. Mr. Couch . . .
. . . want to include-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I want to increase that line from 420,000 to 445,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 445.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With a proviso that 25,000 goes to the Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And the 25,000...25,000 will come from?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That, that can come from -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wherever.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --a number of things. We, we still have to deal with the 2 million, the
800,000 that we're taking out of the development of R-1 water.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: The, the R-1 water project, as proposed by your Committee, is, is proposed to be
bond funded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bond funded.
MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Can you hang on on this one, Don? Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Who had question over here? Anybody? No? Ms. Cochran, you had...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The...back to Page...no, 8 at the very top, the Other.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 8?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Page 8 of 9.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . The bus stops and shelters, again. I'm still trying to get it in
there . . .(laughter). . . somehow . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran, have you had conversation with Transportation regarding the
bus stops?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . Well, yeah, with Director Winer, and it would be for the
design. . .and construction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Design construction for?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Which are...I mean I know in West Maui, so I didn't get,
I've been wanting to get a lot more detail from her but I haven't received anything as of yet. But
I think Mr. Baz has some input.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes. The Department of Transportation had done an evaluation of
bus stops that were needed, prioritized them, and has--well, I don't have it with me now, but they
do have a list of bus stops that are, you know, suggested if funding does become available to, to
be able to provide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And your proposal is 200,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 200, yes, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this. I'm going to have Staff compile the numbers
so that we know where we're at.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. How long?
MR. KANESHINA: . . . About 30 minutes, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, we're going to take a 30-minute recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Before we break-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --I've been going through my tabs to see what is still pending and
pulling off the ones that we've done. I just have one left.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What did we decide to do about this proviso that we wanted to talk
about--that grantees who didn't spend all their money had to return it? Where we're going to
stick that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I thought-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think Mr. Baz would come out with some kind of documentation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, you're going to cover it in the contracts?
MR. BAZ: Uh. . .
. . . Yes. Mr. Chair ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I remember it got kind of-MR. BAZ: I guess there's...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --messy.
MR. BAZ: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Maybe and. . .and we could discuss this. There are a number of different options, yeah. To
put a proviso like that on every grant in the budget ordinance would be kind of voluminous
amount of work. There are two options that--one is, you know, that as we evaluate these and
execute contracts for next year, that that language get...there is language in many of the grants
and so we could add that into the language of, of all the contracts. But the other option. . .for
maybe Council enforcement, and maybe Corp. Counsel can chime in here, too, is there are
General Budget Provisions, which are part of ordinance, that have general language that apply to
the whole budget ordinance specifically. And so, maybe we could work on language to put in
that General Budget Provisions if you so choose.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm, I'm trying to recall that conversation. It got kind of messy, but I
thought maybe we had agreed to put it in the contract where, where it was applicable. But we
had to be careful because remember unspent funds had to be County funds and we didn't want to
get mixed up with program income and possible revenue that people earn--like you going take
Keiki Kokua's leftover money back. You know what I mean?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, that's, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: And, yeah, this probably isn't the, the time to discuss it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. No.
MR. BAZ: But there are discussions we'd like to have--whether or not it's the County's intent to have
all grantees be on a cost reimbursement basis, a kind of an item where they have to actually have
either expended the funds or are expending those funds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, maybe something for later, after budget we can look at it, but not,
let's not mess this up with that now.
MR. BAZ: Yes. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All right. I'll put that tab, too . . . (laughter).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll, I'll call Staff. Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. And again, another option. . .to kind of, inline
with Mr. Baz's comments is, you know, under your signature on the Committee Report, we can
have a kind of a subject matter referral out of this Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Supposed...I suppose it could be something related to County grant disbursement
agreements.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: And that way we could do a fell swoop--and as I said yesterday, it's probably
going to involve amendments to the Code to kind of clean everything up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, I, I...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank -MR. KANESHINA: But we can take that offline off of BF-1.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I think Corporation Counsel had indicated that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and I, I...even though I was very incoherent yesterday, I did
watch this part . . . (laughter). . . of your-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --meeting last night. I loved a lot of it 'cause my name was
thrown around quite a lot last night. But that's okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nah, that's okay. Anyhow, can we still, for the sake of the
public's confidence, put provisos on certain ones for this year--knowing that we're going to work
on it, but when will we get it done? And just so that the public is not crying out. . .that we're not
looking at these and taking action now. . .I strongly feel that if there are certain ones that we
want to put provisos in, we should do that. Work on this, this, this change in the ordinance and
other things that we need to do, and then at that point in time the proviso is there, but is also law
or, or, or at least the policy of the County. What do you think of that, Mr. Baz?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I mean, Mr. Chair? I'm sorry, I never mean to ask Mr. Baz. I
meant to ask you. Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know. We may have some problems with that . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 'Cause of, you know, if we're going to pick and choose-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --then, you know, we, we may-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel, maybe you can help me? I want to mention the word
"discriminate", but-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I leave it up to you. Go ahead.
MS. HEELY: Yes. Mr. Chair, we did discuss this a little bit in last night's meeting.
. . . It's up to the body if they do want to put provisos, but I'm not sure if the body would want to
get into the business of putting provisos and administering. . .and getting into the business of
administering the grants when it's actually the department's responsibility or the grantor's
responsibility to administer the grants. We did discuss the other options, as mentioned by Staff
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and Mr. Baz, of amending the Code and, and...after the budget session in terms of...in the
Policy Committee or another Committee-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. HEELY: --in terms of making the grant requirements, like reporting and non-expenditure or return
funds, applicable to all the grants. But that's for a future discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. HEELY: But...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But you see nothing. . .illegal or discriminatory if we decided to
put a proviso in at, now?
MS. HEELY: Depending what the proviso is. . .and if it...because there is a contract--well, it is a
case-by-case basis.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. HEELY: If you're referring to one particular one, there may be an existing contract that the grantor
and grantee negotiated the terms already, too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. HEELY: So, there...it would have to be reviewed by a case-by-case basis.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. That's all I needed to know.
MS. HEELY: There all provisos in relation to the...the, the, the distribution of the funds and the use of
the funds or appropriation of the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause we had put a proviso last year. And you remember,
Mister...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, for the Aging with Aloha, that they would have to come up,
I think, with 25 percent of their funding. Okay? And so, they didn't come up with it, and then if
I not mistaken this year we not giving 'em anything. So, we've done this in the past-MS. HEELY: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and no one in this room hasn't done something of this nature.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, anyhow, okay, I'll leave it be for right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
MS. HEELY: . . . (inaudible).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would. . .suggest for the Committee's consideration this
evening that we, we think about it. We have Monday for adjustments and, you know,
conections. . .that would give us time and Corporation Counsel time to consider any type of
appropriate language, if need be, whether it be through proviso. There's also the Hawaii
Administration Procedures Act, that through a departmental procedure, the departments can
enact rules that have a force and effect of County law to carry out this kind of requirements on
our behalf. So that's another alternative that could be considered. But I think, you know, maybe
by Monday we might be able to have some maybe better, better wording or better ideas on how
to approach this important discussion. But I would agree with you and I think Ms. Baisa. . .that I
think we should be more concerned specifically about a reimbursement or return of County
unspent funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because we don't want the entity to be hampered by talking about things
that was not the County's-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --resources.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know if they have discretionary funding through fundraising
. . . (inaudible). . . , great for that entity, they should be able to retain those-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --resources, in my opinion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But, you know, I can understand the point about County resource. So, I
would think we should really carefully consider the various options--whether it be through
ordinance, General Provisions of the budget document, proviso of the specific appropriation, a
rule through the Hawaii Administrative Procedures Act. I think this needs to be thought out
because I would like to, hopefully, have us put forward a uniform and fair, consistent policy that
would apply to any similar type of contract or grant consideration, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and I think we basically came to that conclusion-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --with the help of the Administration.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We had talked about, a while back, and I don't know where to put
it--that we talked about any grant E/P, you know, permanent position that becomes vacant be
rehired as an LTA. We, we wanted to find a place to put that. . .and I don't know-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --where that would be.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We added some. . .I know we added some language in this budget in regards
to positions that will, you know, if, if it becomes vacant, that it's going to be filled as an LTA.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If it was a grant -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --funded position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The grant funding kind type.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have that in there-CHAIR PONTANILLA: We did, yeah?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --anywhere?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. There are occurrences, instances in, in current, currently
that grant-funded positions are LTAs. So, if, you know, we could, we could mimic that language
if there is a grant that has E/P.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, what-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think we did it for the Fire Department. . .six positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. But I'm talking about there are some other positions that are
currently -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Civil Service positions that are grant-funded. And if those become
vacant, can we make them LTAs?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe...before Staff answer that. . .Comoration Counsel or Budget Director,
my feeling is that, yeah, we, we can. Budget Director?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. You know we started to look into this and it's something that
we're going to be evaluating. I asked a question whether or not we could just go and make all
the positions LTA positions. And if we did that, we would have some collective bargaining
issues-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --to just do that. I don't foresee a problem in a position becoming vacant, rehiring that
position as an LTA. And we have, actually within the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns, an area that we did do that with already for this fiscal year--specified it be an LTA
position. The only concern I would have about making a broad stroke about that would be that
there may be conditions of some of the grants that we've already accepted and we do receive that
would preclude us from going into that factor. But that's something that we'd have to look on
through each grant to see the conditions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Mr. Couch? Okay? Okay. Anything else? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I hope you folks will look at as one of the ways, and I think
Mayor Lingle was able to do it. . .upon either vacancy or...and you folks need to look at the
specific units collective bargaining agreement people so--but there's ability of Admin. to abolish
positions through a procedure, agreed upon procedure. So, maybe with this concern that the
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Committee has shared regarding grant funding Civil Service positions, see if we can find a way
to mutually have agreement with the bargaining unit representative, whoever it may be,
regarding the abolishment of that Civil Service position. And in return after the abolishment,
which wipes it out, come back with the LTA consideration.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Thank, thank you very much for that suggestion. That is another consideration that
we'd have to take into account.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, Mr. Couch? Okay. Thank you. Any more questions before I
call a recess so that Staff can compile the numbers at this time? We already took care the
operation side. The next up would be the revenue side. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, how many more of these, on this, on the operation
side do we have left? We have Mr. Couch's one, right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, that addition for Maui Economic Development-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ka Ipu Kukui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that $25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ka Ipu Kukui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And the canoe race.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What...do we need-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Staff to report on that or we can vote on that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no, no. They, they...what we're going to do now is compile the
numbers-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: In here? I don't see it yet. Where is it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, what is our cost for operation, the operational cost for this
County.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay? So, we're going to reconvene. . .8:15. Okay, we'll reconvene at 8:15.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is in recess . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

7:46 p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:27 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, Staff is still working on the numbers, so we'll take another recess, and
then we'll reconvene at 8:45. This meeting is in recess till 8:45. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

8:28 p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:56 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Okay. Staff, can you hand out, we made copies of this? No?
MR. KANESHINA: Oh, I can make copies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Go ahead.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, I can, I can provide copies to the, the. . .the Committee, or I can just
give them the fund balances available-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we want-MR. KANESHINA: --based on the adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --copies please.
MR. KANESHINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's, let's...right now, we do have a balanced budget.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We want copies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then he's going to make copies of that. When we started, when
the Chair started off with his budget, it was estimated that the budget for the County of Maui
would have been $555 million. Right now, it's $571 million.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Ooh!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the reason is that of that one big addition that we had included for Maui
Police Department, the USDA loan. So, right now, we're looking at a County budget of
$571 million. Okay? Staff is going to make copies for you to look at. In the General Fund, we
do have additional. . .we have $14,747 that is available. In the Highway Fund, we're negative
$178,980. The Bikeway Fund is. . .balanced. The Sewer Fund we're $331,812 that is available,
but the Chair is intending to...use that monies to...rather than bond Ms. Cochran's project, to go
with cash. And then, the Solid Waste and the Golf Course, for Solid Waste we have available
$25,860. So, we're going to reduce the supplemental transfer. In the Golf Course we have extra
$3,000 so we, we're going to reduce the supplemental transfer. On the Water, Water side, we do
have excess of $295,848. So that's the projections at this time. So, when you get copies you can
take a look at that. Okay, this balanced budget is based on the. . .projected Real Property Tax
area. . .as proposed by the Chair. So, if we do anything on the Real Property Tax side, it may,
it's going to affect this total.
. . . So, questions?
. . . I guess you going ask questions when you guys get-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, please.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --your copies. Okay. So, we'll...do you have any comments, Staff? No?
MR. KANESHINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You guys did a fantastic job. I got to say that. You guys stay late-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yea.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --every single day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I really appreciate that.
ALL: ... (Applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
ALL: . . .(applause). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Celebrate . . .(inaudible). . . celebrate . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. While we're waiting for the copies, I
would. . .like to ask for concurrence on adding a $25,000 proviso to the Maui County Farm
Bureau line in OED. . .that, which would be used to assist with the Maui Market Place at the
Philadelphia Flower Show in March of 2012.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Um. . .hang on, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So that wouldn't, wouldn't change the amount in the budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Staff, you got that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I didn't hear what he said.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You guys got that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I couldn't hear what was said, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm sorry. Let me...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, can you...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes. I'd be happy to. I'm requesting a proviso to the Maui County
Farm Bureau line item to provide $25,000 to assist in the Maui Market Place at the Philadelphia
Flower Show in March of 2012 for Maui's value added and Maui grown products.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second the motion, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The motion by Mr. White is to do a proviso to the Maui County Farm
Bureau in the amount of $25,000 to the Flower -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, to the Maui Market Place --139-
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Philadelphia.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --at the Philadelphia Flower Show.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then, seconded by Member Victorino. Members, discussion on
that? If not, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Eight "ayes"; one "excused", Member Mateo.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
NOTE: Pause while copies are distributed to Council members.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Staff? We gotta take care his.
NOTE: Pause.

COUNCILMEMBER

: Ooh.

NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think Don had one . . .
NOTE: Pause.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
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NOTE: Silence while Members reviewed the handout

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . So, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. This 500...I'm going right to the last page, the
summary, total budget amount, we're looking at 507...$570,795,503 total. That 10...10 percent
is what over...less your...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That, that is 10...10 percent less than the Mayor's proposal. . .at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten percent less than the Mayor's proposal?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But wasn't the Mayor's proposal 632 million?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, it was.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
. . . Okay, that's 50, yeah. Okay. Okay. I gotcha. Almost 11 percent. Okay. But compared to
yours, Mr. Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --if I'm not. . .wrong, yours was-CHAIR PONTANILLA: 55-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --554 million?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 555 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 555 million?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, if we now have to revise your or our revenue so as to make up
that 7-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --15 million or 16 million-- 141 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. For the 16 million -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --maybe Staff can explain that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's really simple.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you stated earlier, the biggest change to
the...mister...your Committee's budget thus far was the Kihei police station addition.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. KANESHINA: Being that that was...the Committee opted to go for the USDA loan, what we did
was we added it to the revenue side--because it's going to be an inflow of cash via the, the loan
or other intergovernmental revenues--and then that's offset by a expenditure of the $17 million.
So those, the net effect is zero, but it does increase the overall size of the budget to the current
$570 million figure you see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that all derived under the Bond Fund for the Kihei police
station?
MR. KANESHINA: It's, it's...that 17 million was actually US...the USDA...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. I, I know that, but now we're changing it to a Bond Fund.
Is that what we're doing?
MR. KANESHINA: No. It's USDA loan under the "Other Intergovernmental" line on the revenue side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, so we taking 17 million from the USDA?
MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I apologize, I didn't understand that. Okay. Thank you for
that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, on your...transfer to the Post Employment Obligation Fund-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you took it down by 2.3 million and it's fairly exact. Is that the most
you can take it down from what the Mayor suggested to what the actuary suggested, or do we
have any room in that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We have some guidance on that, and maybe Staff can explain that. I think it
about 22.8.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And if this is in reference to. . .I, I'm assuming the OPEB
figure?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct, 6 of 45 on the...
MR. KANESHINA: Okay.
. . . The only thing I really can say about that is that the number I saw on one of the most recent
reports with Finance was approximately $23 million was, was this year's annual required
contribution.
. . . So at its current level, I think that's, it's appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . . Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I. . .I have some concerns about the, the transfers going into the EUTF
until the, the solvency of that fund is, is squared away. And I, I know we're holding other funds
in, in accounts now, and I'm, I'm just throwing out the question of whether we want to help the
Administration by putting a proviso on this transfer to say that it cannot be, the payment of these
funds cannot be made to the EUTF without the approval of Council. I don't know if we can do
that, but I, I think there's concern for that solvency of that fund and I'd hate to see the, the funds
get put into that in a way that we may be sorry for later.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Corporation Counsel?
NOTE: Pause.

MS. HEELY: . . . The Committee did get some guidance from ERS representatives when they did
come, but I'd. . .like an opportunity to look into that. I know under the State Constitution. . .the
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accrued benefits are required to be paid and cannot be, be diminished. And when the...ERS
representatives were here. . .they did, the Committee did discuss about possibly...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I think he was talking about EUTF.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. And--

MS. HEELY: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And EUTF isn't . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not, not them, but EUTF. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, so it's the, the OPEB contribution, not ERS.
NOTE: Pause.

MS. HEELY: . . . Those OPEB would still be required to. . .be paid.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, the reason it, the reason it came to mind was that I believe--and
the, and the Budget Director may be able to clarify this--but I believe that we have two years of
OPEB contributions remaining in our own bank accounts because of that question. And I'd just
like to reinforce it. Maui needs to protect her own assets, and I would rather they stay in our
accounts in some sort of an investment rather than being put into EUTF if there is any question
of the financial viability.
MS. HEELY: Chair, I'd like an opportunity to discuss with Budget and, as well as the Finance-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
MS. HEELY: --Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe Mr. Hokama-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I was just going say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --can shed some light.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, the best of my knowledge at this time of the evening would be,
one, if, if there's some concern from Committee members regarding OPEB contributions. . .I
would say, you know. . .we, you know part of the guidance for this County is from GASB 45.
And so it's, it's a General Accounting Standards. . .requirement that the Feds set on all gov, state
and local municipalities. And under the GASB 45, as I understand it, based on our municipality
size and the amount of our budget that is part of the formula of calculations of what eventually
becomes our OPEB obligations, Mr. Chairman. And, and I can appreciate Mr. White's concern
and I believe that was also the previous Finance Director's concern about potential...putting
monies in a, in a black hole that might be considered insolvent in the near future. So, I can
appreciate concern. But I would still recommend that currently it's in Trust and Agency Account
in Finance which holds it. It allows it to gain short-term interest earnings for us. So, we're
earning some monies for that. But secondly, and one of the more important things, Chairman
and Members, would be that when we do eventually go for a bond float, part of the review that
the underwriters will go with us as well as our Bond Counsel is to see how we've approached
obligations. And then when we go before the rating agencies, they will look at our numbers--and
I can tell you, the reassurance by seeing how we have already set aside monies to take care of
obligations will be a great incentive to be able to give us the bond rating, as well as the preferred
interest rates, that will be to a benefit to this County. And so, you know, I would say from my
perspective, Members. . .maybe we can, maybe give Corp. Counsel some time, that by Monday
at the latest when we do corrections, we should. . .maybe get some recommendation from
Mr. Kushi and Mr. Wong about how we might want to structure a language; or if the Committee
would consider maybe then attaching a resolution of intent regarding fringe benefits. . .might be
another option. But I, I, Members, I really would like us to maintain the number 'cause in the
long run, eventually when we go to get the borrowing of over $50 million squared away, that it
will be to our advantage of having these funds in that place to show Standard and Poor's,
Mitch's...Fitch's and Moody's, that we have a very disciplined financial picture. And it has
served, and this philosophy, Chairman, has served us well for 15 years, and we've come a long
way in 15 years from where we were. So, it's a formula that's worked for us and I believe it will
still work for us in this difficult times. And I would ask the Members to support retaining that
OPEB consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair. I appreciate Member Hokama's comments. I'm asking,
you had asked me...I had two items that I wanted to talk to you about, and you had asked me a
place to find 'em. And we got some of it. But I'm asking that we can change that $2 3 million
by adding another $35,253 and add it to the 14,747 to come up with 50,000; 25,000 to go for
Ka Ipu Kukui; and 25,000 to Special Olympics.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . Just make a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd like to make a motion, then.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I second the motion.
- 145 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait, Wait. I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You don't want to make a motion now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --didn't recognize that motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before . . .(laughter). . . we start fooling around with OPEB and
EUTF. . .Staff, some comments please in regards to after the budget process that. . .the Budget
and Finance Committee will be taking up the. . .exact issues that we're discussing tonight. Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It sounds like the Committee could use...BF-3 is a...in
relation, it's an item that's in, in Committee, and we could take it up after the financial, after the
fiscal budget is done. It's in relation to the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, or CAFR,
for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2010 for the County. I've spoken with the auditors about it and
they're more than willing to, you know, discuss your, you know, and address your questions
regarding the OPEB number, unreserved fund balances, accrued liabilities--things, things like
that. And also it probably be the appropriate forum because we'd have representatives from the
Department of Finance on staff to have a good round table about it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I bring that up only because we do, it's my understanding as
well that we have at least two years and maybe this year's as well in an account accruing interest.
And I'm sure we can make that up in interest-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Interest.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --very quickly. So, I don't think it's going affect our bond-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --rating or anything else and it's two worthy projects, and we can put
provisos on the Ka Ipu Kukui about lunches, you know, that kind of stuff. No food. But I mean
we're going to get it back in interest rather quickly, and I think it's two worthy projects.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time, the Chair is not going recognize the motion. We still
got to look at our rates, rates and fees. When we do. . .when we do the corrections on Monday,
we'll revisit that one particular area. But at this time, you know, I'll take the advice of
Mr. Hokama in regards to both OPEB as well as the EUTF.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to comment on the TAT.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I noticed that in the final analysis here, we're recognizing $17,500 in
TAT.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 17 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 17 million. Sorry, at this point-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ho, I thought . . . (inaudible)

(laughter).. .

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --at this point it's just, it's just a decimal point.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Based on the wind up of the Legislature, if you look at the percentage of
the $93 million ceiling, we potentially, and I'm not wanting to take all of it because I think it's
risky, but we could possibly get 21.2 million. Could we not recognize a few $100,000, at least a
couple $100,000 to take care of these real manini little things that I think are really, really
important to our community? You know we have added hundreds of thousands of dollars to
sports, and bugs, and flowers, and tourists, and jumping around, and new programs. And these
are two long-term and very important projects in our community, and they're so small. And I
thought yesterday when I left here that we had an understanding that the group here had agreed
to take care of it. And I really feel strongly that we should do it somehow.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All right, Member Baisa, what I would suggest then is to look at the area in
the General Fund that we already had funded. And, you know, relook at some of the funding
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that we provide to organizations. And with agreement. . .I know we've added in the Economic,
Economic Development Initiatives quite a bit of number tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Big time. And I don't know about, you know, the maker of the motion. . .to
do that. You know, I, I just want to hear comments from Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. I'm happy to make comments on it. I think it might make some
sense to pull. . .say $100,000 or $50,000. I'm not sure what programs. . .Councilwoman Baisa
was referring to, other than Ka Ipu Kukui and-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He said something else.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hospice.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, he didn't say Hospice. What did you say?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He said-COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --sorry, Special Olympics.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Yeah. So-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I just want a conversation on where we're at. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So, I, I would be comfortable with a motion to take--what is that?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Don, what was the number?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: 50,000 or 60,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 35,253.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: $35,253.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: $35,253.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't what you're...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Adding it to the 14 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That we have.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that we have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It comes to $50,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, I see. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I would be happy to take that out of maybe the East Maui Watershed,
which we provided the largest increase.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Members, you heard that?
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I, I'm sorry I didn't. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next time listen, yeah?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The motion is to...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: To remove...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to have Mr. White make a motion on this one here.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: What was the, the difference was 35?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 35,253.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. I move that we. . .reduce the allocation to the East Maui
Watershed Project by an amount equal to $36,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Unless you would prefer it in a specific, in the exact dollar amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved and second . . . (laughter). . . by...moved by Mr. White, seconded by
Mr. Victorino to move 36, 35?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: 36,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 36,000 from the East Maui Watershed area to fund Ku [sic] Ipu -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ka Ipu Kukui for $25,000 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ka Ipu Kukui 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --that would go to MEDB with the proviso that it's for that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Special Olympics--and I'm not sure where that would go at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Human Services, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Human Services.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Human Concerns [sic]. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay? Got it?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion? All those in favor of the motion, please say
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to thank my colleagues and, Mr. White, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's important.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you as well. I agree.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And from the General Fund, we'll remove that-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --14,747. Any more discussion, Members? Staff? That's it?
MR. KANESHINA: . . . That's, yeah, that's it for this schedule. . .Mr. Chair.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll go to. . .the Real Property Tax side.
. . . Okay, Members, right now we do have a balanced budget based on the Real Property Tax
that we are proposing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. We're done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, as far as the estimated revenues, anybody has any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I, I agree with your, your revenue level, but I'd just like to share some
figures with...to see if there could be some consideration in applying a...a standard increase
across the board for each category. . . .(clears throat). . . Excuse me. In the last, from 2006,
which is the tax year prior to the. . .to a number of changes in the, the way we. . .calculate the
property tax, we had increases in Apartment by, or since then. Comparing the 2006 numbers to
the 2012 Budget numbers, the Apartment classification's increased by 8 million; Commercial by
3.6; Industrial by 2.6; Agriculture by 3...3.7; Conservation by 400,000; Hotel and Resort by
14.8 million; Timeshare by 16 million; and Homeowners has dropped by a total of 10 million.
So in 2006, Homeowners were providing 25 million. And in this year's budget they're providing
approximately 15,436,000. So all the categories, all the other categories have gone up a
minimum of 28 percent while the Homeowners contribution has dropped by 40 percent. I'm
concerned about that because as I see all the structural costs that we have gone through, I'm
gaining a much better understanding of the challenges that we face going forward with funding
the structural costs of fringe benefits and the, the bond funding that we're going to need to do a
number of projects. And so I would like to. . .propose that we apply a 40 percent in--or not
"40 percent", 40 cent increase to the rates in each category. With that, the Homeowners would
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still not be returning to the level of, of payment that had last year, which was 19.5 million. At a
40 cent increase, their taxes--paid through the Homeowners category--would be 17,800,000. So,
they would still be paying approximately 8 percent less than they did last or during this Fiscal
Year. And the other categories would go...only two categories would go up and the rest would
go down. The two that would go up would be Residential, which would go up about 7 percent;
and the other is Commercial, which would go up 5 percent. So, I'd like to. . .I'd just like to put
that out for discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, you heard Mr. White, any discussion in regards to what
Mr. White, he's proposing--a 40 cents across the board in the Real Property Tax area?
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I...although I, I, I think it's a, it's a idea that, you
know, at one point in time I might have supported, but. . .we got to understand a couple of
things. Although I do admit that our Residential rates are extremely low versus a lot of other
counties, and so I think our residents--and one of the things we're going to do is raise the
minimum from 150 to 300. So that's a step in the right direction. And I think a small nominal
increase--I was looking at something like 35 cents for the Homeowners classification--would
have you know a similar affect. But not touching the others. Remember these are working
people, most of them. They're the every day bread and butter. These are people that make us
what we are so great about, what Maui nui is all about. And many times we forget them. We
take care of our seniors. We take care of our children. We take care of the special needs. And
I'm all for that. But what about the working people? These are the people that no one talks
about most of the time. These are the people that don't come and testify 'cause they too busy
raising their families and trying to make ends meet. And every time we try to, you know, help
them we have this, oh, Commercial and Hotels and others telling me, oh we're, you know, we're
in destitute or we hurting. And I'm not disagreeing with that. Times have been tough. But a
homeowner who had two jobs, now has one job, maybe half of one job, do they go out, can they
go out and raise more money? Can they raise their rates whatever as a commercial entity could
do? It's not the fact. The fact is they depend on us trying to take care of them. And that's what
I'm trying to say today--is let us be cognizant of the working people. These are the people that
make Maui what it is. And to raise...already we're going to raise their sewer, we're going to
raise their refuse, we're going to raise their water, and a bunch of other things. And now, we
want to, you know, and I'm raising a little because I think it's fair. I'm not knocking that. But I
don't know to decrease others to raise theirs? I don't know if I find that really fair because they
have no alternatives. They have no alternatives. So, it's up to the other Members, but that's my
take on this, you know. Although I agree, Mr. White, in being fair, I still got to protect the
working people because we all were there once--struggling families. Many of them in
foreclosure today. And just to dump other major changes in their household may not be what we
need. And if I don't have to raise it, I would like to wait another year before I look at them again
`cause last year we went 50 cents. We raised it by 25 percent. We went from $2 to 2.50. Yes,
the values have dropped, so really it's not a major change for many people, not a big hurt for a
lot of our homeowners. Let us get the problem corrected. Let's get the homeowners that don't
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deserve Homeowners in the right classification, Ag. Let's work it that way. Let's collect the
money we should be collecting instead of penalizing the working people. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments on Mr. White's proposal at this
time? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know when we were asked to put forward our proposals for Real
Property taxes, I did include a 25 percent raise in the Homeowner category. And if we did that,
it only nets us another 1.5 million and some change. It's not a major increase. But I did think
that it was really important that this be the year that we start inching this thing up forward
because we know that at some point it is going to happen. Structurally it has to happen or we
have to change our property tax system or do something. But we won't be able to pay our bills if
it's business as usual. I think we all know that from what we've been through. And so, my
concern is that what mitigated that for me was the idea that, of course, we're looking at a
tweaking of the assessment next, the exemption next year and raising the minimum tax. But
what has stopped me cold in my track from going with that increasing of the minimum tax was
the testimony that's been given to us since we suggested that. It's not a simple manner, matter to
raise that minimum. You know if it was the same for everybody, no problem because we all
know that what that minimum is is really small and it's almost ridiculous in terms of what it cost
to, you know, contribute something. But when you look at these people with multiple parcels
who probably may be low-income people, or like we heard last night, a small farmer. . .and until
we can figure out how to apply that minimum--and I think we'd have to be here a lot more than
one night doing that to figure it out correctly, so we don't hurt those people that we don't want to
hurt. Then I think the alternative is some kind of a small little nominal increase so that we start
inching it up. Because we're going to have to inch it up at some point. We just cannot continue
to do the way we're doing it. So, I'm not sure that Mr. White's proposal is the correct way--of
just, you know, charging everybody 40 cents more. But I do believe that, you know, we have to
do something about our Homeowner class. It's the largest number. It's the largest amount of
taxable stuff that we can get to. And we're going to have to do something. Everybody else is
way, way ahead of us. I'm a homeowner. I don't get a Homeowner's exemption. I don't want
to pay any more than anybody else, but I think we have to be practical. It's going to happen. If
not this year, it's going to happen next year, and it's probably going to be a big one and hurt even
more. And, you know, homeowners come in all shapes and sizes. And I agree with
Mr. Victorino--many of the people are working class people. But also many of the people are
people that are living in very grand estates, getting the full benefit of Homeowners exemption
and Homeowners rates. And that, again, goes to the business with the exception, exemption--of
should everybody get it. If you're living in $10 million home, you paying . . .(laughter). . . the
same rate as the guy that's living in $100,000. So, it's, it's, it's a complicated issue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Any more discussion, Members? Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. "Complicated" hardly seems to describe it.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
- 154 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Uh. . .I'm against Mr. White's proposal. I don't think it's the time
to...with our economy and the way we are right now and the financial situation this entire
County and State is in, I think that would be inappropriate. Ms. Baisa has a very strong
argument for a very small increase on there, but even that. . .because it is complicated. I think
it's the wrong time. And again, and I've said this before, a lot of these discussions. . .this is not
the place for it. It really is difficult. This is something that if we had it in committee--and we
can refer this to committee or the Chair could refer it to, you know, his Committee--that we
could study it in-depth and make sure we don't do more harm than good. And I really fear that if
we raise the, the Homeowners one or across the board, we could really do a lot of damage. I
don't know, and I think the Committee needs to take a really close look at it after budget. So, I
would hope that we would leave it right as it is. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair Just to put it in perspective. The. . .the cost to
operate the government--without the special funds of sewer, water, and, and so forth--comes to
about $6,600 per household. And the, the Homeowner households, on average, are. . .are being
asked to provide less than 10 percent of that cost of the, the services that they're receiving. This
increase would take the average household cost in the Homeowner category from $578 for the
year, to about 664. So that's right at 10 percent of the cost that the County bears to provide all
the services--of Fire, Police, et cetera. And the reason I bring this up--and it's not, it's not a
popular political thing. But for me it's a practical realization that the cost of government is
growing very fast and if we, if we--and I don't see ways in which we can easily arrest that cost.
And if you look at just the contribution to OPEB, of $23 million, that's 8 million more than
we're receiving from the Homeowner category, which makes up 34 percent of the households on
Maui. If you look at ERS, 26.9 million, compared to 15 from the Homeowners. Our healthcare
responsibilities for current employees and retirees is 23 million, another $8 million over what
we're asking three, one-third of the households on Maui to contribute. If you look at the Police
Department, it's roughly. . .if you add the, well, without the fringe benefits added to it, it's over
three times what we're asking from the, from the Homeowners. So, it's...what I'm, what I'm
suggesting is that it's, it's time for us to at least begin working towards the levels of taxes that
the homeowners are paying in the other three counties. The County of Hawaii gets $3.20 per
thousand dollars of gross valuation. Kauai gets $3.06 per thousand valuation, and Oahu gets
$2.82. With this year's budget and the, the reduced, the reduction of roughly $4 million in, in
taxes from the amount they paid last year, we're generating $1.14. That's almost a third of what
the Big Island generates. If we were to put through an across-the-board increase, that would
move Maui's number to $1.31--that's still less than half of what is asked of homeowners on
Oahu, and about a third of what is asked of the homeowners on the Big Island and Kauai. Like
Mr. Victorino, I want to protect the working people. And we can do that through the, the Circuit
Breaker or some, some form of the Circuit Breaker. And I know we've, we've talked about
putting that in this bill. And I would hope that we could come to a conclusion on that Circuit
Breaker wording so that it can be a part of this, this deliberation and this bill. Because I want to
protect the people who can't afford it, but at the same time those of us who can afford it should
- 155 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

be paying our fair share or. . .we're not going to be even be close to paying our fair share. But
we should get closer to paying our fair share. I don't think it's, it's responsible for us to continue
to put all the costs on the businesses. And, you know, the businesses pay for benefits for the
employees. They pay taxes. They pay all kinds of things. But the more we put on just the
business categories. . impairs their ability to do things for the, the workers on the, on their end.
So, I think it's, it's something that we--whether we do it this year or do it some other time--I
think that it is something that's responsible to do and reasonable to ask of the people of Maui.
And those of, you know, those who can afford it, I think, are going to be more than willing to
step forward and, and take care of the responsibilities. Those that can't, I would like to craft a
Circuit Breaker that will allow us to protect the people who aren't able to. And I realize that
there are those that cannot. But we've got a huge number of people paying the minimum tax.
And maybe, maybe one way of doing it is to reduce the minimum tax and you just add a couple
cents more to the 40 cents that would make up difference. So, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I am happy to hear this discussion this evening,
Chair. It's very . . . (laughter). . . important. It's timely. But it's just slightly out of sync for me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(laughter). . . And, and I don't mean to be disrespectful to any
colleague. You know every colleague has shared some very sincere heartfelt comments-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --so far, Chairman, so I have great respect for, for their opinions, their
positions. But what I would share with is...you know I agree on one thing--it takes more than
just a night of discussion. I think we, if we are serious--and I, you know, I commend Mr. White
for bringing up . . . (laughter). . . a touchy subject at this point of the budget session, but I think
it's necessary and so I appreciate it. But I think if we are serious, Chairman. . .to make the
appropriate adjustments, then I would hope you and this Committee would look at it from a total,
comprehensive perspective and not just look at components. And I also think it would be good
for other Members to get as much as the historical background of when, when...maybe toward
the end of the Board of Supervisor days to the Charter and the beginning of this Mayoral and
Council form of governance--the philosophy of the Councils on how they approach property
taxation. It is by no error that we are here because it was conscious decisions on how we were
going to approach property taxation. Okay? And so with all respect to my colleagues, I don't
feel to be compared with other counties because we've made other decisions and other critical
land use decisions to put us where we are today--where other counties have chosen not to make
those difficult decisions. So to tell me that Big Island's rate is this versus our rate or Kauai is
just that--it's a difference because we're different counties. Because I don't see it to be the same.
They made certain other choices. So, of course, we're going to have the differences. But it's
also, Chairman, as I stated earlier, "fairness" is defined in different ways. But part of the fairness
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of our taxation . . .(inaudible). . . was also how we were going to reinforce our land use policies
and how we viewed certain industries as we went through the conversions from the big
plantation and agricultural industry. . .moving toward visitor industry, and then now its reliance
on the visitor industry. Okay? I would hope, as you noticed when we're looking at medical,
educational, health initiatives, just like when we first supported bio-diesel, Chair, we wanted to
make it a go. So we made a taxation decision. No taxes on bio-fuels. I think if we look at things
in that type of perspective and then start looking at how we're going to look at what each class of
property tax should be viewed, then maybe we can come up with some better improvements.
But there is a reason why Timeshare is where it is. There is a reason why Hotel and Resort is
where it is, and there is a reason why there is where Homeowners is. It's not by luck
. . .(laughter). . . It's not by chance. It was by conscious determination by this legislative body
on how to make it a land use and taxation policy for this County. It's worked for us for very
well. Okay, this community is changing, maybe we need to change taxation. But I don't think
we're going to do it tonight, Chairman-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in three, three hours or four hours. I agree. I think we're going to need
. . .(laughter). . . a lot of time-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --because I agree. And you cannot just look at Maui island, people. You
heard from a testifier yesterday--he, when he went to Lanai, he finally understood the difference
. . .(laughter). . . between Lanai and Maui. Okay? So, taxation for us on Lanai is also very
different, Chairman. But we're one County. So, Lanai is going to have to live with the rates we
proposing. And we can talk about how this impacts Maui, how this impact...I know it does. But
let me tell you how . . . (laughter). . . it's going to impact Lanai. . .a lot worse. If it's going to be
worse here, things are going to be a lot worser on Lanai.
. . . Okay? And, yes, we are few. But I think we're still a unique important component of this
County, and you know I'll say that also for Molokai. So you know we're in a unique situation,
Chairman. We have one taxation program, we got to take care of three unique island
communities that make our County, with different conditions of valuation of property, three
different attitudes about valuation of property, and the type of land use policies that we want to
enforce or reinforce through taxation on each island. So, I share that because . . .(laughter). . .
there's so much more that, you know, I cannot share in this short time about the institutional
background and reasons why we are here today. But I hope we will have that opportunity in the
future to concentrate. And if your desire is that we need one special committee to just focus on
this and report back before next budget session, you know, I, I would be very open to supporting
that type of consideration from you, Chair. But at this time. . .I'm ready to go with your
recommendation, Chair. 'Cause. . .and again, you and I know it's not the perfect proposal,
Chair. . .but at this point in time I think it's a good proposal. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. And it's always quite astonishing to
listen to Mr. Hokama. He comes up with such historic perspective. . .and where and why we're
here today, which many of us in room could never have that kind of institutional knowledge.
And I make no disrespect to any one classification. I just want to make sure our working people
are protected 'cause they are very seldom spoken about. They very seldom come here because
again they're just too busy raising their families. I'd like an all out, total review of this because I
think it's long overdue. Mr. Hokama does bring up a great point. It was done because of this,
but we're changing again. We're changing from the visitor industry into more sustainable and
other types of industries. So maybe we have to start looking differently. And the people that are
coming here and the people that are working here. . .how do we make sure they can stay here?
That we, we have all these return kamaaina and all these other programs, but they come back and
they can't afford to live here. Let me say this--we still have the highest gas prices in the State,
and probably up there in the nation. How much is it in...in Hana? 6.25?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: 6.10 yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 6.10 yesterday. Okay? Lanai and Molokai probably right there.
Okay? That's part of our County, you know, that's not a separate entity. I use that as one
example of many examples that...it's something we don't have much control of, but yet our
people have to pay it. And who are most adversely affected? Again, the working people. I'd
like to see us change the classification for Homeowners...up a million, million half and then all
the discussion can be done in Committee. But I will support your proposal. I had a 25 cent
increase in, in the Homeowners rate. I agree with Ms. Baisa, a small increase would be
something important to understand that everybody has to share a little on this, Chair, just a little.
But again I will...I need and we need to really evaluate this. We need the time to look at
everything, go after those who should be paying us the right classifications, the right amounts;
Ag, again I go back; gentlemen farmers. All these people that are abusing the system. You
heard Mr. Teruya say that. So, it's my hope that I can support what you brought forward,
Mr. Chair, and I hope that you will make it a point to either like Mr. Hokama said, set up a
separate committee, an ad hoc committee that can focus in on this; or ask the Budget Committee,
say, hey, for the next two months this is all we're going to look at, this is what we're going work
on. Because we cannot come back next year and spend all this time discussing the same thing
`cause if I'm correct, this is my fifth budget and every year we seem to talk about this around this
point. And it's really the same conversation. And no offense to anyone in the room, including
yourself, Mr. Chair, it just seems to come down to this every year. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? The Chair would like just to
make a comment in regards to Real Property Tax. Right now, the Committee do have, does have
two...items in, in Committee--and one of 'em is the Homeowners, and the other one is
Agriculture. So, we will be bringing those forward from now until the end of the year. And if
there's any other areas that need to be looked at--or maybe the whole, whole tax. . .categories
should be looked at. But in Committee, at this time, we do have two items that's going to be
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taken up as soon as we complete this budget. You know I, I really appreciate Mr. White's
proposal. I really appreciate the comments that all of you have made tonight regarding Real
Property Tax. And yes, Mr. Victorino . . . (laughter). . . since I've been here-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --when come the final night-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --before we approve the budget, you know, it always has been the sticking
issue--Real Property Tax. Yeah. So . . .
. . . we're going to take some actions in the next couple of months in regards to that two items.
And again, you know, if we need to take a look at the whole tax structure, then we should form a
committee--and, you know, probably not this body, but an ad hoc committee made up of various
people within our community So, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I appreciate your comments and. . .I think
Mr. Hokama and you are correct, we need to, we need to set a...I think it needs to be a
subcommittee of the Budget and Finance Just for a little historical perspective, I don't know
how many times, but know there's been a number of times where we're had property tax task
forces put together, they make recommendations, and for various political reasons nothing ever
happens. And I think maybe it's important for all those of us in the Council to be involved in the
discussions, listen to the presentations directly, and get a, you know, get some ideas from other,
other areas. But, you know, when I see that we're not expanding our tax base and our economy
is not growing as fast as our County government is--our, our economy has grown by about
67 percent in 10 years. In the same time, our County government and costs have grown almost
by three times. It's not sustainable and, you know, we, we need to...you know, we've taken a
look at many of our costs and many of them cannot be reduced at this time. So, I appreciate the,
the comments. I'm just concerned that this is the time when property tax rates are discussed and
decided upon and there doesn't seem to be the stomach for it in between. And so I, I think
we're, we're left with. . .not being in a position to charge a tax rate that is fair. And I, you know,
obviously I can count the votes. But. . .I think it's a concern to me that we're...our taxes need
some real work. And I would love to be in a position to have this, this Committee or a
subcommittee of this Committee take a very serious look at what, what changes might be
appropriate. And I certainly support the. . .the work on the Ag valuations and the Homeowners
exemptions that are being taken advantage of. So, I support you on that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I have a question. I can reluctantly
support your proposal because we are, again, backed in the corner--and this has gone on since
I've been here. And I really, really hope that this time we will pursue, you know, we'll follow
- 159 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 6, 2011

up with some real serious discussions about looking at what we're doing and how we could do it
better. But my question is this matter of this minimum tax--because even though we can
approve the rates and, you know, do what you want there, what are we going to do about that
minimum tax? You may want to...you know handle it separately. But it really scares me that
we would proceed with, with what is in the Budget Ordinance right now because we don't want
to...you talk about hurting little people, that going hurt little people. So, do we have to think
about that before we set the rates? Because we're going to have to find money someplace if we
don't do it. Well, I don't know what the plan is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, right now, the Chair's proposal is exactly raising the minimum tax from
the existing. That's my proposal at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you're going to stick with it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'm going to stick with it, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I had conversations with the Real Property Tax Division in regards to the
minimum tax. And, yes, you're right there are owners or people that are leasing land to do
farming or cattle ranching in certain areas in Maui County. And some of 'em, the increase
would be, well, I don't call it really substantial, it's just doubling up what they paying today.
When I look at $300, it's like what, 40 cents a day for a year?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's almost like, you know, couple dollars a month. Not "couple", but you
know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair, I'm like you. I felt the same way until the man brought
up the issue of how many parcels might be put together--and that's where that 30 cents a day
might be a lot more. And that's, that's my fear.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, you know, I think that the minimum tax that is $300 is, is almost
ridiculous because, you know, we computed what it would cost if every taxpayer had to pay his
fair share of the County budget--which we just did--and you divide that, those millions, this
570 million by 155,000, the minimum tax would be staggering.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, the $300 is ridiculous, and I have no concern with the $300. My
concern is, you know, if you've got 13 of those and you're a small guy, that's a substantial bill
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for you that went from, you know, the 150. So, maybe we need, we can pass it and we have to
look at it and see the impact of it, and maybe on another day when we have more time maybe we
can analyze it better when we have some experience. But, you know, it is a concern for me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, you know Member Cochran has a unique issue on the
West side when we approved the kuleana land exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, you know, we do have a person on the West side that has six parcels that
didn't qualify for kuleana land exemptions. So, you know, you're going to find some of those
cases, I agree. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah. Actually, I have five apanas. I don't
qualify; and Hans, he's got actually 13. But, you know, sitting here listening and taking all this
in. . .and being really a rookie at all this, I'm taking in the, the knowledge and experience from,
from those of you who have been here much, much longer and have insight to why we are where
we're at. So, I appreciate Mr. Hokama sharing what he has and, and yourself. And so, for me, I
believe that I can support you on this, Chair. I think...but I also share the sentiment of the fellow
Member such as Ms. Baisa, that this is something a lot more complicated than we're going to
figure out in just a couple hours tonight. It's almost 10 o'clock at night. It's late. We've been
having a long day. So. . .at this point, though so far I, I feel, you know, that you've put a lot
heart, soul, time, and energy also into figuring this out, so I choose to support you, Chair. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know the discussion is one that needs to be
had. We've...I have, I feel a bit of a unique experience in that. . .of course, I was on the ninth
floor when we discussed things like this. And for a long time I was behind the cameras watching
this, sometimes in here, sometimes downstairs where they are now. And during those times,
there were problems, there were issues with the property taxes raising. And everybody's getting
concerned about their taxes going high. In 1991, we were $4.50, I believe. . .for homeowners
with no exemption or a small exemption for people over 65. And then, that rate started going
down, the exemption started going up. And all the time, every time people were sitting behind
these desks saying, you know, we're going to help the working families. We're going to help
them. We're going to bring down their taxes, their rates, and bring up their exemptions because
the prices are high. But, guys, when the prices go down. . .we'd like you to come and say thank
you for helping us out but now bring the exemptions down and increase the rates a little
bit. . .not, not a lot, just start going back to kind of normal. But now the prices are going down
and the economy is going down. Usually that happens at the same time, and people are, are
hurting. So, how do you, how do you fix that? That's why we need to have this discussion. The
same time I was listening to that discussion, every year somebody says, yes, we got to have a
committee, subcommittee, let's do it. Haven't done it. I, I...you know because it's. . .it's pretty
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balanced right now, I can support this. But I really, really want to challenge this, this body to
actually have that discussion and have those committee meetings this time. And of course, then
next budget it's election season, so who's going to raise taxes? But we have to have that
discussion. And I, and I'm, I'm putting it on record that I say we got to have it right away, too,
in, in between all the budget amendments that are coming in.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This Chairman had brought out, last year, a proposal that the
sitting body at that time put the pressure on, on you folks--they said why don't the new
Council. . .deal with this problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're ready.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you know, I'm going to bring it up again, and, and this Council will deal
with those two issues. So, you know, we, we do have a member, a person in the audience that
had been on a committee to look at real property tax. And it wasn't easy, according to that lady.
So the only thing that they came up with--and correct me if I'm wrong--is the Circuit Breaker.
So. . .and that lady is right here, Terryl Vend. She was on that Committee. I don't know how
long back, how long ago, probably over ten years. So, yeah, you know, we've done that before.
And, you know, like all of you are saying that we should do it again, this body right here-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in a separate meeting to look at Real Property Tax.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that's a commitment. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, very quickly and I think one of the good things that may, may
come out of this effort--because I sense a strong desire and, and I sense that the, the willingness
of the Members to put energy into it. I think it would be also, from the historic perspect, to look
at points in time of this County and why certain things happened. Because, you know, what
Mr. White shared about the growth of the County government is correct, but then again, you got
to look at what happened in certain point in time. In the early '80s, up till early '80s, Lanai had
no police, I mean Fire Department. We had no professional firefighter on the island. Okay?
We're a plantation. We had...but the Code authorized volunteer fire company. We had a
County fire truck, but no County firemen. Okay? We then, they knew we were going to start
changing our island. . .we're going to try diversify, we started to consider luxury resort
development and our five-star hotels. Okay? So we had to get stations. We had to full, a three
full shift, three shifts manned station. Okay? We all know that a normal new station anyplace
in, I would say 10-year-ago money, will cost the County, operationally without equipment, at
least $1 million in General Fund to operate that station, three shifts around the clock, year round.
So, when the new Haiku station eventually--if we want to do it and we get that done--it's going
to cost, operationally, over $1 million additional revenue, not counting equipment yet. Okay, so
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I hope that when we look at things, we, we take into account those specific points in times and
why certain things occurred so that we can understand why, then, certain tax things adjusted,
why certain things came up. And I think then maybe our understanding to make the better
adjustments that we desire to put into near, near future, Chairman, it will make sense and can
stand the test of time to continue a fairness of taxation policy. And so, you know, I just share
that because. . .and my, you know, I guess disadvantage is I assume a lot of you know. . .almost
as, just as much as me, and I take that for granted, and I apologize. Because I know we all know
different things. I learn from every other Member of things that I'm, I'm not that versed in. So I
hope that this will be a share, a moment of sharing also, Chairman, of knowledge and history.
Because like I said, we're not here by mistake. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry, Chair, one last thing. It, it should be noted, too, that while, you
know, you may see in the headlines that taxes got raised, in fact taxes, tax rates got raised.
Taxes are actually going down. The people, most of the people who are going to pay taxes are
going to pay less than they paid last year. There is a couple classes and there...two different
classes that may pay a little bit more at some, some of the cases. But in, in average we're going
to down $12 million from what we took in last year, according to this. So, you know, we're
taking in less. We're taking in less taxes, but the rates may be going up a little bit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We going spend all night over here -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, probably.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --just discussing this thing.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I'll make it short. Okay, I get the point, Chair. Although
Mr. Couch is correct in what he's saying, you know, we got to also look at not only people
paying less taxes--businesses, hotels--but there's less income coming in also. So, you know, I
think we try to stay revenue neutral, but what I could not take--and you worked really hard and I
think this Committee worked hard--is the $632 million budget that was sent down. That's what
was really the starting point. We brought that down tremendously to $570 million. People are
looking to see government downsize, to spend efficiently, not to keep raising their taxes and
giving the excuse, oh, you're paying less. I don't think Mr. White's hotel wants to pay less tax
and see a rate increase. . .and then see everything else go up. And I know as an individual I
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don't want to see that happen. I don't want the working people to have that happen. We have to
be austere in what we do. And there are things we have control on. Mr. Chair, you cut, what,
50-plus million dollars off this budget, all of this did, you know, with all our suggestions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty-plus million dollars. That's a chunk of change right there.
And I think we could do more, but we caved in to certain things, and we said okay, we'll try this,
we'll try that, you know--we want to give the Administration the opportunity, right, for their
Attrition Program and others to kick in. But I really believe we cannot continue to tell the
constituents oh, no worry your price, your, your, ...your assessments went down, so we raised
the rate, it's revenue neutral. And that same consumer drives into the gas station and sees $5 a
gallon or $6 a gallon? How do you think they think? I use gas because that's really every day
it's on somebody mind now. But there's other things that have gone up. Food costs have gone
up. Have you been to the grocery store lately? My wife came home and spent $185 last night at
Costco for something she said two weeks ago she spent about $160. It is a direct cost right now.
It's not taking months to affect us. It's right now. So, although I agree, Mr. Couch, that
assessments have gone down and we're trying to be revenue neutral, I believe we, as
government, must contain costs--that's our obligation--and provide the services in an efficient
manner And we can do that, Mr. Chair. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And thank you, Mr. Victorino. The last two budgets that we've done--and
you've been here when we did 2011, the current budget--and our focus was just to do that,
contain government costs. And we did that. Any more discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, if not-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, the Chair would like to thank all of the Members, you know, for
working so diligently on the...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (Inaudible)... rates?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You want a vote or
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah, before I ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chairman, I just, I just want to thank you for the discussion. I, I think
it's an important one and I thank the colleagues for their opinions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: At least some of it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Some of us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Coughs). . . Excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Um. . .I need a motion to accept the tax rate as, as proposed by the
Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved. Oh, go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Victorino. Any more discussion? All in favor of the
motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair is going to take a five-minute recess. We, we need to look at the
revenues, fees, rates, and assessments and taxes, Appendix B.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, for record, can you please announce the decision of the vote for
the body, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry . . .(laughter). . . The vote was eight "ayes"; one "excused",
Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. That's how anxious, I like go
home.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's late.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He just wanted it done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair is going to take a short, maybe five-minute recess.
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

10:10 p.m.

RECONVENE:

10:20 p.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, I think you all received a memo from the Chair. . .proposed Fiscal Year
2012 Budget for the County of Maui. And this is in regards to Section 9-7(3), Revised Charter
of the County of Maui, 1983. And at this time, I'd like to call on Mr. Scott Kaneshina.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Chair. This is in reference to the memo that you received from Staff,
dated May 5 th from Mr. Pontanilla. It's in regards to. . .charges for other record--so anytime that
we...a member of the public requests copies of documents. Currently, the rates and fee section
of the budget does not allow for any sort of charges for reproduction fees. Based on guidance we
got from the Office of Information Practices, we now are authorized to do so. So, just to fall in
line with their guidance, you know, it spells it out in this memo, but it, it illustrates the changes
in the rates and fees sections which we would like incorporate. So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. So. . .without any objection, the Chair would like to insert
this.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, we're going through rates and. . .rates and fees.
And there's three sections that the Chair would like to bypass--and this is the Planning area. It
was decided upon that we go back to the 2011 rates.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In the Transportation area, we still need to work on the...the signage or
advertise. . .advertisement in the bus, that is in committee at this time. And the Park area, the
vendor concession, which will be going to Mr. White for more discussion. Most of the, the items
that need to be discussed tonight is more.. .
... language changes, but you do have some fee changes. So, the Chair is going to go
page-by-page and ask for consensus. The first page is . . .
...Page 5.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You guys got the one with the color codes, right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I need consensus on the, the change that's going to be made in that
one particular area. And again it's just a language...I guess it's a definition change for that one
particular area. They're going to remove "solar photovoltaic electric energy system" and in its
place it's going to be "renewable energy technology electrical system".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do I have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus, no objection from me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's move right along. Page 7?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one is Page 7. Do I have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(cough). . . excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one is Page 15. This I'll read. What's being removed is "July 1, 2004 to
June 30, 2009". It's going to be changed to "July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2014". And the amount for
that, and this is the leasing of Helene Hall, cost is...was $6,001; the new rate is $4,001. Do I
have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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. . . On Page 20, again there are--and we had discussed this much, much earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There are some changes in the fees and changing of the title. So, do I have
consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. On Page 21, again, language change in regards to the, the
area. . .making it more specific. Do I have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And on Page 22, noted in blue, "visiting swim team" means a
swim team not from the County of Maui. Do I have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Planning, we not going through.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I know.
. . . Lucky get tabs . . . (laughter). . . On Page 35, this is one that we're going to be. . .eliminating.
Oh . . .
COUNCILMEMBER

: Huh?

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not "eliminating", but going back to Committee in regards to advertising
inside County transit buses. Presently it's in the Budget and Finance Committee to review.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
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MR. BAZ: I just had a question about that because the item in Committee is to amend the
Fiscal Year 2011 Budget to add this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: And so, I'm not sure that that item would go stale because of the 2011 Budget will be
ending here very shortly.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. There is a item in the Committee and it was from last term,
but we, we did refer it to, to this term. I believe from what I can recall of when it went through
first, first reading and at second reading. . .after discussion, it was brought to our attention by
Corp. Counsel that there were some issues remaining with that piece of legislation. So,
Mr. Pontanilla voluntarily recommitted it. Here we are in budget session, so we can't work on it
now, but it, it is in Committee to be worked on. We can update dates to make it more
appropriate for this term. But. . .that's, that's, that's where we're at with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you. We'll work with Staff and maybe resubmit or submit a new budget
amendment to amend the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget once the item is cleared up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So we're in...brought it back to Committee and we'll -MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --do the changes. Page 37, Members-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Does that mean we're going to take that out. . .now and do you need
consensus for that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This thing is not ready. Chair is going to strike it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, strike it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. On Page 37, there are some changes in the meter size
charges. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . On Page 43. . .just the changing of the date--"2010" to "2011". Do I have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . . Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We had discussed giving the Waiehu Golf Course more flexibility in the
rates because they...we set the, the non-resident fee at 55, and you had brought up the
point--which I thought was a very good point--that many of the other courses that are in better
shape are charging less.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Is it possible for us to consider giving them a range of rates so that
they're not tied to specific rate that in fact it's not working for them?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can I come back to that?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Sure.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, let me complete this whole thing. On Page 46, do we have consensus
on the new numbers?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. On Page 48, do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 50, this is for Water Fund material unit costs. We had some
costs that went up and some costs that went down. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And that's it. Let's go to the Golf Fund.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
MR. KANESHINA: Did, did we, did the Committee get consensus on...with regard to the Planning
fees as proposed, to revert-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. KANESHINA: --back to the Fiscal '11 rate?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, sorry. Yeah, do we have consensus in-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --reverting back to the...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 20-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Don't go there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I thought I'd just pull it out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Golf Fund-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Regarding the Golf Fund...while, while, you know, the
range. . .from operational side kind of makes sense, for those of us that have some private sector
or non-profit experience, from, from, from the budget and appropriation side, the difficulty is
what do we put as revenue since there's this range? You know, I hope the Committee can see, I
mean do we put the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the low number from the low rate versus the high number . . . (laughter).. .
at the high end of the range rate? You know we got to come, come with, with a specific number
for the revenue so we finally, can get the Staff to say we've balanced the budget. So, you know,
if we can maybe get some comments or if the Staff needs time, you know, I would ask the
Committee to consider allowing Staff till Monday . . . (laughter). . . during corrections to see if
we can do a range.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That might make sense, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Mr. White, we're just going to leave it in -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and take a look on Monday. Okay.
. . . Staff, that's it?
MR. KANESHINA: . . . For that packet. I think, I think there's also a memo, dated May
the General Provisions of the budget.

6 th ,

regarding

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: This, this one, in particular, I. . .I'd like to defer to Corp. Counsel to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: 'Cause we, our Office worked with Corp. Counsel to kind of develop it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Mr. Chair. Yes, our office did work with Office of Counsel Services in
suggestions to and language to add to the proposed budget, General Budget Provisions.
Currently, as the budget provisions read in regards to grants, it only describes grant revenue. So,
what your memo states or the suggested revisions reads is to expand the def. . the def. . .or
expand the section in regards to "grant revenues", delete the "revenues" but...just entitle it
"grants", but it adds a new section with regards to appropriations. So given previous concerns in
regards to the definitions of "grants" and the issues that the Committee has been discussing
about, this addresses . . .
... those issues that were discussed in regards to grants. So.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
MR. BAZ: . . . (inaudible).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We need to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --understand this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, never mind.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Oh, you need a moment of time to read?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
NOTE: Pause.

MR. KANESHINA: . . . So, should we take a recess, five-minute recess?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we'll take a five-minute recess so Members can read the. . .proposal.
This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

10:33 p.m.

RECONVENE:

10:54 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, there's a handout dated May 6, 2011 from the Chair. This is proposed
Fiscal Year 2012 Budget for the County of Maui and this pertains to grants. Members, if you
can take this home over the weekend, take a look at it, and we'll address this thing on Monday?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Before I go home, because I'm not a legal beagle, I really would
like to ask Corp. Counsel -- 175 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --give us a little explanation-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Background.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --so, you know, so I can understand what, what we're trying to
digest here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I apologize.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: Oh, yes, I'll try to explain. If you guys remember in regards to recent procurement
challenge with the Roberts...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. HEELY: . . . Transportation and the Hearing's Officer decision which. . .said that it was a
procurement issue because the grant, as defined in our Maui County Code, says it must be
for. . .a grant must be to a specific recipient for a specific purpose. So, I discussed this issue with
Council Services as well as the Litigation Attorney involved in that legal challenge and to clarify
or. . .that's why these suggested revisions to the Budget Ordinance is. . .budget provisions were
suggested. But I agree that it, it's a lot to take in and we can allow, the Chair's recommendation
to allow you folks to review it and digest it. . .is a good one. And we can revisit it on Monday.
. . . Another issue on the third paragraph-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh?
MS. HEELY: --I think that's imperative as well. It just adds the new language, the underlined
language.
. . . This...this just explains that expenditures must be in accordance with the requirements of the
grantor--whether the grantor is the County, the Federal government or some other entity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. HEELY: So, the first suggested. . .or the first paragraph is basically a nonsubstantive. It changes
the title of that section in the Budget Provisions from "grant revenues" to "grants".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MS. HEELY: The main one that...may. . .provide some questions is paragraph two, which I, I think
is...the Committee may need, or the Committee Members need time to review and digest that.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Victorino, you done?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, I'm, go ahead, I'll let Mr. Hokama-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would hope, I would ask, well, a request to you, Chair, that if possible that
when we revisit on Monday that we have appropriate personnel to tell us the advantages
. . .(laughter). . . and I see some disadvantages to, to...that we need to be aware of before we
make our decision. And secondly, I, I can see one of the potential disadvantages is that we're
going to need to go back and reopen all the grant areas. . .again, and if we don't have a specific
grantee-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we're going to have to eliminate it from the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and. . .and I wish this was told to us before we started working
on grants because, you know, we've put millions into this area, Chairman, and. . .I would, you
know, I can a lot of disappointment, a lot of...with the, with the program. I can see a lot of
disappointment . . . (laughter). . . just on floor in here. . .because we've worked hard on this area.
So, I hope we can get the appropriate personnel to give us some good. . .advantages,
disadvantages. And, and if there is court. . .judicial factors that we must be made aware of,
please present it. And if we need to be in executive session, I would hope you would
recommend that, if there's confidential matters that need to be discussed because of this
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consideration. But I think Monday would give...allow us to be refreshed and prepared with the
appropriate questions regarding our concerns with this proposal. But in no way. . .I would ask so
that we all can at least leave here with one with one thing known-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in no way does this proposal grants the Mayor a pre-approval on
intergovernmental agreements, right?
MS. HEELY: That's correct. Part I of Appendix A talks about grant revenues, but it, the
Mayor. . .through the ordinance would have to come before you, the Council, for approval.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Once we know the specific -MS. HEELY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --amount of the, the grant -MS. HEELY: Exactly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we're going to receive.
MS. HEELY: Right. And the Code also requires the Mayor to come before you, the Council, before
any intergovernmental agreement is -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Executed.
MS. HEELY: --entered into.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I had the same reaction that Member Hokama had, but I took it
one step further. You know we have a lot of money that we've set aside in pots. And it, if I read
this correctly and, you know, we're not, we're, we're very late and everybody is kind of worn
out right now so maybe we're not looking at it appropriately and will, somebody will explain.
But if that's the case, we've got a lot of work to do 'cause we got to go back in the pots and put
everybody's name in as to who's going to get it and who isn't. So, I think we can discuss this on
Monday when we all are fresh. But I have serious concerns about this.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You want to make comment? No?
MR. BAZ: Um. . .Mr. Chair, you know, we. . .Budget Office has been in discussion with this and there
are, like Mr. Hokama mentioned, advantages and disadvantages to the language that's in here.
And I think the intent was to not. . .preclude the Council from appropriating grants in pots of
money, and there's some little bit of language to that. But I do have some concerns with the way
the budget ordinance. . .describes information. And the way that this paragraph reads, it might
restrict us from what the Council's intent is on, on certain things. And, Mr. Chair, don't, don't
kill me, but I do have one other item for revisit on Monday, and this is related to Special Purpose
Revenues in Animal Management Program. Something maybe Staff could just make a note of-we deleted the provided...the proviso for the $150,000 grant to Maui Humane Society. So, by
deleting that proviso, the Administration doesn't have the ability to expend funds out of that
special revenue, from my understanding. So we might want to discuss that some.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: I believe, I believe we got consensus on that -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: --last night. Because, because, yeah, as Mr. Baz was stating, their...proviso
exceeded the amount that's available in the Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I think it was, what, 134...
MR. KANESHINA: 150 was the proviso, but the balance in the fund is less than that -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: --so that's why we addressed it last night.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, my, my concern is that because the proviso is deleted--and the Special Revenue
Funds, if notice, all of them have provisos for us to be able, the Administration to be able to
expend funds out of that. That even though the dollar amount was incorrect, maybe we want to
put it in a proviso with either a correct dollar amount?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, we'll take it up on Monday.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I...and, Members, in this provision here, if you, you want it fine; if
you don't want it, you can. . .you know, vote it down.
. . . At this time, the Chair would like to make a few comments in regards to the Committee and
the Staff people, along with Administration. I really want to thank each and every one of you for
being here, trying to formulate--well, not "trying", but we finally formulated the Fiscal Year
2012 Budget, although we have some items that we, we still need to take care on Monday. I just
want to thank. . .Scott, Michele, and Camille. They go home...
ALL: ... (Applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They go home after midnight almost every night for the last couple of weeks.
So thank you very much. Thank you, Adrienne. I know this is your first Budget review as the,
from Corporation Counsel, and Mr. Sandy Baz as Director of Budget. I think you did a fantastic
job your first time around. I'm sure you're going to get better.
ALL: ... (Applause)...
MS. HEELY: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, Members-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair? Hang. . .one, there's...I need to ask Staff a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can, can you wait? . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You just interrupt, yeah, you . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. I thought you were going to close the meeting, and I had...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, I not going close the meeting . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now he lose his train of thought.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You see?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (laughter). . . I knew that was going to happen.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anyway, you know, and, you know, thank you for...to the audience over here
for being--and some of you have been here almost like every night, you know, reviewing this
thing. And, and staff supporting your Council Member, you know, good job. And with that, I'm
going to call on Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, well, I guess we can...it has to do with the Water Fund fee
rates. I thought there were some new numbers that was supposed to come down from Mr. Taylor
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . under labor. Because the proposed rates are lower than
the. . .previous rates.
. . . I had a note here saying that, so-MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Some are and some aren't.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Anyway-MR. BAZ: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I mean we can...I'm looking at 'em right here, Page 48.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Budget Director?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, yes, the Water Director, when he presented the rates and fees in discussion, did
present some new. . .rates for the items, as Ms. Cochran mentioned there. So, if Staff doesn't
have them, I can get that to them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Anything else?
. . . Okay. Thank you very much. Members, we'll see you on Monday. . .10:00 a.m.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What time-CHAIR PONTANILLA: 10 a.m.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --Monday?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 10 a.m.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ten.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ten.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This meeting for the Budget and Finance Committee is now in recess.
.(gavel). . .
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